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Hao Tian Internatio

The Board is pleased to announce the annual results of the
Group for the Year.

During the Year, economies have been through challenges both
globally and in Hong Kong. As the COVID-19 pandemic was still
threatening the whole world in the Year, the macro environment
was not optimistic. In face of the complicated external
environment, the Group immediately adjusted its major
direction for business with its operation layout reasonably

planned, and actively explored new development opportunities.

The Group actively explores investment opportunities in order
to diversify its business and expand its asset portfolio. During
the Year, a subsidiary under the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement for an investment in a comprehensive
urban development project to acquire 22% equity interest in
CESIZ (Cambodia) Co., Ltd ("CESIZ"), a company incorporated
in Cambodia. Under the sub-decree 122/2019 (the “Sub-
decree”) on the establishment of CESIZ Special Economic Zone
(the “Special Economic Zone") granted by the Council of
Ministers in Cambodia, the Council of Ministers approved the
CESIZ, with sole and exclusive rights, to establish a special
economic zone with a size of 17,252,519 square meters at Koh
Kong Province, Cambodia. The Special Economic Zone would
be for residential, industrial and commercial development
purposes and such development will be freehold properties.
Meanwhile, another subsidiary of the Company has invested in
the acquisition of a comprehensive property development
project with an area of 267,500 square meters (or 2,879,343
square feet) at Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia for
residential and commercial building purposes at a total
consideration of HK$370 million. The Board believes that the
acquisitions are beneficial to the Group since the target
properties have development potential and are in line with the
Group's business strategy. The addition of the target properties
will enhance the Group's investment portfolio of property
development projects in the “One Belt, One Road” regions.

DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT
EERESE
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DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT
EERESE

In terms of the existing construction machinery business, due to
the relatively stable undertaking of government infrastructure
projects, the Group managed to record an increase in the sales
of construction machinery and spare parts as well as a stable
rental income generated from construction machinery during
the Year. The occupancy rate for the rental machineries was
approximately 80%. For the financial services business, we shall
continue our business expansion with a cautious and positive
attitude. The Group is confident in the prospects of the financial
markets in Hong Kong and the Mainland China, and would like
to increase its presence in the financial markets by either

organic growth or working with reputable partners.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all the Shareholders for their full support,
and appreciate the Directors, the management and the staff for
their valuable contributions to the Group. The Group shall strive
to streamline its existing businesses and to explore new
business opportunities in order to create returns for its

shareholders.

Mr. Fok Chi Tak

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW
Impact of COVID-19

Facing with the unprecedented challenge of the COVID-19
pandemic during the Year, the Group has adjusted its corporate
management direction by exploring new development
opportunities. During the Year, on top of the existing
businesses, the Group has explored business opportunities in

property development field.

Though operations of the construction industry in Hong Kong
have been affected as a consequence of COVID-19, due to the
relatively stable undertaking of government infrastructure
projects, the Group managed to record an increase in the sales
of construction machinery and spare parts as well as a stable
rental income generated from construction machinery during
the Year. The occupancy rate for the rental machineries was
approximately 80%.

To manage the impact of COVID-19, the Group maintained its
operation and put in place precautionary and risk mitigation
measures, including suitably deploying remote work
arrangements, periodic deep cleaning and sanitization for both
our warehouse and offices, provision of facemasks or other
personal protection equipment for all employees, body
temperature measurement for all personnel at workplaces, and
proper record keeping of work schedule and contact history for

tracing.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 KB

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWRE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Existing Business

During the Year, the Group continued to pursue a long-term
business strategy of diversifying into financial services business,
property development business, along with the construction
machinery business. During the Year, the Group was principally
engaged in the construction machinery business, serving
primarily the construction sector, and financial services in Hong
Kong. The Group's principal activities include: (i) money
lending; (ii) securities investment; (iii) provision of commodities,
futures, securities brokerage and financial services; (iv) asset
management; (v) rental and trading of construction machinery;
(vi) provision of repair and maintenance and transportation

service; and (vii) property development.

The Group offers crawler cranes of different sizes, other mobile
cranes, aerial platforms and foundation equipment in its
construction machinery rental fleet. The Group procures these
construction machinery mainly through the manufacturers of
construction machinery located in developed countries in
Western Europe and Northern Asia as well as traders of used
construction machinery around the world. The Group has
maintained approximately 200 units of construction machinery
in the rental fleet during the Year. In order to maintain a modern
fleet of construction machinery with a greater variety of models,
the Group has been replacing portions of its fleet of
construction machinery from time to time. The Board will
continue to monitor the daily operations and review the
expansion plan of the rental fleet and the capital requirements
of the Group regularly. The Group may reschedule such
expansion plan according to the operation and needs, the
preference of the target customers and prevailing market
conditions if necessary. The Group entered into several
dealership arrangements with construction machinery
manufacturers in Europe, Japan and Korea during the Year. To
satisfy customers’ needs, the Group also sells spare parts for

maintenance purposes or upon request.
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Hao Tian Internatio

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Existing Business (continued)

The Group holds (i) licenses for conducting type 1 (dealing in
securities), type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), type 4 (advising
on securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance; and (ii)

money lender licenses under the Money Lenders Ordinance.

The Group provides a wide range of financial services. During
the Year, the Group allocated resources to further develop the
asset management business by offering mortgaged-back fixed
return fund, growth fund and other investment solutions in the
middle of financial markets surge driven by massive monetary
stimulus. The Group believes that with the regional advantages
of Hong Kong as an international financial center, provision of
financial services will bring various business opportunities, long-

term stable income and steady growth to the Group.
Property development business
Cambodia investment

In January 2021, the Group, through a subsidiary of the
Company, acquired 22% equity interests in CESIZ, which is
principally engaged in investment in urban complex
development project. Under the Sub-Decree, the Council of
Ministers in Cambodia approved CESIZ to establish a special
economic zone with a size of 17,252,519 square meters at Koh
Kong Province, Cambodia. Under the Sub-Decree, CESIZ shall
have the sole and exclusive right to develop the Special
Economic Zone with all the necessary land use rights, including
those for residential, industrial and commercial development
purposes. The principal assets of CESIZ is a land for
development (the “Project Land 1").

BEENWE TN
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uction Investment Group Li

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWRE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property development business (continued)
Cambodia investment (continued)

The consideration for the acquisition was HK$1,125 million
which was settled by (i) HK$125 million by the allotment and
issue of consideration shares of the Company; (i) HK$850
million by the issue of consideration notes by the Company;
and (iii) HK$150 million by the issue of consideration convertible
bonds by the Company. The consideration convertible bonds
were fully converted into shares of the Company on 26 February
2021.

CESIZ is engaged in investment in urban complex development
project on the Project Land 1, including the construction of
clean energy industrial parks along with designated areas for
residential properties. The location of the Project Land 1 enjoys
geographical advantage. The Special Economic Zone is located
in the middle of the 144-kilometre major national highway No. 4
in Cambodia and port terminals, connecting the highway to the
port, with the deep-water harbor under planning. The Special
Economic Zone is also in close proximity to the Phnom Penh-
Sihanoukville Expressway, which is currently under construction.
The project has the benefit of the convenient domestic road
transport hub in Phnom Penh, Cambodia that will reduce the
transportation costs of corporate products and labour costs.
The development in the Special Economic Zone will be freehold
properties which allow enterprises, commercial and residential
investors to invest in the area to have a long-term secure

investment plan.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited £

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property development business (continued)
Cambodia investment (continued)

The acquisition allows the Group to invest and gain exposure in
urban complex development project in a premium location in
Cambodia and strengthens the Group’s comprehensive
investment portfolio. Cambodia is a member of the Association
of Southeast Asian Nations (“ASEAN") and is one of the most
promising developing countries in the ASEAN region.
Cambodia is a member of the World Trade Organization
("WTO") as a developing country, and investments in the
country can enjoy the WTO preferential tariff for imports and
exports from and to its membership countries, while other
countries like the United States (“U.S.”) and Japan, also offer
Cambodia preferential tariff and quota-free incentives.
According to the World Bank, Cambodia’s gross domestic
product (“GDP") has continued to grow at an average rate of
over 7% over the past decade, ranking first in ASEAN countries
in terms of economic growth. Cambodia’s GDP reached US$27
billion and GDP per capita reached US$1,643 in 2019, making it
one of the fastest growing economies in the world and one of
the emerging countries of investment hotspot in Southeast
Asia. The stable political environment and dynamic labour force
in Cambodia, together with the preferential tax policies and
freedom of capital flows, have successfully attracted foreign
investors. In addition, Cambodia has established a long-term
friendly relationship with China and provides strong support to
China in ASEAN. The Chinese government’s “One Belt, One
Road” development strategy has brought significant investment
from Chinese enterprises, creating huge potential for
Cambodia’s business development. The bilateral “China-
Cambodia Free Trade Agreement” signed between China and
Cambodia will bring more tangible benefits and development
opportunities to both countries. As an emerging developing
economy in which basic infrastructure within the country needs
to be fully developed, all industries in Cambodia have

enormous room for development.
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onstruction Investment Group Limited £

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property development business (continued)
Cambodia investment (continued)

Given the promising long-term economic development of
Cambodia and prospects of the urban complex development
project, there is potential for attractive capital appreciation for

this investment over the long term.

Having considered the above reasons, the Group considers that
the acquisition serves as a good opportunity to diversify its
business and to invest in the Project Land 1 with a view to
realising the land value and enhancing shareholder value in the

long run.
Malaysia investment

In February 2021, the Group, through a subsidiary of the
Company, acquired 100% equity interests in a project company,
Dasar Prisma Sdn. Bhd. ("Dasar”) with a total consideration of
HK$370 million. The consideration has been settled by the issue
of promissory notes by the Company. Dasar is incorporated in
Malaysia and is principally engaged in property holding, which
is a residential and commercial mixed property development
project located at Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia
comprising 267,500 square meters (or 2,879,343 square feet) (the
“Project Land 2"). The property is held from the government for
a lease term of 99 years expiring on 8 February 2097 for

residential and commercial building uses.

Port Dickson is a popular resort destination at Negeri Sembilan,
Malaysia and about 80 kilometers from Kuala Lumpur. Based on
the available statistics published by the Valuation and Property
Services Department of Malaysia, the overall house price index
of Negeri Sembilan has increased from approximately 150 in
2015 to approximately 192 in 2019 with a compound annual
growth rate of approximately 5.05%. The Group considers that
there would be an upward potential for the property market in

Negeri Sembilan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property development business (continued)
Malaysia investment (continued)

The potential of investing in Malaysia can be further supported
by the rising GDP in Malaysia. According to the statistics
published by the Department of Statistics Malaysia, the nominal
gross domestic product of Malaysia has increased by over 28%
from approximately RM1,176,941 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,283,266 million) in 2015 to RM1,510,693
million (equivalent to approximately HK$2,930,744 million) in
2019 with a compound annual growth rate of approximately
5.12%. The Group considers that there would be a vibrant
economic growth and future prospects in Malaysia. The addition
of Project Land 2 will enhance the Group's investment portfolio
of property development projects along the “One Belt, One

Road"” regions.
FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$100 million
for the Year (2020: approximately HK$72 million).

Revenue

During the Year, the total revenue increased by approximately
HK$28 million, or approximately 15%. Such increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in revenue generated from the sales
of construction machinery and spare parts, money lending,
asset management, securities brokerage, commodities, futures

and other financial services.
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BEEFWRE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Sales of construction machinery and spare parts and
rental income

During the Year, the sales of construction machinery and spare
parts and rental income generated from construction machinery
were approximately HK$41 million (2020: approximately HK$29
million) and approximately HK$100 million (2020: approximately
HK$100 million) respectively. The increase in revenue was mainly
attributable to the increase in the revenue from trading of used
construction machinery, due to the increased demand for

foundation equipment such as RCD machines and oscillators.

Money lending, asset management, securities
brokerage, commodities, futures and other financial
services

During the Year, the revenue from money lending, asset
management, securities brokerage, commodities, futures and
other financial services increased by HK$17 million, or 31%.
Such increase was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue

from money lending business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), net

The details of the Group's securities investments and the net

fair value gains recognised for the Year are set out as follows:

Bt %%

el & (&)

UAPEAEERSETARSE(ULQFEE
SFEREESHABE D ZEREEZQT
B FHE

RAFE  ARBEZESFREREEANAFE
W R IREII T

Percentage of
Number of Percentageof ~ Number of Percentage of total assets of
shares held  shareholdings ~ shares held ~shareholdings Fair value Fair value Fairvalue  the Group
at31March  at31March  at31March  at31March  at31March  at31March (losses)/gains  at 31 March
2020 2020 2021 2021 2020 2021 for the Year 2021
R-B=-#
R-B-RE MR- NCR--F ONCRZ-F O NCR2BE RCR--F WEEE =ZA=t-H
ZB=t-B Z=B=t-B ZB=t-B ZB=t-B =ZBR=t-B =ZBR=t-H ZOVE  HEEEEE
FEROEE 2EREAL FEROEE 2kRESM ZAYE ZAVE  (BB)/ha HEZESM
note!)  HK§milion  HK'million — HKS'million
(P 1) BEAT BEET BEET
Name/(Stock Code) 28/ (BBRE)
China Shandong Hi-Speed ~ $EILERELBEE
Financial Group Limited ~~ ARAE (412)
12) 26,058,000 0.11% 6,000 0.00% 10 - - -
CACultural Technology ~ ZEAHER
Group Limited (1566) BIRAE(1566) 35,890,000 390% - - 108 - (14) -
China Evergrande Group P EIEA£E(3333)
(3333) - - - - - - o) -
Atlantis Star Opportunities  Atlantis Star Opportunities
Fund SPC Fund SPC NAMER  NATER  NATER  NATER - - (1) -
Riverwood Multi-Growth ~ Riverwood Multi-Growth
Fund (note 2) Fund (#13£2) NAMER  NATER  NATER  NATER - M 20 10%
Unlisted debtinstrument ¥ FHERLE NARMER  NAMER  NATER  NATER 12 15 (1) 1%
Futures iy NAMER  NATER  NATER  NATER - - 6 -
130 308 4 1%
Notes: Bt
1. The percentage of shareholdings is calculated with reference to the 1. HRESLDSEHRIMBMARABZETARES

monthly return of equity issuer on movements in securities for the month
ended 31 March 2021 of the issuers publicly available on the website of
the Stock Exchange.

2. Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund (the “Riverwood Fund”) mainly invests in
listed equities of companies located in the Greater China Region (which
includes Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) or deriving
income and/or assets from the Greater China Region. The Riverwood
Fund may invest in Exchange-Traded Funds (ETFs), U.S. Treasury securities
and derivative products.

F-—FZA=+-ALARORHETANESED
AR E B, -

Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund ([ Riverwood Fund]) £
KRERFPEME(BEFBEAN - &5 BRFALREE)RQ
RIA) _F AR SR 2 AR SR A K P B U A KA
EE ° Riverwood Fund AJ B R ERX FMEEE S - £H
BlEHHRITHEER ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWRE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Other (losses)/gains, net

During the Year, other losses, net were approximately HK$20
million (2020: other gains, net of approximately HK$78 million).
Such change was mainly attributable to the extinguishment loss
of approximately HK$13 million on early principal redemption
of certain convertible note payables and loss in fair value
change of financial liabilities at FVTPL of approximately HK$12
million. In the Previous Year, there was a gain in fair value
change of financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$28
million. In addition, a one-off gain of approximately HK$32
million and HK$18 million recognised on disposal of a subsidiary
and bargain purchase in the Previous Year was no longer
applicable in the Year.

Administrative expenses

During the Year, the administrative expenses were
approximately HK$59 million (2020: approximately HK$68
million), representing a decrease of approximately 13% as
compared with the Previous Year. Among the administrative
expenses incurred during the Year, approximately HK$7 million
(2020: approximately HK$7 million) was related to depreciation
and non-cash in nature; while the remaining expenses of
approximately HK$52 million (2020: approximately HK$61
million) were mainly related to staff costs of approximately
HK$35 million (2020: approximately HK$35 million). The
decrease in administrative expenses was mainly attributable to

effective implementation in cost-saving plans.
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Hao Tian Internatio

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Impairment losses

The impairment losses on (i) property, plant and equipment; (ii)
intangible assets; and (iii) allowance on expected credit losses
on financial assets were recognised during the Year. The
impairment losses on property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets were mainly arising from the loss in respective
cash-generating units; while the allowance for expected credit
losses on financial assets was mainly attributable to the default

in loan receivables.
Share of results of associates

During the Year, the share of results of associates of
approximately HK$169 million mainly represented the share of
results arising from the excess of net fair value of identifiable
assets over costs of investments for newly acquired associates
of approximately HK$215 million and the post-acquisition loss
of approximately HK$46 million.

Share-based payment expenses

The expense of approximately HK$10 million was related to the
share awards and emolument shares granted to certain
Directors and employees. During the Year, the Company
granted approximately 262 million share awards, among which

approximately 170 million were lapsed.
Finance costs

During the Year, the finance costs were approximately HK$44
million (2020: approximately HK$14 million), representing an
increase of approximately HK$30 million as compared with the
Previous Year. The increase was mainly attributable to interest
accretion of approximately HK$25 million for convertible note

payables, which were issued in January 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWRE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")

B eI (%)

UAFEFEEESLFARMEZERS
(TR FEFEEESLTARMEZEK
#w)eEmEEZ A PEKS

The details of the listed securities investments and the fair value WRAFEE @ EHEAKRE LD ER A FER G
gains recognised during the Year are set out below: BHEANOT
Percentage of
Percentage of Percentage of total assets of
shareholdings shareholdings  Fair value at  Fair value at Fair value  the Group at
at 31 March  at 31 March 31 March 31 March gains 31 March
2020 2021 2020 2021  forthe Year 2021
R-2=-%
R-2-%F RIF--F R-F-RF RCR--F Zh=t-A
SA=t-B ZAZt-B ZAZ-R ZASt-B  RAGE GAKBEE
ZEREAL ZEREDN 2DV ZDVE 2DVEhE #EZAMW
Note HK$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK'million
i BEAT REAT REAT
Name £
QOshidori International HEEERBR LA
Holdings Limited a - 3.07% - 120 1 4%
Note a:  Oshidori International Holdings Limited (“Oshidori”) principally — Fiita: EZEEZERERAF ([EEE]) FERBRELER -
engages in investment holdings, trading and investment in securities, BEERREFS - WRH()BHFLLERDT : ((RER
and the provisions of (i) securities brokerage services; (i) placing and BHERE (I EREBBERS  (VERERS )
underwriting services; (iii) corporate finance advisory services; (iv) REEMREEEERY  RV)FREERS -
money lending services; (v) investment advisory and asset management
services; and (vi) margin financing services.
Pursuant to Oshidori’s annual report for the year ended 31 December REREEFBEE_T_TF+_A=+—HILFEZ
2020, Oshidori recorded revenue of approximately HK$280 million and FW - BEEFERAL220ESETREEKELE
total comprehensive income of approximately HK$3,449 million. A3 449 EBEAETT ©
The Group held 187,500,000 shares of Oshidori as at 31 March 2021 (31 MN-Z-—F=A=+—H  KR&EEE 187,500,000
March 2020: Nil). BEEERG (ZT_TF=A=1+—08 &) -
1 8 Annual Report % 2020/21



FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2021, the Group's current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$1,242 million (31 March 2020:
approximately HK$815 million) and HK$425 million (31 March
2020: approximately HK$250 million) respectively.

The Group has established a treasury policy with the objective
of lowering cost of funds. Therefore, funding for all its
operations have been centrally reviewed and monitored at the
Group level. To manage the Group's exposure to fluctuations in
interest rates on project, appropriate funding policies will be
applied including the use of bank and other borrowings and
placing of new shares. The management will continue its efforts
in obtaining the most privileged rates and favourable terms to
the Group for its financing.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY

BEENWE TN
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BERBNWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Gearing ratio and indebtedness

The Group monitors its capital structure based on the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts divided by total
capital. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position plus net debts.

The capital structure (including its gearing ratio) as at 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020 was as follows:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSI

M E R ()
EEAELERREY

AEENEEARLX/EEERHEENEHE -
LR REBFRR AN @EAE - XA
BIEAMBIRRERPINRZ [#a] IERFE
oo

E+—EIE’9§$,\\u%(’lﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁtt?—)ﬁﬂ—l— :

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

:g:—qi — ? — EE

ZA=+—H =ZA=+—H

HK$'million  HK$'million

BEERT BEET

(audited) (audited)

(REX) (f&&==%)

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 251

Convertible note payables FEfT AT AR R AR 132
Corporate note payables EMRERE

— at amortised cost — Hﬁi%%ﬁz$ -

— at FVTPL NFEFTEREEEE ABE -

Total borrowings - E G 383

Less: cash and cash equivalents B RERBEEED (220)

pledged bank deposits BEERRRITER (5)

Net debts (EV 158

Total equity s 4aRE 988

Total capital B4R 1,146

Gearing ratio BEABLE 14%

Except for the borrowings with aggregate amounts of
approximately HK$247 million which were carried at fixed
interest rates, the remaining borrowings of the Group bore
floating interest rates.
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MANAGEMENT DIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Gearing ratio and indebtedness (continued)

As at 31 March 2021, cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in the following currencies:

BEENWE TN

M E R ()
EERBLERRER (B)

R-ZFB-_—F=ZA=1+—8 HRE2LRREFEYD
AT S B ¥ EHE -

HK$'million
BEBT

HK$ BT
uss$ ETT
EUR BT

As at 31 March 2021, the maturity and currency profile for the
Group's bank and other borrowings and corporate note

payables at amortised cost are set out as follows:

Within 1 year
—£Rr
HK$'million
BEBT

KRB —F=ZA=+—8B AEERTREM
EEARIZBHER AR BN EEREZ2H
BREEASHEINWT

2nd year 3-5 years Total
EF =ERHE et
HK$'million  HK$'million HK$'million
BEER BEBER BEER

HK$ AT _

Charges on Group's assets

As at 31 March 2021, approximately 30% of the Group's
borrowings and other borrowings are secured by (1) leasehold
land and building; (2) bank deposits; and (3) machinery and

motor vehicles.

AEBEEEHRT
RZE-—F=ZA=+—8 KAEBH30%2E

ENEMEENAMNBELMRET @ QRTHE
AR R (3) M S B AR
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 KB

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWRE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group's pledged bank deposits and finance lease
receivables bear fixed interest rates. The Group's cash at bank
balances bear floating interest rates. The Group also has
borrowings, obligation under finance leases and loan from a
director which bear interests at fixed and floating interest rates.
Exposure to interest rate risk exists on those balances subject to
floating interest rate when there are unexpected adverse
interest rate movements. The Group's policy is to manage its
interest rate risk, working within an agreed framework, to ensure
that there are no undue exposures to significant interest rate

movements and rates are appropriately fixed when necessary.
Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with most of the
transactions denominated and settled in HK$, JPY and EUR. The
Group's exposure to foreign currency risk primarily arises from
certain financial instruments including trade receivables, bank
balances and cash, trade payables, borrowings and obligation
under finance leases which are denominated in JPY, EUR and
US$. The Group does not adopt any hedging strategy in the
long run but the management continuously monitors the
foreign exchange risk exposure and might enter into foreign
exchange forward contracts on a case-by-case basis. The Group
has not used any hedging contracts to engage in speculative
activities.

Credit risk and liquidity risk

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position throughout the Year. The Group strives
to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its
customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group's liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements.
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Hao Tian Internatio

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 120 staff (31 March 2020:
128).

The Group generally recruits its employees from the open
market or by referral and enters into employment contracts with
its employees. The Group offers attractive remuneration
packages to the employees. In addition to salaries, the
employees would be entitled to bonuses subject to the
Company's and employees’ performance. The Group provides
a defined contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund as
required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the
eligible employees. The Group also adopted a share award
scheme.

The operation staff consists of experienced machinery operators
and mechanics. While such employees are highly demanded in
the market, the Group manages to maintain a relatively stable
workforce by continuous recruitment from the market or
through referrals. New employees are required to attend
induction courses to ensure that they are equipped with the
necessary skills and knowledge to perform their duties. In order
to promote overall efficiency, the Group also offers technical
trainings to existing employees on the operation of more
advanced construction machinery from time to time. Selected
operation staff are required to attend external trainings which
are conducted by the manufacturers of the construction
machines to acquire up-to-date technical skills and knowledge
on the products of the Group.
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BEEFWRE DM

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend to the shareholders of the Company for the Year (2020:

Nil).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Details of equity fund raising activities during the Year and the

actual use of proceeds are as follows:

REBE

RASEEEE

BRAZT

RAFE  EFSTEZAANR R KBRS R
E(ZZE_ZTF : 4|) -

RAFE  BAKRERDH  FBLAEREAZE

Date of Actual use of proceeds as
announcement Events Net proceeds Intended use of net proceeds at the date of this report
REBEAHZ
AERE £ FRERERE FREFRzBERR FEREERAR
7 September 2020 Placing of a total of Approximately ~ —  approximately HK$33,220,244to Al the proceeds have been
234,296,000 new shares at ~ HK$66,440,488 be used for general working used as intended
the placing price of capital of the Group; and
HK$0.285 each
—  approximately HK$33,220,244 to
be used to support the
development of the existing
financial business of the Group,
including securities brokerage,
asset management and securities
investments.
“ECRFNAALA REAL24296000/ 4166440488 BT — 4133220244 BLBBRAEE— FAMBIACKETRE

Mgt EEER
§%0.2858 T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the Year, the Group had the following material

acquisitions:

— 100% equity interests in a subsidiary, incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), in January 2021. This
subsidiary holds 22% equity interests in an associate,
incorporated in Cambodia, which owns a land for

development in Cambodia; and

— 100% equity interests in a subsidiary, incorporated in the
BVI, in February 2021. This subsidiary, through its

subsidiaries, owns a land for development in Malaysia.

The Group had not made any material disposal of subsidiaries

and associated companies during the Year.
BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The past year was full of opportunities and challenges. The
COVID-19 pandemic is affecting the pace of global economic
recovery and adds uncertainties to the financial market.
However, the Group implements prudent business strategies to
establish a diversified business portfolio that can survive the
uncertain market conditions while exploring high-quality asset
investment opportunities to explore the growth potential of
profit and capital value for shareholders and investors of the

Company.
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onstruction Investment Group Limited £

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWRE DM

BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)
Property Development Business

Located in the Indo-China Peninsula, Cambodia is an important
stop on the ancient Maritime Silk Road and an important
location for China to promote the “One Belt, One Road”
construction in the 21st century. The annual GDP growth rate of
Cambodia has been increasing rapidly and its economic growth
rate has ranked among the top six in the world. Now Cambodia
is also preparing an economic transformation, with many
business opportunities emerging. Meanwhile, Cambodia has a
decent investment environment and the market is highly
liberalised and internationalised, attracting the attention and
injection of global capital. While taking part in the development
potential of the land development project, the Group is also
exploring more business opportunities to invest in more
business sectors in Cambodia and to share the development
dividend of this high growing emerging market in the future.

At the same time, Malaysia is one of the most popular countries
in Asia. From 2017 to 2018, Malaysia was also selected as the
second most competitive ASEAN in the world, second only to
Singapore. In recent years, Malaysia’s GDP has continued to
rise, which proves that Malaysia has strong investment potential.
According to statistics released by the Department of Statistics
Malaysia, Malaysia's nominal GDP has grown at a compound
annual growth rate of approximately 5% in recent years. The
Group is also deploying and looking for local high-quality
projects, following the layout along the “One Belt, One Road”

regions.
Existing Businesses
Looking forward, the Group remains confident in its existing

businesses and will continue to monitor the performance in

order to maximise the returns to its shareholders.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENRSNEERBEFS

The biographical details of the Directors and the Senior
Management of the Group as at the date of this report are as

follows:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Fok Chi Tak, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director on 28 February 2017 and co-chief executive officer on 1
May 2020 (re-designated as chief executive officer on 30 June
2020). Mr. Fok is a member of nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”). He is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Fok holds a master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Fok involves in the formulation of strategic plans for
the business development of the Group, fund raising activities
and potential merger and acquisition activities of the Group.
Mr. Fok is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Fok is also a fellow member of The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Fok currently serves
as an executive director and the chief financial officer of Aceso
Life Science Group Limited (formerly known as Hao Tian
Development Group Limited) (Stock code: 474), the controlling
shareholder of the Company, whose shares are listed on the

main board of the Stock Exchange.
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EERGAREEEBEEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (continued)

Mr. Zheng Li, aged 34, was appointed as an executive Director
on 1 September 2019 and was the (co-)chief executive officer
from September 2019 to June 2020. Mr. Zheng has obtained
LL.M. (Master of laws) at University of Chicago and a doctorate
degree in Economics at Renmin University of China. Mr. Zheng
was the executive director of China Vered Financial Holding
Corporation Limited (formerly known as China Minsheng
Financial Holding Corporation Limited) (“CVFH") (Stock code:
245) from July 2018 until August 2019 and acted as the acting
chief executive officer of CVFH from July 2018 to May 2019.
Prior to this, Mr. Zheng was employed with Minsheng
E-commerce Company Holding (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (RAEH
ZR% (&) A R A &) and Minsheng Royal Fund Management
Co,ltd (RE MR E & BB B R A ) where he took a
management role in investment and fund management. Mr.
Zheng served as the secretary to the Office of Board of
Directors of China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd. (Stock code:
1988) from August 2011 to November 2014. Mr. Zheng is the
founder and managing partner at Jiaxingjunli Investment
Management Co., ltd. (R B BRI EEE B R 2 d) and
Jiaxingzeyu Investment Management Co., Ltd. (FEZFHEE
BAERRAT).

Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James, aged 53, was appointed as an
executive Director on 24 September 2014. He is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tang obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree in aerospace engineering from
Syracuse University and has been serving the Group since his
graduation. Mr. Tang is responsible for the overall strategic
management and development of the Group’s business
operations, marketing and business development and finance
and administration. Mr. Tang was appointed as the director of
Chim Kee Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in June 1989 and took over the leadership of the
Group in May 1994. Mr. Tang has over 25 years of experience in

rental and trading of construction machines.

28  Annual Report 44 2020/21

HITES(E)

BERE U RZT—AFNLA—BEZFT
ARITES YER_ZT—hhFALAZE_Z_F
FRNAHBETARRE (BE)ITHREE - 84
BAZINFABEEEEBETI2MRAPERAR
RELEBF L - WEEAR T \FLAE=
E-NFNAEFTHESRIZERBER AR (FIESR
ERASBIERARARF) ([FEee)) (RHKR
SR 245) MBITES - RRZE—\FLAE=
E-NFRAEAPHRESBMONITEE - LA -
BrREXERREBRZERCRIDBRATER
ENRESEEBRAR  BEHABERERES
BEEES - HAAER T ——FN\AZ=ZE T
F+—AETTBERERITEROBERAR (BRHR
R I1988) B ESWAENM - BEE AZEE
BREEEBRARRFEHEFREETERBRA
AIMEIRAREEERA -

BRERE 3% RZT—NFNAAZTHMA
BZERMTES - RTETARRETHER
AlZER MAELESHARESMATIRES
TEM BEXR—EERNAER - HELR
EEREMEERAKEERLSESR R L8
EBER MBERTE - BEER-ANAER
AEZEARRRTZENBRRGRERARE
EUYR—NNEFAARERNER - MELER
THE K 55 & 2 S A 8 25 FF 188



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 KB ZEZITE LB GR A A

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (continued)

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia), aged 52, was appointed as an
executive Director on 28 February 2017. Dr. Ou is a member of
remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”). He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Dr. Ou holds a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Civil
& Resource Engineering from The University of Western
Australia, Australia. Dr. Ou also holds two Bachelor of
Engineering degrees in Engineering Management & Structural
Engineering respectively. Dr. Ou has over 30 years of
professional engineering and management experience in civil
and industrial engineering areas both in Australia and China,
including residential and commercial high-rise buildings as well
as projects in oil & gas, mining and infrastructure industries. Dr.
Ou had been a senior staff member in the world’s leading
energy & resource firms including Kellogg Brown & Root
(formerly known as KBR Halliburton), WorleyParsons Pty Ltd., as
well as Sedgman Ltd., which is specialized in coal processing
and handling plants. Dr. Ou was an independent non-executive
director of Rey Resources Limited (a company listed on ASX
focusing on exploration and developing energy resources in
Australia). Dr. Ou participated in a number of key energy and
resource projects around the world such as acting as the Lead
Civil and Structural Engineer for BHP Billiton RGP6 Jimblebar
project, Rio Tinto iron ore Dove Siding expansion project;
Chevron Wheatstone Domgas LNG Pipeline project, Yemen
LNG Project (in the Republic of Yemen) and Western Australia
Dampier to Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline (Stage 5B) project,
etc. Dr. Ou was also an officer at Western Australia government
agency from 2003 to 2006. Dr. QOu also has extensive experience
and network in China. He was the general manager and the
chief engineer of Fujian Liming Construction Company* (& &4
Z2 A 7 £ T 2 A 7)) and deputy general manager of Fuzhou
Henli Real Estate Development Pty Ltd ({8 M= REHEMRES
R 2 A]) from 1993 to 1997. He was a guest professor for Inner
Mongolia University (W5 &7 A2 ) and Inner Mongolia University
of Science & Technology (A & £H%AZ) in China. Currently,
Dr. Ou is an executive director of Aceso Life Science Group
Limited (formerly known as Hao Tian Development Group
Limited) (Stock code: 474), the controlling shareholder of the
Company, whose shares are listed on the main board of the

Stock Exchange.

* for identification purpose only

EENEREEEBEFE

HITES(E)

BEREL - Armtomn) 5258 RZT—+F
“RAZTN\BEZERNTES - MELAAR
AFMEES((HFMEESGKE - RIVEEAR
RNAZZEMBRARIZES - T HABRKAF TR
FRAZ L REERTIZBEBE L6 o KT
DRFAREERIREI NEBIRREIRESE L
B M EAERAMGAMPEZRARIET
BMEFEAINFU-FELR  DERBMEE
SERE  URABRRAR  BERER R
TRIENER - RENZHEHEREIRANEEIR KL
BRAFEASABE © B1EKellogg Brown &
Root ( A ## KBR Halliburton) * WorleyParsons Pty
Ltd. B2 {55 B v 00 T 0 BR 32 Bk 9 Sedgman Ltd.
A & {F Rey Resources Limited (— RN B H
SR LT - BFERMAREIRERRAZE D
RNARDBIERITES - MIEL2HLIELIRE
ZWEERERERER - 71 & 2 HBHP Billiton
RGP6 JimblebarX8 B + 71 % Dove Siding# & T
2 + Chevron Wheatstone R AR EEIHE - 19
BRAERARIAR (FEPIHME) - FRAFEH
KBZEIHMANRRAREE (5B ER) AR FH 4
TARREBIRM - BIE TR _TTE=FF
TERF AR GEARIMNBTER - SIMNERTE
THETEHEREENRLBLELEAB  ®RBER
—NMN=FE2-NNEFREERELERARET
BAB 2 BRI RATIRE - AREMNZREM
ERERRAREGAKLE  REREPEAR S
ARBRARERBEREBNTFEHIE - RIELHRE
RRRERRRGEHEGR R EEFRAE (A1
EREREEFRAR]) (KRHONERZFFERE
o RS  474) ZBITES -

Annual Report 43 2020/21 29



onstruction Investment Group Limited e

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBBERNE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xu Lin, aged 60, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 6 October 2020. Mr. Xu is a member of remuneration
committee of the Company. Mr. Xu holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Laws from Xian Political College, China and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Business Administration from Capital University of
Economics and Business in China. Mr. Xu has been engaged in
economic management for a long time. He was once the
director of the Taxation Department and the Customs
Department of the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic
of China, vice-minister of the Economic Department of the
Liaison Office of the Central People's Government, minister of
the Administration and Finance Department, Hong Kong
business development director of CITIC Limited and the
chairman of Kaisa Financial Group (Hong Kong) Company
Limited. With the exposure to several positions, Mr. Xu has solid
foundation in economic theory and rich experience in
management. Mr. Xu was an executive director and executive
vice-chairman of DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company
Limited (Stock code: 620) from April 2020 to February 2021, an
independent non-executive director of Lamtex Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 1041) from March 2020 to July 2020 and an
executive director of Zhaobangji Properties Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 1660) from October 2019 to March 2020, whose

shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (continued)

Mr. Wei Bin, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 6 October 2020. Mr. Wei is a
member of nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wei
holds a Bachelor's degree in Auditing from Zhongnan University
of Economics and a Master's degree in Finance from Jinan
University, and is a senior accountant and a senior auditor in
China. He is also a non-practicing member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wei is currently the
senior partner in the asset management division of CDH
Investments Management (Hong Kong) Limited, an
independent non-executive director of Honghua Group Limited
(Stock code: 196) and an executive director of OCI International
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 329). He is also an independent
director of Huize Holding Ltd., a NASDAQ-listed company
(NASDAQ: HUIZ). Mr. Wei was the chief accountant and the
chief financial officer of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited and has nearly 30 years of experience in complex

transactions, M&A integration and enterprise management.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua, aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 28 February 2017. Mr.
Lee is the chairman of audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
and a member of each of remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Lee is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lee has extensive experience in the fields of
auditing, accounting and finance. Mr. Lee currently serves as an
independent non-executive director of Cornerstone Financial
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8112), whose shares are listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee currently also serves as
an independent non-executive director of Aceso Life Science
Group Limited (formerly known as Hao Tian Development
Group Limited) (Stock code: 474) and Up Energy Development
Group Limited (Stock code: 307), whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee was an executive
director of Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited
(formerly known as Link-Asia International Co. Ltd.) (Stock code:
1143) from November 2015 to December 2019 and an
independent non-executive director of each of China Fortune
Investments (Holding) Limited (Stock code: 8116) from May 2007
to March 2021 and Farnova Group Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited) (Stock code:
8153) from December 2007 to May 2021. He was also an
independent non-executive director of Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd.
(Stock code: 1353, whose shares were delisted on the main
board of the Stock Exchange with effect from 8 February 2021)
from April 2017 to February 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(continued)

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 28 February 2017. Mr. Mak is the
chairman of each of remuneration committee and nomination
committee and a member of audit committee of the Company.
Mr. Mak graduated from the China University of Political
Science and Law with a Bachelor of Law degree in 1998. Mr.
Mak is a legal executive of Chiu, Szeto & Cheng, a firm of
solicitors in Hong Kong. Mr. Mak has been working in the legal
industry for over 30 years. Mr. Mak currently serves as an
independent non-executive director of Talent Property Group
Limited (Stock code: 760) and Up Energy Development Group
Limited (Stock code: 307), whose shares are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange. From April 2017 to February 2021,
Mr. Mak served as an independent non-executive director of
Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 1353, whose shares were
delisted from the main board of the Stock Exchange with effect
from 8 February 2021).

Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot, aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 17 March 2017. Mr. Li is
a member of each of audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Li has obtained
a Bachelor of Arts Degree at the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and has obtained the Postgraduate Certificate in
Business Administration from University of Leicester in England.
Mr. Li is the executive director of First Shanghai Securities
Limited (“First Shanghai”). Prior to joining First Shanghai, he
was the managing director of South China Financial Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 619), whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Li is a chartered wealth manager of the
Chartered Wealth Manager Institute and the director of the
Hong Kong Association of Online Brokers. Mr. Li has held
various senior positions including director of corporate
development and vice president of corporate planning and
development in financial institutes over his 15 years of

experience in the financial industry.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(continued)

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham (alias Abraham Razack), aged 75,
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 15 October 2020. Mr. Shek is also a member of
audit committee of the Company. Mr. Shek graduated from the
University of Sydney and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree and a
Diploma in Education. He was appointed as a Justice of the
Peace in 1995 and was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and the
Gold Bauhinia Star by the government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “HKSAR”) in 2007 and 2013
respectively. Mr. Shek is currently a member of the HKSAR
Legislative Council representing the Real Estate and
Construction Functional Constituency, a member of the
Advisory Committee on Corruption of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption, a member of the Court and
Council of The University of Hong Kong and a honorary member
of Court of The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology.

Mr. Shek is an independent non-executive director of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1313),
Chuang’s China Investments Limited (Stock code: 298),
Chuang'’s Consortium International Limited (Stock code: 367),
Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 120),
Country Garden Holdings Company Limited (Stock code: 2007),
CSI Properties Limited (Stock code: 497), Everbright Grand
China Assets Limited (Stock code: 3699), Far East Consortium
International Limited (Stock code: 35), ITC Properties Group
Limited (Stock code: 199), Lai Fung Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 1125), Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 1212), Landing International Development Limited (Stock
code: 582), NWS Holdings Limited (Stock code: 659) and
Paliburg Holdings Limited (Stock code: 617), all being listed
public companies in Hong Kong. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited
(the manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust (Stock
code: 2778)) and Regal Portfolio Management Limited (the
manager of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (Stock code:
1881)), both trusts are listed on the Stock Exchange. From
January 2017, Mr. Shek has acted as an independent non-
executive director of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 530) and has been re-designated to an executive director
of the same since March 2021. Mr. Shek has ceased to act as an
independent non-executive director of SUIM Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 880) since May 2021 and was appointed as an

advisor of the same thereafter.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(continued)

During the last three years, Mr. Shek was an independent non-
executive director of Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 47) and MTR Corporation Limited (Stock code: 66), all

being listed public companies in Hong Kong.
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping was appointed as the company secretary on
1 February 2019. Ms. Chan is a solicitor qualified to practise in
Hong Kong and a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong.
She is also a consultant of a law firm in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan
has many years of experience in advising on corporate finance,
mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance, regulatory
and compliance matters. Prior to joining the Company, she was
the company secretary and general counsel of China Shandong
Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited, a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code:
412). Ms. Chan has a bachelor of laws degree and a
postgraduate certificate in laws from the University of Hong
Kong. She also has a master of corporate finance degree from

the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Chi Hang, aged 39, joined Hao Tian Finance Company
Limited as vice president on 2 February 2015 and was appointed
as general manager of Hao Tian Credit Company Limited since
1 October 2017. Mr. Lau graduated from Benedictine College in
USA with a Bachelor Degree in Commerce. Mr. Lau has more
than 10 years of experience in the banking and financial sector.
Before joining the Company, Mr. Lau has worked in South China
Financial Credits Limited, Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited and BOC Credit Card (International) Limited.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company and the Board are devoted to achieving and
maintaining high standard of corporate governance as the
Board believes that effective corporate governance practices
are fundamental in enhancing the shareholder value and
safeguarding the interests of the shareholders and other
stakeholders. Accordingly, the Company has adopted sound
corporate governance principles that emphasise a quality
Board, effective internal control, stringent disclosure practices
and transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except for the deviation from
the code provision A.2.1.

Under code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual in order to ensure that there is clear division
of responsibilities between the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive of the Company. During the Year, the following
changes have taken place:

() Mr. Zheng Li, an executive Director, has ceased to act as
the co-chief executive officer of the Company with effect
from 30 June 2020. Mr. Fok Chi Tak, an executive Director,
has then been re-designated as the chief executive officer;
and

(i)  Mr. Zhang Sheng has ceased to act as an executive
Director and the vice chairman of the Board with effect
from 28 August 2020.

Subsequent to the abovementioned changes, the Company has
not appointed a chairman and the Board provides leadership
for the Company. Having considered the business operation of
the Group at the material time, it is believed that the Board,
which consists of experienced professionals, can function
effectively as a whole, while the executive Directors along with
other members of senior management of the Company are
capable of overseeing the day-to-day management of the
Group under the strong corporate governance structure in
place.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(continued)

The Company nevertheless understands the importance of
compliance with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code and
will continue to review the structure from time to time and
consider appointing a chairman/chairlady of the Board as and
when appropriate.

The Group commits to continuously improving its corporate
governance practices by periodic review to ensure that the
Group continues to meet the requirements of the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct of the Company regarding Directors’ transactions of
the listed securities of the Company. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code and its code of
conduct during the Year.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
Role and function

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the
business operations of the Group. It formulates strategic
directions, oversees the operations and monitors the financial
performance of the Group. The management is delegated with
power and authority by the Board for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group. The management is
accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall operation.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Role and function (continued)

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership and
control of the Group and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the Group's affairs. The Board focuses on
formulating the Group's overall strategies, approving the annual
development plan and budget, monitoring financial and
operating performance, reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control system and supervising and managing the

management'’s performance.

Regarding the Group's corporate governance, during the Year,
the Board has, in accordance with the terms of reference,
performed the following duties:

e determining and reviewing the policies and practices on

corporate governance of the Group;

o reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior

management;

o reviewing and monitoring the Group's policies and
practices in compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

o developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of

conduct applicable to the Directors and employees; and

*  reviewing the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this corporate governance report.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Group to the management.
The delegated functions are reviewed by the Board periodically
to ensure they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.
The Board gives clear directions to the management as to the
matters that must be approved by the Board before decisions

are made on behalf of the Group by the management.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES EESHARKRESEER(E)

(continued)

Composition N4
As at the date of this report, the Board comprises four executive RAREALE  EFZCRENEHNTES - WA
Directors, two non-executive Directors and four independent  JERITE B RIUZBHIIEITESE -
non-executive Directors.
Membership of Board Committee(s)
EEZEECHE

Executive Directors:
PITEE:
Mr. Fok Chi Tak (re-designated from co-chief executive Member of the Nomination Committee

officer to chief executive officer with effect from REEZBENE

30 June 2020)
ESERE (BT —FTFNNA=+HE

H BT AR L S BT TR E)
Mr. Zheng Li (ceased to act as the co-chief executive

officer with effect from 30 June 2020)
R (B FE_FTFNHA=1THE

TR THAEZ,)
Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James
RSt E
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia) Member of the Remuneration Committee
B E T - X P CEN) FMEEENXE
Non-executive Directors:
FHITES !
Mr. Xu Lin (appointed on é October 2020) Member of the Remuneration Committee
MR (R E—FF+ANAEZT) FMEEENXE
Mr. Wei Bin (appointed on 6 October 2020) Member of the Nomination Committee
BUAE(RZFE-_FFLHANAEZE) REEZEEKE
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Composition (continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESgARRESEER(E)

A (1)

Membership of Board Committee(s)
EEZEgZHE

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua

FRELLE

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong
ERELE

Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot
FEBELE

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham (appointed on15 October 2020)
ABREE(R-_BE_FF+HTHAEEE)

40

Annual Report % 2020/21

Chairman of the Audit Committee

BERLZEEEFE

Member of the Nomination Committee
REEZEEEKE

Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEEEXE

Member of the Audit Committee
BEREZEENE

Chairman of the Nomination Committee
RELZBEEEF

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
FMEEEELR

Member of the Audit Committee
EREEENKE

Member of the Nomination Committee
RELZEEKE

Member of the Remuneration Committee

HEEZEEKE

Member of the Audit Committee
BiZZEEKE
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Composition (continued)

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
there was no financial, business, family or other material/

relevant relationship among the members of the Board.
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has complied with rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules. Throughout the Year, there were at least three
independent non-executive Directors on the Board and the
number of independent non-executive Directors represents at
least one-third of the Board. As such, there existed a strong
independent element in the Board, which could effectively
exercise independent judgement. The Company has also
complied with rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules which stipulates
that one of the independent non-executive Directors must
possess appropriate professional qualification or accounting or
related financial management expertise. In compliance with the
CG Code, the independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified as such in all corporate communications

that disclose the names of the Directors.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be

independent under the Listing Rules.

ESEARRESEEER(E)
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each Director has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years unless
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other, and is subject to termination
provisions therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of
Directors as set out in the Articles of Association.

Pursuant to paragraph A.4.2 of the Code Provisions, all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to re-
election by Shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. By virtue of Article 112 of the Articles of
Association, the Board shall have the power from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy on the Board or as an additional Director. Any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be

eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting, at least one-third of the
Directors for the time being will retire from office by rotation.
However, if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall be
the number of retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire
in each year will be those who have been longest in the office
since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on the
same day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree

among themselves) be determined by lot.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Supply of and access to information

All Board members have separate and independent access to
the Company’s management to fulfill their duties, and upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
under appropriate circumstances and at the Company's
expenses. All Directors also have access to the company
secretary of the Company who is responsible for ensuring that
the Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed. Board meetings are structured so as to encourage
open discussion, frank debate and active participation by the
Directors in meetings. The Company provides the Board with
such information and explanations as are necessary to enable
the Directors to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board. Queries raised by
the Directors are answered fully and promptly. Meeting agenda
accompanied by relevant Board/Board committee papers are
distributed to the Directors/Board committee members with
reasonable notice in advance of the Board/Board committee
meeting. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
committees, which recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board and decisions reached thereat,
including any concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by
any Director, are kept by the company secretary of the

Company and open for inspection by the Directors.
Liability insurance for the Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering
the liabilities in respect of any legal action which may be taken
against the Directors arising out of its corporate activities. The

insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Directors’ continuing professional development
program

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code during the Year. All Directors
have participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has arranged for, and provided fund for, training in the form of
in-house training, seminars or other appropriate courses during
the Year and relevant training materials have been distributed
to all the Directors.

Board and General Meetings

The Board meets regularly and, in addition to regular meetings,
as and when required by particular circumstances. During the
Year, the Directors’ attendance of the Board/Board committees

meetings is set out as follows:

ESEARREEEER(E)

EERFEERRENE

EREFHERANSENAFEDETEEERTA

25T AR A6.5 15 %ﬁ“%%ﬂ//j—iﬂiﬁi

BR - AR RBERFOMENRE - AR

ERAFRERFLBEH - i%%JIIZEZﬁi%WﬁB

B A G REMAERE - ARSI
BRETERESE -

EEERRRAE

ExgxHaRed Bl TEBEERE
NBERARGZ RAFE EFHFES
g/ ERLZERGRZBEREIIMT

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEEERY BrEREnY

Executive Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration General
Board ~ Committee  Committee ~ Committee  Committee meetings
B2¢ §fizRE ENZE® R4ZEE HHZse kRAg
Total number of meetings BrERANY 18 17 3 4 b 4
Executive Directors: HiTEE
Mr. Fok Chi Tak *‘—”ﬁii 17/18 77T NANER Yo NATER 44
Mr. Zheng Li Lt 1518 M NANER O NATER NATER 24
Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James Eﬂ%*”ii 18/18 A7 NAMER  NATER  NATER 44
Dr. Zhiliang Qu, J.P. (Australia) IEnEL ATEL(EN) 16/18 N7 NATER  NATER 56 34
Mr. Zhang Sheng (Note 1) EH%‘%E(WE ) mn 812 NATER n Y NATER
Non-executive Directors: FonEE:
Mr. Xu Lin (Note 2 S (E2) M NATER NAMER  NATER 0n 33
Mr. Wei Bin (Note 3) Bl (H3) M NANER  NATER 1M NAMER 23
Independent Non-executive Directors:  BUFHTES :
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua FRELE 718 NATEE 33 44 5/6 44
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong RRRRH 1818 NATNEE 33 44 bl 44
Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot TERLE 1818 NAZTER 3 44 bl 44
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham (Note 4) REHEL (W) 56 NATES 02 NATEE  NATEE 33

44
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Board and General Meetings (continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Zhang Sheng resigned as an executive Director and ceased to be a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
with effect from 28 August 2020.

2. Mr. Xu Lin was appointed as a non-executive Director and a member of
the Remuneration Committee with effect from 6 October 2020.

3 Mr. Wei Bin was appointed as a non-executive Director and a member of
the Nomination Committee with effect from 6 October 2020.

4. Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee with effect from
15 October 2020.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established (i) Executive Committee, (i) Audit
Committee, (iii) Remuneration Committee, and (iv) Nomination
Committee with defined terms of reference. The terms of
reference of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, which explain their
respective roles and the authority delegated to them by the
Board, are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice and other assistance under appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 23 October
2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraphs C.3 of the CG Code. The Audit Committee currently
comprises four independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua (chairman), Mr. Mak Yiu Tong, Mr. Li
Chi Keung Eliot and Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things, to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group. It also acts as an important link
between the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters
within the scope of the group audit. Meetings shall be held at
least twice a year.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee

during the Year and up to the date of this report included:

(a)

reviewing the audited accounts and final results
announcement for the Year and the interim report and the
interim results announcement for the six months ended 30
September 2020,

reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and ensuring compliance with the relevant
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other statutory

requirements;

reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems;

meeting with the external auditors to go through any
significant audit issues or key findings noted during the
audit of the Group's final results for the Year and the
unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2020;

reviewing the continuing connected transactions entered

into by the Group; and

making recommendations on the appointment,
remuneration and terms of engagement of the new

external auditor.

All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been addressed

by the management. The work and findings of the Audit

Committee have been reported to the Board. During the Year,

there was no issue brought to the attention of the management

and the Board which were of significant importance to require

disclosure in this annual report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23
October 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph B.1 of the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises five members, namely Mr. Mak Yiu Tong
(chairman), Dr. Zhiliang Ou, Mr. Xu Lin, Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua,
and Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are, amongst other things, to make
recommendations to the Board on the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to the
Directors and senior management and on the Group's policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management. No individual Director was allowed to be involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year included:

(@) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
the Company's policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management’s remuneration;

(b) assessing performance of executive Directors;

(c) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and senior
management with reference to, among others, the Board's
corporate goals and objectives, their merits and
contributions; and

(d) making recommendations to the Board on the adoption of
a share award scheme and the grants of award shares to
eligible participants.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group. In addition, the Directors’
remuneration is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee of
the Company annually. Details of the Directors’ remuneration

are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the Year, the remuneration of senior management
(whose biographies are set out in the section headed
"Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report), other than the Directors, is listed as below
by band:

EEHH

EEFMIREFERBEES 2B  BEEEK
BARAEREZ REETE ° I EFFHMEA
REAFHEEEBFRE - EFFMFBIR
A MARMES -

SREEASHH

RAEE  BREFIN SRERAR (HEEHRN
AERNEERBREEEREFE] —8) 2%
BEEIZIT

No. of person

AE

HK$1,000,000 and below

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed under
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 8 to the

consolidated financial statements.
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 23
October 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph A.5 of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises five members, namely Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (chairman),
Mr. Fok Chi Tak, Mr. Wei Bin, Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua and Mr.
Li Chi Keung Eliot. The Nomination Committee is mainly
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the

Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination

Committee during the Year and up to the date of this annual

report included:

(a)

reviewing and discussing the Board's structure, size and
composition, diversity as well as the competence,
experience, academic background and qualification of its

members;

reviewing retirement of Directors by rotation, the re-
appointment of retiring Directors at annual general

meetings;

assessing the independence of independent non-

executive Directors;

considering and making recommendations on the
appointment of Mr. Xu Lin, Mr. Wei Bin and Mr. Shek Lai
Him Abraham, the new Directors appointed during the
Year;

considering and making recommendations on the
appointment of Mr. Fok Chi Tak, an executive Director, as

the chief executive officer of the Company; and

reviewing the board diversity policy and director nomination

policy of the Company and making relevant recommendations.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of
candidates from Board members for its consideration. The
Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by Board members. The factors in assessing

the suitability of a proposed candidate for director include:

e business experience relevant and beneficial to the
Company, taking into account the need for diversity of the
Board, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, knowledge, professional

experience and skills;
e character and integrity;
o accomplishments in personal careers;
o independence;

e willingness to devote sufficient time to discharge duties as

a Board member;

and such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.
The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the

Board's consideration and approval.
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy. A summary
of such board diversity policy, the measurable objectives set for
implementing such board diversity policy, and the progress of

achieving those objectives are set out below.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued)
Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, the diversity of the Board
has been considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for

the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
potential contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

Monitoring

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring
achievement of the measurable objectives as set out in the
board diversity policy.

Diversity of the Board

The existing board members are well experienced in the
construction industry, investment or finance businesses. Some
of them are professionals in project management, finance,

accounting or legal with extensive experience.

In view of the present scale and complexities of the Group's
operations and the nature of the risks and challenges it faces,
the Nomination Committee considers the Company has
achieved a right balance of skills, experience, knowledge and

diversity among the existing Board members.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The Board would
consider, inter alia, the following factors before declaring or

recommending dividend to the Shareholders:

the Company'’s actual and expected financial performance;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company;

e the level of the Company's debts to equity ratio, return on

equity and the relevant financial covenants;

®  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by any contract entered into by the Company or

its subsidiaries;

e the Company's expected working capital requirements

and future expansion plans;

° the general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Company and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance

and position of the Company; and
e any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.
Any payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the
Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association.
The Board will continually review the dividend policy from time

to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount or at all for any given period.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group in
accordance with the statutory requirements and accounting
standards. The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities
to ensure that the financial statements for the Group are
published in a timely manner. The management has provided
the Board with monthly updates and sufficient information for
the Board to develop and maintain a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. The Directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong, which reflect
amounts that are based on the best estimates and reasonable,
informed and prudent judgment of the Board and management
with an appropriate consideration to materiality. The Directors,
having made appropriate enquires, confirm that they are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern.

The accounting systems and internal control of the Group are
designed to prevent any misappropriation of the Group's
assets, any unauthorized transactions as well as to ensure the
accuracy of the accounting records and the true and fairness of

the financial statements.

The Board also acknowledges its responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
Company'’s annual and interim reports, other announcements
and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules,
and reports to the regulators as well as to information required

to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report contained

in this annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The total fees paid/payable in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided by the external auditors during the Year are

as follows:

Auditor’s remuneration (BDO Limited)

SR BEN B &
AFEINER B R B NFELREE
/N2 RAEENT
REMMS (BB EREEHMERME
PRAH)

Fee paid/payable for
the year ended 31 March

2021
BE-E-—-f=ZRA=+—H
LFEEZER ERER
HK$'million

BEBT

Audit services ENZIRTE
Non-audit services IEFIZARTS
Total FEE

Auditor's remuneration (ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited)

BB (FERESTMEBHAERAR)

Fee paid/payable for
the year ended 31 March

2021
BE-Z-_—fF=H=+-—H
LHFEEZER EAER
HKS$'million

BEER

Audit services ENZ IR
Non-audit services IEEZ RS
Total 4t
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control and risk management system,
which is designed to provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement of management and
financial information and records or against financial losses or
fraud. The Group has in place an effective internal control
system which encompasses sound control environment,
appropriate segregation of duties, well defined policies and
procedures, close monitoring and is reviewed and enhanced by

the management at regular intervals.

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good
corporate governance practice and internal control system. The
Company has in place an integrated framework of internal
control which is consistent with the principles outlined in the
“Internal Control and Risk Management — A Basic Framework”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants as illustrated below:
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Monitoring . Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance
B R B RIE 2 R
o Internal audits performed by internal audit department

R BRPEX BBPTHE T T R BT X

Information and Communication e

Information in sufficient details is provided to the appropriate person in a

o Channels of communication across the Group and with customers, suppliers

o Channels of communication for people to report any suspected improprieties

Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out

EARBE timely manner
REFREEATREZSFEZZER
and external parties
RUAEENBAREES « HEEHREI L BB
RIZAIHEREAAIRIETRABRARE

Control Activities o

EES HE AT ERMITEIRIES 2BRRRF

o Control activities include performance review, segregation of duties,

authorization, physical count, access control, documentation and records, etc.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Risk Assessment .

B A

EHER - FERE S

R EER AR (E)

Identification, evaluation and assessment of the key risk factors affecting the
achievement of the Company’s objectives are performed regularly

ERAAF R ERRRBEER

o Undertake proper actions to manage the risks so identified

REVAETTENAE IR FIESRZ E

Control Environment .
EIRRIR

Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity and high
ethical standards to the staff are established

RIUREME TEERNRBAHIERBERSERBRE
o Organizational chart and limits of authority are set and communicated to staff

concerned

HIEIW FAERA B TEE R RRBE MER

o Reporting lines in accordance with organizational chart and line of authority

are set

RN BIREE KRR FE & R

The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
independent reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and risk management system, reporting
regularly the results to the Board through the Audit Committee
and making recommendations to the relevant department

management for necessary actions.

During the Year, the internal audit department had conducted
reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control system
covering all material aspects related to financial, operational,
compliance controls, various functions for risk management and
physical and information security. Internal control reports
containing its findings and results were reported to the Audit
Committee during the Audit Committee meetings and had

been delivered to all Directors for review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

The Audit Committee had reported during the Audit
Committee meetings the key findings identified by the
Company's external auditors in respect of the Group's internal
controls and risk management and discussed findings and
actions or measures taken in addressing those findings. The
Company considers the internal control systems and risk
management were effective during the Year. No material issues
on the Group's internal control system and risk management
have been identified by the Group's internal audit department
and the Company’s external auditors during the reporting

period which required significant rectification measures.
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping was appointed as the company secretary on
1 February 2019. Ms. Chan is a solicitor qualified to practise the
laws of Hong Kong and a member of The Law Society of Hong
Kong. She is also a consultant of a law firm in Hong Kong. Ms.
Chan has many years of experience in advising on corporate
finance, mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance,
regulatory and compliance matters. Prior to joining the
Company, she was the company secretary and general counsel
of China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 412). Ms. Chan has a bachelor of
laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws from The
University of Hong Kong. She also has a master of corporate

finance degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

During the Year, Ms. Chan has satisfied the requirement of the
Listing Rules for receiving 15 hours of professional training.
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PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE
PUT TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company, who is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board's direct responsibilities to
the Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions and inquiries, to the senior

management of the Company:

By post

Rooms 2510-2518, 25/F
Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

By email

jovey.chan@haotianhk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the

Shareholders’ meetings.

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING GENERAL
MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, the Board
may whenever it thinks fit to convene extraordinary general

meetings.

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING GENERAL
MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company by mail at Rooms 2510-
2518, 25/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Shareholders shall follow Article 64 of the Articles of Association
for including a resolution at any general meeting. The
requirements and procedures are set out above in the
paragraph headed “Procedures for convening general meetings
by shareholders”.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors recognize the importance of long-term support
from the shareholders of the Company. The Company attaches
great priority to establish effective communication with its
shareholders and investors. In an effort to enhance such
communications, the Company provides information relating to
the Company and its business in its annual report and also
disseminates such information electronically through its website
at http://www.haotianint.com.hk.

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an
important event as it provides an opportunity for direct
communication between the Board and its shareholders. All
Directors, senior management and external auditors will make
every effort to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company to address Shareholders’ queries. All the shareholders
of the Company are given at least twenty one (21) days’ notice
of the date and venue of the annual general meeting of the
Company. The Company supports the CG Code's principle to
encourage Shareholders’ participation.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

The Board will review regularly the Group's operation and
corporate governance of the Company in order to ensure
compliance with the Articles of Association, the laws of the

Cayman Islands and to protect the interest of its shareholders.
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional document of the
Company during the Year. An up to date version of Articles of
Association is available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The directors of the Company present the annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group

is principally engaged in the following principal activities:

(@) the construction machinery business, serving primarily the
construction sector in Hong Kong, including (i) rental of
construction machinery; (ii) trading of construction
machinery and spare parts; and (i) provision of machinery
transportation services; and

(b) the provision of financial services, conducting: (i) Type 1
(dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts),
Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the Securities and

Futures Ordinance; and (ii) money lending activities.

Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in

note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 92 to 93. No dividend was
paid or proposed by the Company during the Year, nor has any
dividend been proposed by the Directors since the end of the
Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group during the Year and
the discussion on the Group's future business development are
set out in the sections headed “Director’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, and the key financial
performance indicators are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”. The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group are set out in
note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
discussions on the Group's relationships with key stakeholders,
environmental policies and performance and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on

the Group are as follows:
Relationship with key stakeholders

The Group's success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers and

subcontractors and suppliers.
Employees

Employees are regarded as important and valuable assets of
the Group. The objective of the Group’s human resource
management is to reward and recognise performing staff by
providing a competitive remuneration package and
implementing a sound performance appraisal system with
appropriate incentives, and to promote career development
and progression by appropriate training and providing

opportunities within the Group for career advancement.
Customers

The major customers include construction work companies
engaged in either public or private construction projects in
Hong Kong which require particular types of construction
machinery at different stages of their projects. We have
established long-term business relationship with some of the
customers for over 10 years. The sales and marketing team
maintains contacts with these customers regularly to understand
their needs and to provide relevant information to support their

projects.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Subcontractors and Suppliers

The major suppliers include manufacturers and service providers
of construction machinery, oil companies, and other third-party
service companies for maintenance, transportation and
assembly/disassembly services engaged by us. We proactively
communicate with the suppliers to ensure they are committed
to delivering high-quality and sustainable products and services.
We will select suppliers from the pre-approved lists of
subcontractors and suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

We believe that our business also depends on our ability to
meet our customers’ requirements in respect of safety, quality
and environmental aspects. To meet our customers’
requirements on safety, quality and environmental aspects, we
have established safety, quality and environmental management
systems. Through the systematic and effective control of our
operations, compliance with safety, quality and environmental
requirements can be further assured. Further discussions on the
Group's environmental policy and performance are covered by
a separate Environmental, Social and Governance Report which
will be available at the Group's website and the website of the
Stock Exchange on or before 30 September 2021.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Based on the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has complied in all material respect with laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the Company.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group identified and determined the major risks which may
affect the operation results and financial conditions of the
Group through risk management process, which includes the
following:

Risk in delay or default of payment in the Group's
money lending business

As at 31 March 2021, the outstanding loan receivables of the
money lending business of the Group (net of impairment) was
approximately HK$278 million, representing approximately 10%
of the total assets of the Group. Any delay or default in payment
of the loans will have an adverse impact on the Company’s
working capital, cash flow and subsequently the profits of the
Company.

To manage such risk, the Company requires borrowers to
provide appropriate security and closely monitors the loan
receivable collection cycle from time to time to get full
collection of the outstanding amounts due from borrowers. The
Company will assess and decide to enforce the security
provided by borrowers or take legal actions as appropriate. All
exposures are subject to regular review and assessment for

possible impairment.
Compliance risk

The Group operates financial services business through
subsidiaries with appropriate licenses to conduct regulated
activities and money lending. During the course of providing
such financial services, the Group would be exposed to
compliance risk, including the risk of legal liability, being
subjected to regulatory proceedings, disciplinary action, or loss
of property or business reputation arising from violation of laws,
regulations and rules due to the operation and management or
practices of the Group or its personnel. In order to effectively
control compliance risk, the Group has put in place a
practicable compliance management system and provided
resources and support to develop lawful and compliance
operations of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Financial risk

The Group's diversified business is exposed to a variety of risks,
such as market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk. Further details
of the financial risk management objectives and policies are set

out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company and of the Group during the Year are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated

financial statements.
RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on page 97.
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had reserves amounted to
approximately HK$1,245 million available for distribution.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 254.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the

date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Fok Chi Tak
(appointed as co-chief executive officer on 1 May 2020 and
re-designated as chief executive officer on 30 June 2020)
Mr. Zheng Li
(resigned as chief executive officer on 30 June 2020)
Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia)
Mr. Zhang Sheng
(resigned on 28 August 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xu Lin (appointed on é October 2020)
Mr. Wei Bin (appointed on 6 October 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong

Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham (appointed on 15 October 2020)

Information regarding directors’ emoluments are set out in note

8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this report.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every

three years.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James, Dr. Zhiliang Ou and Mr. Lee Chi Hwa
Joshua will retire from office as Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The aforesaid
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to article 112 of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. As such, each of Mr. Xu Lin, Mr. Wei
Bin and Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham will retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,

being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Director) has entered
into service agreements with the Company for a term of three
years unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other, and is subject to
termination provisions therein and provisions on retirement by
rotation of Directors as set out in the Articles of Association.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed in the section “Share Incentive Scheme”
below, at no time during the Year was the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right
during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme

Details of the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) and share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”)
of the Company are set out in the section headed “Share
Incentive Scheme” below and note 43 to the consolidated

financial statements.
Convertible Notes

Details of the convertible securities issued by the Company and
subsisting during the Year are set out in note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into by the Company that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

EERFETHRAEREKRSD HERH
REEET 2 EH

RZFB-_—F=ZA=1+—8B EFRARFAAXE
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KEREGRPIEXVER) < Bty - BB R E#E
FHERERF M ERPIEIS2HEALRARR
AP F BB MR L AR BN 8 1 pratiR 4
STRAIARE AR KB Fr2 as FORBIAT

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to

the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to Listing Rules), were

as follows:

Long positions in ordinary Shares and underlying

Shares of the Company

REAFEBREEERD 2H R

Number of Percentage of

Shares held  Nature of shareholding
Name of Director/ EREE interest Total interests (Note 1)
chief executive Personal interests REBDL
BEE TETHRASHSE BAERZ RERME mrER GEXD
Fok Chi Tak (Note 2) 60,975,610 Beneficial owner 60,975,610 0.92%
ExE(EE2) EmfAA
Xu Lin (Note 3) 4,146,342 Beneficial owner 4,146,342 0.06%
PR (PRE3) EmfABA
Wei Bin (Note 4) 4,146,342 Beneficial owner 4,146,342 0.06%
2 (FF5x4) EmlEa A
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying
shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 6,659,383,132
Shares in issue as at 31 March 2021.

2. These Shares are shares granted to Mr. Fok Chi Tak under the Share
Award Scheme.

3. These Shares are shares to be issued and allotted to Mr. Xu Lin as part of
his emolument as a Director pursuant to the terms of his service contract.

4. These Shares are shares to be issued and allotted to Mr. Wei Bin as part
of his emolument as a Director pursuant to the terms of his service
contract.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, so far as is known
to the Directors, none of the Directors and chief executive had
any interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, so far as is known to the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other

than Directors or chief executive of the Company), who had

interests or short positions in the Shares, the underlying Shares

and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation

within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were required

to be disclosed pursuant to the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of

Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to

therein, were as follows:

ESEHRE

FERRRERD HEROREREEF
iR

RZF-_—F=ZA=1+—8 BEBEFRAREE
ZITBABMAM  THAL(BEFHARBEET
BABBINRAR B REBREZEZE(EERES
KEREGRPIEXVER) < Bty - BB R E#E
THERBEESMAEEMFEXVEE2K%3D
RXATHRE - HRBEESF KB IERDIE 33615
AR AZIGDIPTIEE M 2 SRR AT ¢

Number of Percentage of
Number of underlying Capacity/ shareholding
Name of Shareholder Shares held Shares held Nature of interest Total interest (Note 1)
A iam BREAS L
REHE/ B8 EREA BHEE 56 EEiE mfER (&)
Aceso Life Science Group Limited 3,545,725,259 — Interests of controlled 3,545,725,259 53.24%
(formerly known as Hao Tian Development corporation
Group Limited) (“ALS") (Note 2) B
ERERPREBARAA - RIEREEER
(FIBRXBEEEERAR)([{55])) (FH:F2)
Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings Limited 3,545,725,259 — Interests of controlled 3,545,725,259 53.24%
("Asia Link") (Note 2) icorporation
THAIEERER AR (I8 ) (ME2) IR ERERS
Li Shao Yu (Note 2) 3,545,725,259 — Interests of controlled 3,545,725,259 53.24%
_’corporation
ZPF(ME2) RIEREEER
China Construction Bank Corporation 2,864,400,688 - Security interest 2,864,400,688 43.01%
("CCBC") (Note 3) \
FERFERITRN BB A B ([PEET]) (M) EirlEs
Soaring Wealth Ventures Limited 500,000,000 — Beneficial owner 500,000,000 7.51%
("Soaring Wealth") (Note 4) B
Soaring Wealth Ventures Limited BREEA
([ Soaring Wealth ) (Ff3E4)
Lin Yuan (Note 4) 500,000,000 — Interests of controlled 1,000,000,000 15.02%
B __corporation
R (BIE4) TEHEEER
500,000,000 - Beneﬁfial owner
ERBEAEA
Kenson Investment Limited (Note 5) 625,000,000 — Beneficial owner 625,000,000 9.39%
Kenson Investment Limited (Ff5E5) EnlEEA
Oshidori (Note 5) 625,000,000 - Interests of controlled 625,000,000 9.39%

Bz (FES)

__corporation
Rt EEER
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EEEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

Notes:

All interests stated are long positions. The percentage of shareholding is
calculated on the basis of 6,659,383,132 Shares in issue as at 31 March
2021.

Ms. Li Shao Yu is beneficially interested in a total of 3,545,725,259 Shares
through Asia Link, which is wholly-owned by Ms. Li. Asia Link's interest in
3,545,725,259 Shares are held through ALS, which is 44.54% owned by Asia Link.
Among ALS's interest in 3,545,725,259 Shares, (i) 2,388,944,688 Shares are held
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Win Team Investments Limited and Hao
Tian Management (China) Limited; (i) 785,352,000 Shares are held through its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Win Team Investments Limited, and its non-wholly
owned subsidiary, Hao Tian Management (Hong Kong) Limited; and (iii)
371,428,571 Shares are held through its wholly-owned subsidiaries Guo Guang
Limited and Hao Tian Finance Company Limited.

CCBC, through Cheer Hope Holdings Limited, which is its indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary, holds the security interest in those 2,864,400,688
Shares.

Ms. Lin Yuan is beneficially interested in a total of 1,000,000,000 Shares,
among which, 500,000,000 Shares are held by Ms. Lin as beneficial owner,
and 500,000,000 Shares are held by Soaring Wealth which is wholly-owned
by Ms. Lin.

Oshidori is beneficially interested in 625,000,000 Shares through Kenson
Investment Limited which is indirectly wholly-owned by Oshidori.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Company

had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors and

chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short

positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the

Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to

be recorded in the register referred to therein.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME
Share Option Scheme

The Company's share option scheme was adopted pursuant to
a resolution passed on 23 October 2015 for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons who the
Board considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
Board may grant options to eligible persons, including directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for the Shares.
Eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme, amongst others,
include any executives, any employee (including proposed, full-
time or part-time employee), a director or proposed director
(including an independent non-executive director), a direct or
indirect shareholder of any member of the Company and its
subsidiaries and an associate of any of the aforementioned
persons.

The Board shall set out in the offer the terms on which the
option is to be granted. The maximum number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. No options shall be granted
under the Share Option Scheme at any time if such grant shall

result in the scheme limit being exceeded.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at 10
December 2015, being the date of the listing of Shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Company may seek
approval of its shareholders in general meeting for refreshing
such 10% limit.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible person
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for
the time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this

limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

Any grant of options to any Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as such term as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company, or any of their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme is subject to the prior approval
of the independent non-executive Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Directors who or whose associates
is the grantee of an option). Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director, or any of their respective associates, would result in
the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue on
the date of such grant; and (ii) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, in excess of HK$5.0 million, such further grant of the
options shall be subject to prior approval of the Shareholders
with such person and his associates abstaining from voting in

favour of general meeting.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer is made. Options
granted shall be taken up upon payment of HK$1 as
consideration for the grant of option. Options may be exercised
at any time from the date which option is deemed to be granted
and accepted and expired on the date as the Board in its
absolute discretion determine and which shall not exceeding a
period of 10 years from the date on which the share options are
accepted but subject to the provisions for early termination

thereof contained in the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The subscription price is determined by the Board, and shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the
date of offer; and (i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date. The
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on 23 October 2015. No share options
were granted, forfeited or expired during the Year. As at the
date of this annual report, the total number of Shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 100,000,000
Shares, representing approximately 1.33% of the issued shares

of the Company.
Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on 24
April 2020, being an incentive measure to recognise the
contributions by selected participants and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them; and to attract the right talents
for promoting the future development and expansion of the
Group, with a view to achieving the objective of increasing the
value of the Group by motivating the participants to strive for
the continual operation and future development and expansion
of the Group and aligning the interests of the participants and
the shareholders of the Company.

Participants include any director (including executive director,
non-executive director and independent non-executive
director), employee (whether full time or part time), officer,
agent or consultant of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
any of its affiliates or any other person as determined by the
Board, whom the Board considers, in its absolute discretion, has

contributed or will contribute to the Group.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME (continued)
Share Award Scheme (continued)

Unless early terminated by the Board, the Share Award Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing
on the adoption date (i.e. 23 April 2030).

During the Year, the Board has resolved to grant (i) a total of
196,274,929 award Shares to selected grantees who are not
connected with the Company (the “Non-connected Grantee(s)”)
on 24 April 2020; and (i) a total of 65,475,610 award Shares to
selected grantees who are connected with the Company on 29
June 2020. The award Shares granted under the scheme are
subject to a vesting scale in three equal tranches. A total of
774,929 award Shares granted to one of the selected employees
are unconditional awards to that employee as his contract
provided for such award Shares is in addition to his normal
monthly salary. These award Shares were issued in September
2020. As at 31 March 2021, a total of 89,475,610 award Shares
remained outstanding.

Further details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME (continued) R B EEtE (&)
Share Award Scheme (continued) B EERETE ()

Details of the movement of the award Shares during the Year AFERERHEEFBUOT ¢
were as follows:

Changes of number of the award Shares

during the Year
AEERBROYELD
Outstanding Lapsed/  Outstanding
asat  Granted Vested Issued  cancelled asat
Name/category of 1 April during during during during 31 March
grantees Date of grant  Vesting period 2020  theYear  theYear  theYear  the Year 2021
R-B-%F R=B=-%
mA-H AEE ZAZt-H
ARARE /A RHEH BRE HARY AEERE AFEBRE AFERT AN/HEE HAERM
Directors of the Company/
its subsidiaries
A0A/EMBLARES
Fok Chi Tak 29 June 2020 29 June 2021 t0 29 June 2023 N/A - 60975610 0 0 0 609750610
ESi “E-%F “EC-ERAZTABE Wl
ARZTABR ZEZZERAZTAR
Leung Ka Kit 29June2020 29 June 2021 to 29 June 2023 N/A 1,500,000 0 0 1,500,000 0
AR “E-%F “EC-ERAZTABE Wl
ARZTABR ZEZZERAZTAR
Lau Chi Hang 29June2020 29 June 2021 t0 29 June 2023 N/A 1,500,000 0 0 0 1,500,000
3EE kS “EC-ERAZTABE R
ARZTABR ZEZZERAZTAR
Cheung Wang Lok 29 June 2020 29 June 2021 to 29 June 2023 N/A 1,500,000 0 0 0 1,500,000
v “E-%F “EC-ERAZTABE Wl
ARZTAR ZEZZERAZTAR
Sub-total NIA 65475410 0 0 1500000 63975610
It TR
Other Employees 24 April 2020 24 April 2021 to 24 April 2023 N/A 196,274,929 714929 714929 - 170,000000 25,500,000
EfbES kS 3 “EC-EMAZTEAE oyl
MAZtMA  —E-=FMA-1MA
Total N/A~ 261,750,539 714929 714929 171500000 89475610

st oyl
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Grant of award Shares to Connected Grantees under
the Share Award Scheme

On 24 April 2020, as part of the Group's initiatives to incentivize
the performance of its directors, senior management and
employees, the Board resolved (1) to adopt the Share Award
Scheme whereby awards of Shares may be made by the Board
to eligible participants pursuant to the scheme rules; and (2) to
grant (i) 65,475,610 award Shares to four grantees who are
connected persons of the Company, including one of the
executive Directors and three directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries (the “Connected Grantees”), to be issued under
specific mandate; and (ii) 196,274,929 award Shares to other
Non-Connected Grantees, to be issued under the general
mandate granted by the Shareholders to the Directors to allot,
issue and otherwise deal with new Shares at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 18 September 2019. However,
the Connected Grantees have not accepted the relevant awards
and the awards have been cancelled by the Company
accordingly. For further details of the Share Award Scheme, the
grant of the award Shares and the cancellation of the grant of
award Shares, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 24 April 2020 and 27 April 2020.

On 29 June 2020, the Board resolved to grant 65,475,610 award
Shares to four Connected Grantees under specific mandate. For
further details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 29 June 2020 and 29 October 2020 and the
circular dated 9 October 2020.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Issue and allotment of Shares to Directors as part of
their emolument

On 6 October 2020, the Company appointed Mr. Xu Lin and Mr.
Wei Bin as the non-executive Directors. Pursuant to the service
contract entered into between the Company and each new
Director, each of them is entitled to receive a total of 4,146,342
Shares as part of his emoluments (the “Emolument Shares”).
Both of Mr. Xu and Mr. Wei, as Directors, are connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules and therefore
the issue and allotment of Emolument Shares to each of them
constitutes a connected transaction. The aforesaid Emolument
Shares shall be issued under specific mandate granted by the
Shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting on 2
December 2020. For further details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 6 October 2020 and 2
December 2020 and the circular dated 13 November 2020.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Licensing of office premises

On 31 December 2019, Glory Century Limited (as the licensor)
("Glory Century”) and Hao Tian Management (Hong Kong)
Limited (as the licensee) (“HTMHK"), an indirect subsidiary of
ALS entered into a license agreement for the licensing of the
use of the premises located at Rooms 2501-2509, 25/F., Shui On
Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for a term
commencing from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022, at a
monthly license fee of approximately HK$258,000 for the first
year, HK$319,000 for the second year and HK$346,000 for the
third year (inclusive of management charges). The total license
fee shall be subject to an annual cap of HK$3,336,000 for the
first year, HK$4,068,000 for the second year and HK$4,392,000
for the third year.

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Lim
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

(continued)
Licensing of office premises (continued)

HTMHK is an indirect subsidiary of ALS and Glory Century is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. ALS is an
indirect controlling shareholder of the Company, and HTMHK is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. For further details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 31 December 2019.

The auditors of the Company have provided a letter to the
Board pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules confirming
that, for the Year, the continuing connected transaction (i) has
received the approval of the Board; (i) has been entered into in
accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the
transaction; (iii) has not exceeded the caps disclosed in the
relevant announcement made by the Company; and (iv) was in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group if the
transaction involved the provision of goods and services by the

Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has reviewed
and confirmed that the above continuing connected transaction
has been entered into by the Group (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of its business; (b) on normal commercial terms; and (c)
in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing the above continuing connected transaction that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a

whole.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The significant related party transactions entered into by the

Group during the Year set out in note 42 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected
Transactions”, “Continuing connected transaction” and in note
42 to the consolidated financial statements, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company were entered into or existed during the Year.
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors and their respective
associates had any interests in a business, apart from the
business of the Group, which competed or may compete with
the business of the Group or had any other conflict of interest
with the Group which would be required to be disclosed under
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets or profits of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or

otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors during the Year.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any donations to

charitable and non-profit-making organisations.
EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group was
formulated by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of
the Directors are decided by the Board, with recommendations
of the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company's operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme and Share
Award Scheme as incentives to eligible persons, details are set
out under the sections heading “Share Option Scheme” and

“Share Award Scheme” in this annual report.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata

basis to existing Shareholders.
MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 March 2021, the market capitalisation of the listed
shares of the Company was approximately HK$2,597 million
based on the total number of 6,659,383,132 issued shares of the
Company and the closing price of HK$0.39 per Share.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, during
the Year, at least 25% of the Company's issued Shares were
held by the public as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing
Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group's turnover and purchases
attributable to major customers and suppliers during the Year
and Previous Year are as follows:
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For the year ended

BEUTHHLFE
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
—E-—F ZETF
=A=+-8B =A=+-H
Percentage of turnover: CEXCIER N
From the largest customer RERAEF 15.8%
From the five largest customers in aggregate B RAARF 7 4% 33.3%
Percentage of purchase: REEAOL
From the largest supplier KESZAHER 33.3%
From the five largest suppliers in aggregate RERRMER . EER 72.7%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors who
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
interest in the five largest customers nor suppliers during the

Year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during
the Year.

AUDITORS

Following the resignation of BDO Limited as the auditor of the
Company on 29 January 2021, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
("ZHONGHUI ANDA") was appointed as the auditor of the
Company on the same day to fill in the vacancy.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in
auditors of the Company during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
were audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA, whose term of office will
retire at the close of the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the re-appointment of ZHONGHUI ANDA as the
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Fok Chi Tak
Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited £

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

5

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HAO TIAN INTERNATIONAL
CONSTRUCTION INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hao
Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“"Group”) set out on pages 92 to 253, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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B B AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Investments in associates
Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of investments in associates for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balance of investments in associates of
HK$1,226,000,000 as at 31 March 2021 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's
impairment test involves application of judgement and is based
on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

—  Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;

—  Assessing the financial information of the associates;

— Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of
the external valuer engaged by client and our own
engaged valuer;

—  Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting with
the external valuer, with the assistance of our own
engaged valuer, to discuss and challenge the valuation
process, methodologies used and market evidence to
support significant judgments and assumptions applied in

the valuation model;

—  Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation
model to supporting evidence; and

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for investments
in associates is supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Loan receivables

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements
The Group tested the amount of loan receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balance of loan receivables of HK$278,000,000 as
at 31 March 2021 is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group's impairment test involves
application of judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

—  Assessing the Group's procedures on granting credit limits

and credit periods to debtors;

—  Assessing the Group's relationship and transaction history
with the debtors;

— Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment and
expected credit loss assessment;

— Assessing ageing of the debts;

—  Assessing creditworthiness of the debtors;

—  Checking subsequent settlements from the debtors;
—  Assessing the value of the collateral for the debts; and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the Group's exposure to credit

risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for loan

receivables is supported by the available evidence.

FEESEE(E)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Properties under development
Refer to Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of properties under development
for impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balance of properties under development of
HK$370,000,000 as at 31 March 2021 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's
impairment test involves application of judgement and is based

on assumptions and estimates.
Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the fair value less
costs of disposal calculations;

— Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions

(including unit rate and discount rates);

—  Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of

the external valuer engaged by client;

—  Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting with
the external valuer, with the assistance of our own
engaged valuer, to discuss and challenge the valuation
process, methodologies used and market evidence to
support significant judgments and assumptions applied in

the valuation model;

—  Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation

model to supporting evidence; and
—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for properties

under development is supported by the available evidence.
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Hao Tian Internatio

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Refer to Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group measured its financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss at fair value with the changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss. This fair value
measurement is significant to our audit because the balance of
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$628,000,000 as at 31 March 2021 and the fair value loss of
HK$12,000,000 for the year then ended are material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's fair
value measurement involves application of judgement and is

based on assumptions and estimates.
Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of
the external valuer engaged by client and our own

engaged valuer;

—  Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting with
the external valuer, with the assistance of our own
engaged valuer, to discuss and challenge the valuation
process, methodologies used and market evidence to
support significant judgments and assumptions applied in

the valuation model;

—  Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation

model to supporting evidence;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model;
and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement in

the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group's fair value measurement of the
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is supported
by the available evidence.

B AR E
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onstruction Investment Group Limited £

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B AR E

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information in the
Company's annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The other information is expected to be made

available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Hao Tian Internatio

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's
website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/

standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Shun Fai

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number PO5498

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021
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ReEERAEMEEH

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

28 2=

E-P-—FZASt+—HILEE

Notes
liEd
Revenue WA 5
Cost of revenue W AR AR 9
Gross profit EA
Other income HAn U A 6
Other (losses)/gains, net Hib (E18) iz % 7
Administrative expenses TR Z 9
Impairment losses: B RS
— property, plant and equipment — W BEKRE 14
— intangible assets —EBVEE 16
— financial assets —emEE(EHREEEE)
(expected credit losses)

Share-based payment expenses VAR 2 4 = 43
Share of results of associates bak (et NS E 18
Share of results of joint ventures DEEEREER 19
Finance costs A KA 10
Profit before taxation R 250 Al 4 A
Income tax (expense)/credit FTE# (), % 1
Profit for the year FREA
Profit for the year attributable to: AT ATREF AR -

Equity holders of the Company RARERFFEA

Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A
Earnings per share attributable to RARIERFTA AEL

the equity holders of the Company BRAF

Basic (HK$ cents) A CGEND 13

Diluted (HK$ cents) g OBl) 13

Q2  Annual Report 4 2020/21
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2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

mEBRaRkEMEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Fair value gain on investments in equity
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")

2021 2020
=B —ET-THF
HK$'million HK$'million
BEBT BEBTT
FEREF
Hitt 2K :

FEEN S ERE S EE

AT ERERREB T AR A
2HWE (AR FEFERH
Bt AR EEEE]D Z
BumTAEREZ A FERS

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

FREM2EEE - RERE

Total comprehensive income for the year

FREEWHEAE

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

BUTATBEFREZERSEEE

RRRIEDFEA
IR

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

LA 2 EUER R e RPN 2 MY — GFBIRE o

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEME

As at 31 March 2021 R=Z=-—F=A=+—H

Notes
PEE
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE R 14
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15
Intangible assets BVEE 16
Investments in associates REERE 2 E 18
Investments in joint ventures REBREIRE 19
Financial assets at FVTOCI NAFEGEAEEF LA
Hipz sz emEE 20
Loan receivables FEWE R 21
Finance lease receivables A& & IR 22
Deferred tax assets B IAE B 23
Other receivables and deposits Hip U8 Mg e 24
Pledged bank deposits B IRITIFE R 29
Total non-currentassets ¥ HiEpEEHE 200000
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 25
Properties under development BRPME 26
Loan receivables JEWE 21
Finance lease receivables B E M E R GRIE 22
Other receivables, deposits and Hfh s - e KB
prepayments A 24
Trade receivables g 5 WA 27
Financial assets at fair value through AR FEFE B EE(LaHA
profit or loss ("FVTPL") Ba((UAAFHEERHR
Bt ABm)zemEE 28
Trusted and segregated bank ERERBILIRITRRS
accounts 29
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREEED 29
Totalcurrentassets ~_*B¥EE®E
Total assets BEHAE
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2021 2020
—B-—-F —Z-FTF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT BEBTT

226
43
56

255

130

20
220



NSOLIDATED STAT

e R

As at 31 March 2021 ®=Z=-—F=A=+—H

Notes

By

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EERAE

Equity attributable to equity holders Z2Q F#EREFE A

of the Company PEfE R
Share capital &N 30
Reserves R

Non-controlling interests SRR =

Total equity EREE

LIABILITIES =N

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 15
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEEE 23
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 31
Convertible note payables JEf AT AR AR 32
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AT ER=EBHEZETA

Basemats 33
Total non-current liabilities FREEEHAEE

2021 2020
—B-—-F —Z-FTF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT BEBTT

44
944

988

988

28
26
73
132
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

e PR R

As at 31 March 2021 R=Z=-—F=A=+—H

2021 2020
—B- - —T-TF
Notes  HK$'million HK$'million

liEd BEET A8ETT
Current liabilities REEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 12
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 31 178
Corporate note payables JER R ERE 34 -
Trade payables B 5 EMNRIE 35 18
Other payables, deposits received HibpEMEE - BERIE S K
and accruals JEETFRIA 36 36
Income tax payables JERTPR1SE 6
Total current liabilites  #B&Af®® -
Total liabilities BERE 509
Total equity and liabilities ERRkEEARE 1,497

The above consolidated statement of financial position should I ult4R & B 76 A S 25 8 BRRE P > B 3T — (R 3E -

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

These consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 253 $£ 92 E253B v GAMKHRECHEFEN -

have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 ——F XA -+ HBFMAETIZE - WH T5E
June 2021 and were signed on its behalf. EREESE -

Fok Chi Tak Tang Yiu Chi James

EXE BIEE

Director Director

BE BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REREZBER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

Attributable to the shareholders of the Company

AARRRER
Share-
based Convertible Non-

Share Share  payment note  Capital  FVTOCl  Retained Other controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  eamings  reserve Total interests equity
NAREHE
REBHA

URBYS,  TRRE Lh2Ehi

Rx  ROEE AFEE BiE  EARE ZBE  RERA  HtRE @ FEREE  ERlE
HK§'million ~ HK$'million  HKS'million ~ HKS'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HKS'milion  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEAT EEAT BEAT ABAT  BEAT  BEAT  PEAT  BEAT  BEAT  BEMT  BEER

At 1 April 2019 RZE-hEmA-A Iy 535 - - 5 - 134 1 766 - 766
Profitfor the year EREF| - - - - - - 7 - 7 - 7
Total comprehensive income ~ 2EREEE - - - - - - 7 - 7 - 7
Transactions with equity holders EEHEEARS
Issue of emolument shares BRBRG - 1 ) - - - - - - - -
Issue of consideration shares BARERR 3 82 - - - - - - 85 . 85
Issue of convertible notes payable %/7/E TTARER - - - o - - - - o - 64
Share-based payment expenses MR HHR - - 1 - - - - . 1 S 1
3 83 - o4 - - - - 150 - 150
At 31 March 2020 W-E-E5=f=1-A 4 618 - o4 5 - 206 1 988 - 988
At 1 April 2020 it -3 1= R 4 618 - o4 5 - 206 1 988 - 988
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - 100 - 100 - 100
Other comprehensive income £t 2 Al - - - - - 11 - - i - 11
Total comprehensive income ~ 2EWHEH - - - - - 1 100 - m - M

Transactions with equity holders EEHEAARS
Issue of subscription shares BTRRIA (M3 306)

(note 30(a)) b 103 - - - - - - 109 - 109
Issue of placement shares BARERR

(note 30() (5 300)) 3 o - - - - - - o7 - 67
Issue of consideration shares BRERR (3 300)

(note 30(d) 5 168 - - - - - - 173 - 173

Issue of convertible note payables MEEHI B2 A1 &47fE (T

upon acquisition of asubsidiary  ATEARZR (i 39(a))

fnote 32 - - - B - - - - 8 : 8
Issue of shares upon conversion of AR AREHEET

convertible note payables T (B3t 32)

(note 32) 9 302 - (120 - - - - 91 - 191
Share-based payment expenses  HRISRRI - - 10 - - - - - 10 - 10
Early principal redemptionof R EEEMAH

convertble note payables REERS (W32)

(note 32)
— re-designation of fairvalue of  — EFTETBEREL
repurchase consideration LTE - - - (o) - - - - C] - G]
— transfer to retained eamnings ~ —EAREEF| - - - (19 - - 19 - - - =
A3 637 10 (64) - - 19 - 625 - 625
At 31 March 2021 RZE--F=f=1-A 67 1,255 10 - 55 " 325 1 1724 - 1724

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should it & HE 25 B B 3% fE BRRE P > Mt 3E — G338 -
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #

OLIDATED STATEM

E-P-—FZASt+—HILEE

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations
Income tax paid

REXBRERESRE
REREBRE/ (MA)RE

2N AR

38

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant
and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary
Proceeds from disposal of financial

assets at FVTPL
Consideration paid for investment
in associates
Acquisition of financial assets
at FVTPL
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of
cash acquired
Withdrawal of other deposits
Placement of other deposits

Interest received

REXBRBRASRAN(RHE)

REZHRERERE
BEME  BEMEE

HEME - BERREZ
RS 5R
HE B A R TS IR

BRcemMEEMSRA
HRRBERRZREZ

BB
UREB A B 8 B E B A
Hi SBEE

Wi — R B AR - HIRAEBA
RBe

REEAN R

T AR A7 5K

E WS

Net cash inflow from
investing activities
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CONSOLIDATE

HERERE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—B- - —EZT-THF
Notes  HKS$'million  HK$'million
k=3 BEET A8ETT

Cash flows from financing activities ®BEFEFEBRERE
Interest paid EAAE (10)
Lease liabilities paid ENHEEAE 8)
Early redemption of convertible R B D R AT RRER

note payables 32 (13)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMEEIA 31
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIRTTEER (46)
Proceeds from loans from other Eﬁt W ERRRMBARZ

financial institutions and a TS FRIA

fellow subsidiary 37
Repayment of loans from other BEAMIBEE 2 ER

financial institutions (29)
Repayment of a loan from a director ~ [EEZEEEK (10)
Repayment of corporate note payables 1E3E B> E1E -
Proceeds from issue of placement BITRERD 2 {518

shares -
Repayment to an intermediate BEPHERARRIE

company (4)
Advance from/(repayment to) REBRMBAR 28K

fellow subsidiaries (BRRARWBARFHIE) 2
Advance from a director REEZRZBHK 23
Repayment to a director EREENE (30)
Net cash outflow from REEHMERESRHFE

financing activities 61
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BERBESZEEYW ORL) i

cash equivalents HEE 91
Cash and cash equivalents at REVZRERIREEEY

beginning of year 129
Cash and cash equivalents RERZRERREZEEY

at end of year 220

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read

bR A IRNE RE R REEBEM 2 M X —OFBIRE -

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group
Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Its
immediate and ultimate holding company is Hao Tian
Management (China) Limited and Asia Link Capital
Investment Holdings Limited, which are incorporated in
Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands respectively, and
the ultimate controlling shareholder is Ms. Li Shao Yu. The
address of its registered office is Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business in Hong
Kong is Rooms 2510-2518, 25/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The ordinary shares
of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Group include: (i) money lending;
(i) securities investment; (iii) provision of commodities,
futures, securities brokerage and financial services; (iv)
asset management; (v) rental and trading of construction
machinery; (vi) provision of repair and maintenance and

transportation service; and (vii) property development.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") and rounded to the nearest

million (“million”), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
presentation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The consolidated financial statements are for the Group

consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.
2.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

()  New and amended standards,
improvements and interpretation adopted

by the Group

The following new and amendments to
HKFRSs, improvements and interpretation
have been adopted by the Group for the
first time for the financial year beginning
on or after 1 April 2020:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest rate benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 reform

Revised conceptual
framework to

financial reporting

The amendments listed above did not
have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current
or future periods.

2

FRETHEREE

2INEEFFAMBRRACEA 2 EBZ SR
REINAT - BRIERBHA - BRIZFHEK
EERBEARMABEZINFE - SRaPBREK
ERNARE(AAREREMBARMERK)

21 wBEE
(a) BHBEFZBERHE

()  AEBERAZFETRAEE
EEA - 2 R FE

REBDR T -TEN
A—BsZ%FE2 K
FEHRRMNATHITE
B BREEAREE
R MU R RE

EAGHER BAZTE
E1RRER
SiHEAIES

T

BAVKHMEED 2Kz
EXEivd H]
BAUKHREED  RIREENE
9% - BEGH
EREVHR

ERNBRE

EBIBTE 7B
BT RE

BoER

EAEETE B I AR
ZTRITBEAZE |
M & 8 & A sk R K HI A
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(i)

New and amended standards,
interpretations and revised framework that
have been issued but were not yet

effective

Effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-related
rent concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 4,  Interest Rate Benchmark
7,9, and 16 and HKAS 39 Reform

Effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2022

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before
intended use
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
conceptual framework
Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of fulfilling
a contract
Annual improvements to
HKFRS standards
2018-2020
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(i)

New and amended standards,

interpretations and revised framework that

have been issued but were not yet

effective (continued)

Effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2023

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HK-int 5

Insurance Contracts

Classification of liabilities
as current or
non-current

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments in relation
to Amendments to
HKAS 1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

TRETHEMECE)

21 RREEGE)

(a) BHBEZLERHKE(E)

(ii)

E B 18 15 R £ Z #TET
RAEEETER - it FERAE

EETHER (BR)

R-ZE-_=FHA—HX
Z & FRz &t BIE AR

BB REER

F17%
BibesHEs
F1H 2T

Epgtel
1R

Ep gl
ELyipd )

BB gated
12527

FERR
241

53

JHy

Annual Report % 2020/21

RBAH

HAENER
e
ERE

B

gitiites

RRE-R%
MEER
EUiEl
EXTHE

BBt ES
F152
iz
1REERT

103




e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(i)

New and amended standards,
interpretations and revised framework that
have been issued but were not yet

effective (continued)

Effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after a date to be determined

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of
Amendment Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or

Joint Venture

There are no other standards that are not
yet effective and that would be expected
to have a material impact to the Group in
the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable transactions.

The Group does not intend to early adopt
these standards before their respective

effective dates.
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Hao Tian Internatio

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

TRETHEMECE)

22 RERERESRSTEEZRA

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a) Subsidiaries (a) HEBAA

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for business combinations by the
Group (Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and consolidated

statement of financial position respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 2= =—

ESAS+—HILFR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(b) Associates

(c)

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the
group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (see (d) below), after initially being

recognised at cost.
Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements,
investments in joint arrangements are classified
as either joint operations or joint ventures. The
classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than
the legal structure of the joint arrangement.

The Group has joint ventures only.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method (see (d) below), after
initially being recognised at cost in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hao Tian Internatio

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=F=—

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(d)

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group's
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, and the Group's share of
movements in other comprehensive income of
the investee in consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying

amount of the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest
in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
2.12.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 KB

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(e)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is
recognised in a separate reserve within equity

attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because of a
loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in
carrying amount recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of the consolidated statement of changes in
equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(e)

Changes in ownership interests (continued)

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or
significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to

account for all business combinations, regardless of

whether equity instruments or other assets are

acquired. The consideration transferred for the

acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the

acquired business
equity interests issued by the group

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from

a contingent consideration arrangement, and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations (continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net

identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:

° consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the

acquired entity, and

*  acquisition-date fair value of any previous

equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.
Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are
accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries and associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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onstruction Investment Group Limited e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

TRETHEMECE)

24 BIYRBHERGE)

2.4 Separate financial statements (continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s

net assets including goodwill.

i B 7% SR E WE 2 S BHE
ARREERAR 2 HW LT
‘E1ﬁ§%jﬁﬁ%$ﬁi’%ﬁﬁi‘\&ﬁzﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
BIEAVBREMATREHREE
@Tﬁ(ﬁTﬁﬁi—E)ZﬁEEﬁ EUPE2)S
MB AR ZREETRER -

2.5 Segment reporting 25 FE/E
Operating segments are reported in a manner KEDHRRAEZE @59&%%%1%
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the ZABHREEB Bz HAABRE -
chief operating decision maker. The chief operating gﬁﬁﬂé/ﬁﬁnﬂﬁﬁ%%%\%%fﬁZI
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating BEERREWBRIFLRBRTE 2
resources and assessing performance of the KRBEFE -
operating segments, has been identified as the
Board of Directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation 2.6 HEmE

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured using

the currency of the primary economic

(a) WERZIEHK

AEBETEER M EREA
HERORBERERKEME
IEREBERBEZER( R

environment in which the entity operates (“the ﬁgl)a‘l‘i $Qﬂ2%§ﬁ%ﬁgxﬁ
functional currency”). The Company'’s functional BT BB wKRANABE T
currency is Hong Kong dollar (HK$) and the E %ED’J‘Z%$%@Z£§'J,§
consolidated financial statements are presented o

in HK$ which is the Group's presentation

currency.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z == =—

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are generally recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
They are deferred in equity if they relate to
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of

the net investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, within
“finance costs”. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a

net basis within “other gains/(losses), net”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit of loss are
recognised in statement of profit or loss as part
of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in

statement of other comprehensive income.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that

statement of financial position;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive

income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising

from the translation of any net investment in

foreign entities, and of borrowings and other

financial instruments designated as hedges of

such investments, are recognised in

consolidated statement of other comprehensive

income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on

the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as

assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and

translated at the closing rate.

2
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onstruction Investment Group Limited e

~ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

TRETHEMECE)

2.6 HEBE(E)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial (d) HEBIFEBRBLHE

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the company are reclassified to

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences is re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. For
all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in
the Group's ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the statement of profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost, net of their residual values, over their

estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the
lease terms
Leasehold improvements 10% to 20%

Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment 20% to 25%
Motor vehicles 10% to 25%
Machinery 10%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The leasehold land and building of the Group are
held under medium-term lease in Hong Kong and

amortised over the term of lease of 30 years.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each financial year end.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount.
These are included in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.
Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.3.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not
amortised but it is test for impairment annually,
or more frequently if events of changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Intangible assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the

operating segments (note 2.5).
Customer list

Customer list acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life
and are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their expected

life of 5 years.
Securities brokerage licenses

Securities brokerage licenses acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. They have an
indefinite useful life and are subsequently

carried at cost less impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

TRETHEMECE)

29 FERMEERE

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events on changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting period.

2.10Investments and other financial asset

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

(i) those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI") or through profit or loss),
and

(i)  those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash

flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

Hao Tian Internatio

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10Investments and other financial asset
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification (continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in the statement
of profit or loss or statement of comprehensive
income. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10Investments and other financial asset
(continued)

(c) Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

(i)  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in the statement of profit or loss
and presented in other (losses)/gains
together with foreign exchange
differences. Loss allowances are presented
as separate line item in the statement of

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

Hao Tian Internatio

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10Investments and other financial asset

(continued)

(c)

Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

(i)

(iii)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from
statement of changes in equity to
statement of profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 2= =—

ESAS+—HILFR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10Investments and other financial asset
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to statement of profit or
loss following the derecognition of the
investment.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in
the statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other

changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a

significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.10Investments and other financial asset

Hao Tian Internatio

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

TRETHEMECE)

210 REREMEMEE (B)

(continued)
(d) Impairment (continued)

Loss allowance on other receivables and
deposits from third parties are measured as
either 12-months expected credit losses or
lifetime expected credit losses, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If a
significant increase in credit risk of a receivable
has occurred since initial recognition, then loss
allowance is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial
position where the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty. The Group has also
entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such

as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEBMEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.12Inventories 212 1FE
(i)  Spare parts, consumables and others (i) EHEH HEBREM

Spare parts, consumables and others are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using weighted average
method. Net realizable value is the estimated

selling price in the ordinary course of business

BRZMN R REMERA
KB BFE 2 BIRE DI X
ARTVER R INHE AR E © AT &
BRERERRXBBIET 24
At EERART TERR AN K M 86

less estimated costs of completion and the EHR 2 mETAA o
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
(ii) Art works (i)  Effram

Art works are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is assigned by specific
identification. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. Ultimate timing of the sale is hard to
predict given the unique nature of each art
piece and the cyclicality of the global art
market.

2.13Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
construction costs, cost of land use rights, borrowing
costs, and professional fees incurred during the
development period. On completion, the properties
are transferred to completed properties held for sale.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. Properties under development are
classified as current assets unless those will not
recognised in one normal operating cycle.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

Hao Tian Internatio

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #

T

——#=A=+—AILEE

ETRETHERBE(E)

2.14Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented

as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less

provision for impairment.

2.15Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities in the

statement of financial position.

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are
classified as “restricted cash”. Bank deposits which
are pledged are classified as "pledged bank
deposit”. Restricted cash and pledged bank deposits
are excluded from cash and cash equivalents in the
statement of cash flows.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of

tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company'’s
share (treasury shares), the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until
the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the company’s equity holders.

2.17Trade and other payable

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEEHME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.18Borrowings 218EE

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Convertible loans which entitle the holder to convert
the loans into a fixed number of equity instruments
at a fixed conversion price are regarded as
compound instruments consist of a liability and an
equity component. At the date of issue, the fair value
of the liability component is estimated using the
prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debt. The fair value of any derivative
features embedded in the compound instruments is
included in the liability component. The difference
between the proceeds of issue of the convertible
loans and the fair values assigned to the liability
component, representing the embedded option for
the holder to convert the loans into equity of the
Group, is included in equity as capital reserve. The
liability component is carried as a liability at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
derivative components are measured at fair value
with gains and losses recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18Borrowings (continued)

If the identifiable consideration received by the
Group appears to be less than the fair value of the
convertible loans issued, the Group measures the
unidentifiable services received (to be received) as
the difference between the fair value of the
convertible loans issued and that of the identifiable
consideration received, and the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible
loans based on their relative carrying amounts at the
date of issue. The portion relating to the equity
component is charged directly to equity.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as
finance costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.18Borrowings (continued)

TRETHEMECE)

218 fEE (&)

Where the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments
to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability
(debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, which is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability and the fair value of the equity

instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

2.19Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

2.20Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is
the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary

differences and to unused tax losses
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company, its subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will
be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in the
statement of other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In that case, the tax is also
recognised in the statement of other
comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21Employee benefit

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating annual
leave that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the statement of financial

position.
Post-employment obligations

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong are
required to participate in a defined contribution
scheme as defined in mandatory provident fund
scheme ("MPF Scheme”). The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group under independently administered
funds. Contributions to the schemes by the
employers and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. Under
the MPF Scheme, each of the company (the
employer) and its employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The
monthly contributions of each of the employer
and the employees are subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary. The Group has no further obligations
for the actual payment of post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21Employee benefit (continued)

(b) Post-employment obligations (continued)

(c)

Employees of the Group in the PRC are
required to participate in defined contribution
retirement schemes administered and operated
by municipal governments. The Group's
subsidiaries in the PRC contribute funds to the
retirement scheme to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees which are calculated
on certain percentage of the average employee
salary as agreed by the municipal government.
Such retirement schemes are responsible for
the entire post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees. The Group
has no further obligations for the actual
payment of post-retirement benefits beyond

the contributions.
Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or when an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of
the following dates: (a) when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
(b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period

are discounted to present value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22Share-based payment

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates an employee share
scheme. Emolument shares issued to
employees by the Company for no cash
consideration. The fair value of the emolument
shares granted under the employee share
scheme is recognised as an expense over the
relevant service period, being the year to which
the bonus relates and the vesting period of the
shares. The fair value is measured at the grant
date of the shares and is recognised in equity in
the share-based payment reserve. The number
of shares expected to vest is estimated based
on the non-market vesting conditions. The
estimates are revised at the end of each
reporting period and adjustments are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss

and share-based payment reserve.

Where shares are forfeited due to a failure by
the employee to satisfy the service conditions,
any expenses previously recognised in relation
to such shares are reversed effective the date of

the forfeiture.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of shares over its
equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiaries in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiaries, with a corresponding credit to the

Company's equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

2.24Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the
goods or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods and
services may be transferred over time or at a point in

time.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue is recognised when a performance
obligation is satisfied by transferring control of the
promised products or services to a customer in an
amount that reflects the consideration expected to
be collected in exchange for those products or
services. The revenue recognition of the Group is

determined through the following five steps:

(i) Identification of the contract, or contracts, with

a customer;

(i) Identification of the performance obligations in
the contract;

(i) Determination of the transaction price;

(iv) Allocation of the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract;

(vy  Recognition of revenue when, or as, a

performance obligation is satisfied.

At contract inception, it is performed that the
assessment and the identification of a performance
obligation for each promise to transfer to the
customer a product or a service (or bundle of
products or services) that is distinct. To identify the
performance obligations, the Group considers all the
products and services promised in the contract with
the customer based on the Group's customary
business practices, published policies, or specific

statements.

The Group recognises revenue when the specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group's

activities, as described below:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sale of rental machinery, machinery and
spare parts

Revenue arising from the sale of rental
machinery, machinery and spare parts is
recognised at a point in time when customers
obtain control of the machinery and spare parts
after the delivery is accepted. There is generally

one performance obligation.
Repair and maintenance service income

Revenue arising from the provision of repair
and maintenance service is recognised over
time when the Group transfers control of the
services over time, based on the actual service
provided to the end of the reporting period as
a proportion of the total services to be
provided, as the customers receives and uses
the benefits simultaneously. Repair and
maintenance services are generally provided
within one day. There is generally one

performance obligation.
Transportation service income

Revenue arising from the provision of
transportation service is recognised over time
when the Group transfers control of the services
over time, based on the actual service provided
to the end of the reporting period as a
proportion of the total services to be provided,
as the customers receives and uses the benefits
simultaneously. Transportation services are
generally provided within one day. There is

generally one performance obligation.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24Revenue recognition (continued)

(d) Commission income generated from asset

(e)

()

management, securities brokerage,
commodities, futures and income from other

financial services

Revenue arising from the provision of asset
management, securities brokerage,
commodities, futures and income from other
financial services are recognised at a point over
time when the control of relevant contract notes
or services are transferred to customers. Control
of the promised goods or services are
transferred to the customer on completion of
delivery of the goods or services. There is

generally one performance obligation.
Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any
contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to
the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of
the transaction prices for the time value of
money.

Rental income generated from construction
machinery

Revenue from rental income generated from
construction machinery is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease the lease

terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24Revenue recognition (continued)

(9)

(h)

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost using the effective interest method is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as
part of other income. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of

the loss allowance).
Dividend income

Dividends are recognised as other income in
the statement of profit or loss when the right to
receive payment is established. This applies
even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a

recovery of part of the cost of an investment.

2.25Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a

corresponding liability at the date at which the

leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease

components. The Group allocates the consideration

in the contract to the lease and non-lease

components based on their relative stand-alone

prices. However, for leases of real estate for which

the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate

lease and non-lease components and instead

accounts for these as a single lease component.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25Leases (continued)

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e  variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate;

*  amounts expected to be payable by the lessee

under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the

measurement of the liability.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25Leases (continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for the leases
in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar

terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the

Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as a
starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing

was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing; and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.

term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
statement of profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the

remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising

the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives

received;
° any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying

asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in the statement of
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase
option. Low-value assets comprise IT-equipment and

small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct
costs incurred in obtaining an operating leases are
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset
and recognised as expense over the lease term on
the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the statement of

financial position based on their nature.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEHBEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Government grants 2.26 BF#EBY
Grants from the government are recognised at their fis 5 & AR B S & WER BT 4 B B AR
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that SEASETA MG - BT
the grant will be received and the Group will comply iR H AT EER -

with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred ENAER BN A B ERE
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss over BB 2 A I e 2 B R E N
the period necessary to match them with the costs PIBZRRIER

that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of BB EYE - WERERHB BT
property, plant and equipment are included in non- HIERBELTEWAGT A ERBBEE -
current liabilities as deferred income and are credited YHREREE ERFHRNRERE
to the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line BT ABRE ©

basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.27Related party transactions 227BERLRS
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, BEARGEASEERNEE@E
services or obligations between the Group and a ZEZER REXEETERE WM
related party of the Group, regardless of whether a i A IR ETE o

price is charged.

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s (@ MEBUATAL BIZALTZHZA

family, is related to the Group if that person: TR RNEEBRE

() has control or joint control over the () HARSEHAEHIERE
Group; A2 e

(i) has significant influence over the Group; iy HASEBEERTEN:
or 54

(i) is a member of the key management (i) RAKEEFIAREEG QA
personnel of the Group or the Group's ZEEBEBABKE °
parent.
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2

ESAS+—HILFR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27Related party transactions (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third party.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related
to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a) above.

a person, or a close member of that
person’s family, who has control or joint
control over the Group, has significant
influence over the Group or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
Group (or of a parent of the Group).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including (i) foreign
exchange risk, (ii) cash flow interest rate risk; and (iii)
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. Risk management is carried
out by the senior management of the Company
under policies approved by the Board of Directors of

the Company:
(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong.

The functional currency of the Hong Kong
reporting entities is HK$ and the
transactions are mostly denominated in
HK$ and United States dollar ("US$"). For
transactions or balances denominated in
US$ are reasonably stable with the Hong
Kong dollars under the Linked Exchange
Rate System, the directors are of the
opinion that the Company does not have
significant foreign exchange risk, the
exposure to fluctuation in exchange rates
will only arise from the translation to the
presentation currency of the Group.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is

performed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk primarily through financing,
capital expenditure and expenses
transactions that are denominated in a
currency other than HKS$, which is the
functional currency of the major
subsidiaries of the Group. The Group
manages its exposures to foreign currency
transactions by monitoring the level of
foreign currency receipts and payments.
The Group ensures that the net exposure
to foreign exchange risk is kept to an
acceptable level from time to time. The
Group is presently not using any forward
exchange contract to hedge against
foreign exchange risk as management
considers its exposure is not significant.

Cash flow and interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk
through the impact of rates changes on
interest-bearing borrowings and bank and
pledged deposits.

The Group monitors closely its interest
rate exposure by maintaining an
appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate
borrowings and considers hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise. The position is regularly
monitored and evaluated by reference of
anticipated changes in market interest
rate. During the year ended 31 March
2021, the Group did not have any financial

instruments for hedging purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

S

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Cash flow and interest rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to the
floating-rate borrowings and bank and
pledged deposits at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole
year.

The sensitivity analysis below
demonstrates the effect of the interest
differences by a 0.5% change on floating-
rate borrowings and bank and pledged
deposits, assuming all other variables
were held constant.

3
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Impact on post-tax loss

REE HE BB TE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—B--F —T-TF ZB--H —T-TF
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S

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) Price risk

The Group's exposure to equity securities
price risk arises from investments held by
the Group and classified in the
consolidated statement of financial
position as financial assets at FVTPL and
financial assets at FVTOCI. The
management would manage its exposure
arising from these investments by closely
monitoring the performance of respective
listed equity securities and derivatives and
market conditions. The management
would consider diversifying the portfolio
of these investments as they consider

appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

S
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) Price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
equity securities price risks at the end of
the reporting period. The sensitivity
analysis included those financial assets at
FVTPL and financial assets at FVTOCI. If
the prices of the respective equity
investment included in financial assets at
FVTPL had been 10% higher/lower,
assuming all other variables were held
constant, the impact to the Group would

be as follows:

%

IUATEEEEE L +10%
SABRZEREE -10%

Financial assets at
FVTPL

WATESEAERL +10%
SAEMEENGEZ  -10%

Financial assets at
FVTOCI

Impact on post-tax loss

M ERERE(E)
3.1 MBEBREE(E)
(a) WEmEEE(E)
(i) 1BEmE ()
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FERRRETE SR E
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RIREZERLEA/TH
10% @ REFABEEMEEH

HRE - AHAEEZY
B HMT :

Impact on other
component on equity

HHGER ¥E HEGHMARN I 2 FE
2021 2020 2021 2020
“®B--% -T-TH ZB--§ CTCEE
HK$'million ~ HK§'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK§'million
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HEEBEE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEEREBEZ(E)
(b) Credit risk (b) 1=EREE
Credit risk arises if a customer or other MEFPREMR ZE T REERTIT
counterparty fails to meet its contractual HEHWEE AELEERR -
obligations. The credit risk of the Group mainly AEBECZEERBEIEREES
arises from trade receivables, loan receivables, JEUGRIE - RWER - piEHE
finance lease receivables, other receivables; FEUFRIE ~ B EUEIA - AR
and deposits with banks and financial RITR SREEEN - HEEE
institutions, in which carrying amounts RESEERR
represented the maximum exposure to credit
risk.
As at 31 March 2021, the Group has R-_ZE-_—F=A=+—H" 'K
concentration of credit risk in respect of its loan SEREEKER REMHERE
receivables, finance lease receivables, other WskIE - Hib e IBE N E 5 e
receivables and trade receivables. The number WHEEREEETRR - %%
of counterparties from these receivables are as JEWFIEZ R ZHFEBWT ¢
follows:
2021 2020

—B-—F T -ZTF
Loan receivables FEUE =K 43 78
Finance lease receivables R E T E U R TE 4 4
Other receivables H b fE U SR IE 11 7
Trade receivables B S EWGRIE 153 102

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between

the Group's different customer bases.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
The following tables provide information about
the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs

for trade receivables as at 31 March 2021 and
2020:

3

MHEBEE(E)

3.1 BEREBEE(E)

(b)

Expected
loss rate
EHERE
%

=EmE ()

TREHEWNAEER T~
FR-B-FF=A=t+— B
CERAD ISP et

TEEEEEECER
Gross
carrying Allowance
amount for loss
REAE BEREE
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEAET BEAET

At 31 March 2021 R-ZE-—%

=ZA=t+—8H
Current BEA
1-30 days past due BmHEI1Z30H
31-90 days past due BHI31 £ 90 H
91-180 days past due BHEI91 £ 180 H
Over 180 days 180 HIA £
At 31 March 2020 R-B-2F

=A=+-8
Current BNES " 35 4
1-30 days past due BHEI1Z=30H 13 16 2
31-90 days past due BHI31 £ 90 A 14 1
91-180 days past due #HEI91ZE 180 H 29 2
Over 180 days 180 HEA £ 75 16 12
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Loss allowance on loan receivables, finance
lease receivables, other receivables are
measured as either 12-months expected credit
losses or lifetime expected credit losses on
individual basis, depending on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. If a significant increase
in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since
initial recognition, then loss allowance is

measured as lifetime expected credit losses.

The Group placed deposits in banks are held in
reputable financial institutions, which
management believes are of high credit quality
and management does not expect any losses
arising from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The Group has monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. Movements of the allowance for
credit losses on loan receivables, finance lease
receivables, other receivables and trade
receivables are disclosed in notes 21, 22, 24 and
27 respectively.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasts are prepared by
management. Management monitors rolling
forecasts on the Group's liquidity requirements
to ensure the Group maintains sufficient
liquidity reserve to support sustainability and
growth of the Group's business. Currently, the
Group finances its working capital requirements
through funds generated from operations, issue
of new shares, corporate note payables,
convertible note payable and obtaining bank

and other borrowings.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve on the basis of
expected cash flows. The Group's policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

long term.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the end of
the reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

3

MHEBEE(E)

3.1 MEEREBREZ(E)

(c)

B ELEE

REREBMREEERE - B
BEERAKRERBESRRZ
RENTER - FERANEEER TR
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T BUOTHRND BNRER
7 B ABREREREGRT
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EEERERREREERER
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BRIERRSESTRKEEET
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #

O THE CONSO

Liquidity risk (continued)

E=

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

—F=A=+—AILER

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

Less than
1 year
DPR1E
HK$'million
BEET

MBEBEE(E)

3.1 BEREBEE(E)

(c) mBEZEE(E)

Between  Between
1 year to 2to Over
2 years 5 years 5 years
15825 25%5%F 540L
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT AEAT BEERL

Total

wst
HK$'million
BEAETL

At 31 March 2021 R-B=-F
=ZA=+-H
Trade payables BHREMTIE
Other payables, deposits EREE - B
received and accruals "e REHA
Bank and other borrowing and 817 R EMEE AL
corresponding interests RS
Corporate note payablesand ~ ENMEZHE R
corresponding interests RS
Lease liabilities HEEE
At 31 March 2020 et Tt X2
=ZR=t-H
Trade payables BHEMNIE 18 - - - 18
Other payables, deposits HEMEAHE  BI
received and accruals " REFHE 36 - - - 3%
Bank and other borrowing and 817 R A EE A K
corresponding interests HRERE 178 68 33 - 219
Convertible note payable and  [ET AT IR Z1E I
corresponding interests TRERIE 10 10 224 - 244
Lease liabilities HEEE 13 1 19 - 43
255 89 276 - 620
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HEEKBRSE(E)

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 E2EmER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital

structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
condition. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may obtain bank and other
borrowings, issue of convertible note payable,

corporate note payables or placing of new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts
divided by total capital. Net debts is calculated as
total borrowings (including current and non-current
bank and other borrowings, corporate note payables
and convertible bonds as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash deposits
(including cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position). Total capital is calculated as “total
equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of

financial position plus net debts.

AEBEEREAZBRERRERNEE
FEEE 28 > ARBEREHER
R MRS B AE B AR AR D BAEAR

AEEEEEARE  XHBEER
B AREFERSRTREME
E BOERMNAIRKRER EBNEXE
SERKFER D

AEERBEEABHLRERER -
AL RIZER R R ABE NG E -
BEFRIRE AR (BRE&AMER
MR PR 2 &) MBI BN IRTT R E A
fBE  BNEERRERABRERES) R
RerR(BREFAMBHRRKMARZ
RehkREFEMARCERERO
8 o BERRGEMBARRNEKAR (12
SARER ] IERFREETE -
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S

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

The gearing ratios at 31 March 2021 and 2020 were

as follows:

MBEBEE(E)

3.2 EcEBEE (&)

RZEBEZ—FRZZFT_ZTF=A
—t—BHZEEAGBLERNT

2021
—E-—F
HKS$'million
BEET

Bank and other borrowings
Corporate note payables
— at amortised cost
— at FVTPL

Convertible note payable

RITREMEE
R -
— BN

— AT @ EAR

T AR
RS

ik

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

B RERREEEY

Pledged bank deposits BHEMBITER
Net debts B15%5
Total equity BT
Total capital BENR
Gearing ratio BEABHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair values, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following tables present the fair value hierarchy
of the Group's financial assets and liabilities that
were measured at fair value at 31 March 2021 and
2020.

3 MBEREE(GE)

3.3

ATEAH

TRABEESITRAFEIIRZE
MTA - TREHRDAEWT :

s MHRAEEXBBENERMB IR
B OREHAR)(F ) -

s KBE-ANFBRIKREIN BE
HEEZAERBARE S
BER(AMER) XBEZ(BUREE
BIEZR) -

s EEXABIUIREBEABEDS
BiR B ABUR (BN A AT B
ABB) (B=M) -

TREJIAEER_TEZ_—FR=ZT

SETFSAS+-ARATEHEZ
SRAERAEZ AT EER -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

2T F=A=+—HILFE

MBEBEE(E)

3.3 DAFEME(E)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-] B-R B, @t
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BEATL BEBT BEAT
Recurring fair value BEMATEGE:
measurements:
At 31 March 2021 RZE--¥=f=+-H
Assets §E
Financial assets at WATESEEBH AL MRE
FVTOCI (note 20) Wiz erARE (M 20)
Financial assets at DATEGERERLHAER .
FVTPL (note 28) THEE (M)
— Unlisted fund investment ~ — JE L ESRE
— Unlisted debt instruments ~ — 3 FFIEBTA
Total @t
Liabilities &
Financial liabilities at NATESERAB G ABRL
FVTPL (note 33) SRARNED)
At 31 March 2020 W-Z-Z2£=f=1+-H
Assets 8B
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EGEE AR ABR L
— Listed equity securities — FHREES 18 - - 118
—Unlisted debt instruments ~ — 3 FHEKTE - - 12 12
Total Bt 118 - 12 130

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end
of the reporting period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These instruments are included in
level 1.

160  Annual Report 4§ 2020/21

REBRTSEEZEMTAZAFE
TIRBREPARZMHREH - &
SEREZEMEEMBZTHRE
RETEAME - ZFTAFAST M-



FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely
as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument

are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is

included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

e the use of quoted market prices or dealer

quotes for similar instruments

e  the use of discounted cash flow model for
unlisted equity and fund investments and

corporate note payable
e the use of option pricing model for call option

There were no significant transfers of financial assets
or liabilities between level 1, level 2 and level 3 fair

value hierarchy classifications.

The Group engaged independent professional
valuers for performing valuations of items
categorised as level 2 and level 3 as required for
financial reporting purposes. The finance department
discussed the valuation processes with audit
committee once every 6 months, in line with the

Group's half-year reporting periods.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

MHEBEE(E)

3.3 AFEMGFE)

WHRERMSEECEMIAZA
FTEEAGBERMNEE  Z5HER
MEEFNAATBREmSE®(WE) -
RERKBERE ZFEME o WET
E—HITAZAFEMBFELABEAX
WABE R B REE - AT AT
AFBE Mo

fM—BAZRERGARELIFER
AEEMSEE  MZTAFASE=
Ao

PR S R T A8 2 5 5 S E R
B

o HEUTAERMSHREXLHE
R (E

o BFEMBRARESRENNE
NEXRERERMBRRERER

7

. BREBHEERDETERL

EE-—H F_RARE=ZRIVEE
AoBzRYEEXEREEXRE
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ARBERBEIEXGHEMEOER
F_RRE=ZRZEBETHHERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
financial instruments for the year ended 31 March

3

BRRRERE(E)
3.3 AFEMEFE)

T%EEJ@ZI_E:

—F=A=f—

2021.
Financial Financial
assets at liabilities at
FVTPL FVTPL
UNRAFEGTE UAFEFE
BHEL BHEL
ABHEZ  FPABR®RZ
TREE TREaE
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEET
At 1 April 2019 R-Z—-AFWMA—H - -
Acquisitions Weid 8 -
Total gains recognised in consolidated R4ARAEEBHERERZ
statement of profit or loss Wasiaza 3 -
Exchange alignment [E H Ff#x 1 -
As at 31 March 2020 R-B-EF=A=+—H 12 -
Total gains for the year included in BRERBECEERARE
the consolidated statement of FFAGEBRERZFA
profit or loss for assets and liabilities W S 45
held at the end of the year 3 -
Change in unrealised gains for RRERFECEEREE
the year included in the consolidated ~ Ft A4REEBZHERZFR
statement of profit or loss for assets RN W o
and liabilities held at the end of
the year 3 _
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HEEKREE (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.3 AFEMEE)

Financial Financial

assets at  liabilities at
FVTPL FVTPL
DAFEFE UATEFE
BHEH#Zt BHEZt
ARz FABRZ
SREE cRBaE
HKS$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEBT

At 1 April 2020

Acquisitions

Total gains or losses recognised
in consolidated statement of

profit or loss

R-B-ZFWA—H

Uz i#

REREBmRER 2 W
kBB MR TR

At 31 March 2021

R-EB--$=ZA=+—H

Total gains/(losses) for the year
included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for
assets and liabilities held at the
end of the year

IRNFRFAEZEERRE
AAARARERZFR
Wak, (B8 @58

Change in unrealised gains/(losses)
for the year included in the
consolidated statement of profit
or loss for assets and liabilities held
at the end of the year

IRFERFAECEERAR
FAGERERZFA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3 MBERERE(GE)

WEFEBRAZAEREF AR E
RFEGERAZ G E MR8 B E

AT EE ARSI AB®T S

Fair value
178
2021
“E--F
HKS$'million
BEET

2020
ZEZFE
HK$'million

BEBTL

NAFEFELEZFABGEZE

Fair value

178
2021
—EC--E
HKS$'million
BEET

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 DAFREME(E)
Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements
Level 2 fair value measurements E-RAFEFAE
Financial assets at FVTPL
BhEE
Description Valuation technique Inputs
o fhEHT aAgE
Unlisted fund investment Asset-based approach Net assets
¥LMESRE BEERE BEFE
Level 3 fair value measurements FE=RAFEHE
Financial assets at FVTPL
BhEE
Effect on fair
value for
Valuation Unobservable increase
Description technique inputs Range of inputs
EHIEPN ¢
i fhEHE TUREGA8E il HATEZ S
2021 2020
“B--f CECEE
Unlisted debt instruments  Discounted Discount rate 11.5% Decrease
cash flow
FEMEETA FRBRERE HRE il
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ST
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

S

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair

value measurements (continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

MHEBEE(E)

3.3

DNFEMGE (E)
WEXAEBRAZEEREFURTE
RPEBRAZGEEETRBAHE
(&)

FE=RNFEAE(B)

NRAFEFEREZEFABGE LS
BAE

Effect on fair
value for
Valuation Unobservable increase
Description technique inputs Range of inputs Fair value
YLD ¢
R HERHE ATERBAYE i8 HAVECHE AV
2021 2020 2021 2020
“E--F CRCEE “8--F CRCEE
HKS'million ~ HKS'million
BEAT BEAT
Corporate note payable  Discounted Discount rate N/A Decrease -
cash flow
EREERE ER5oRE HHE FER Ry

During the two years, there were no changes in the
valuation techniques used.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 2= =—

4

FZA=1T—RLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below:
(a) Business combinations or assets acquisitions

Accounting for acquisitions require the Group to
allocate the cost of acquisition to specific assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. The
Group has undertaken processes to identify all assets
and liabilities acquired. Judgements made in
identifying all acquired assets, determining the
estimated fair value assigned to each class of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as asset's
useful lives, could materially impact the calculation of
goodwill, bargain purchase and depreciation and
amortisation charges in subsequent periods.
Estimated fair values are based on information
available near the acquisition date and on
expectations and assumptions that have been
deemed reasonable by management. Determining
the estimated useful lives of tangible and intangible

assets acquired also requires judgement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(a)

Business combinations or assets acquisitions
(continued)

The Group has not applied the concentration test to
assess whether the acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. Rather, the Group has
assessed a business based on whether an integrated
set of activities and assets include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output.
No goodwill or bargain purchase will be recognised
if the acquisition is not considered as a business
combination. Even if there is economic goodwill in
the transaction, this amount is allocated to the assets
acquired based on their relative fair values. This
results in a higher asset basis that must then be
amortized or depreciated. Different conclusions
around these judgements may materially impact how
these investments presented and measured in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group.

4 BRI ETRERE)

(a)

EBEHREEWE (E)

65 18 30 4 R 5 R DR S AR P
Wiz —HEBNEERBYIF—TA
X% iR AEEERE—HEKS
ABREERAELBREARYAIE
EHZENMEHEREMZBRARE
HHEBRFERS - MKESFEIR
BEEBE ATSEIABELRE
BYE - AEXZTEELERE -
ZEBRDRELEE R FEIEERR
WIREE GEEBBRIEERAR
HEMBETHHSNE - BR%F
HIE 2 TR A BEH R EFRENA
KEHEEYBMNEK 2 RFAET
REREATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and investments
accounted for using equity method

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested
annually for impairment; or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on the higher of value-in-use
calculations or fair value less costs of disposal. These
calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates. Management judgement is required in the
area of asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i)
whether an event has occurred that may indicate that
the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and net
present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including the discount rates
or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and as a result
affect the Group's financial condition and results of

operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hao Tian Internatio

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group estimates the allowances for expected
credit loss for its trade receivables, finance lease
receivables, loan receivables and other receivables.
This requires the use of estimates and judgements
which are based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, possibility of default adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of reporting period. Where the
estimation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying amounts of the
financial assets and will affect the result of allowance
for loss recognised and results of operations.

Fair value of other financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities at
FVTPL or FVTOCI were determined by using various
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement
to select a variety of methods and make assumptions,
including the discount rates, which are mainly based
on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in assumptions used
could materially affect the fair value of these balances
and as a result affect the Group's financial condition

and results of operation.

4
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

a. Description of segments and principal
activities

The Group has identified five (2020: four) reportable

segments of its business:

0]

Rental and sale of construction machinery and
spare parts business: The Group offers crawler
cranes of different sizes, other mobile cranes,
aerial platforms and foundation equipment in
its construction machinery rental fleet in Hong
Kong. The Group also sells construction
machinery and spare parts in Hong Kong and
Macau.

Provision of repair and maintenance and
transportation service business: The Group
provides repair and maintenance service for
construction machinery, in particular the crawler
cranes, in Hong Kong. The Group also provides
transportation services which include local
container delivery, construction site delivery

and heavy machinery transport in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

a.

Description of segments and principal
activities (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Money lending business: The Group holds
money lending licenses and offers mortgaged
loan and personal loan businesses in Hong

Kong.

Provision of asset management, securities
brokerage, commodities, futures and other
financial services business: The Group holds
Securities and Future Commission licenses for
conducting type 1 (dealing in securities), type 2
(dealing in futures contracts), type 4 (advising
on securities) and type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and provides a wide range

of financial services in Hong Kong.

Property development business: The Group
started the property development business
during the Year. The Group holds properties
under development in Malaysia through a
subsidiary and in Cambodia through an

associate.

5

WK EEHR (F)

a.

THREEFHFRE(E)

(iii)

(iv)
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A B S H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

b. Segment profit or loss

The segment profit or loss for the reportable
segments provided to the chief operating decision
maker and reconciliation to profit before taxation for
the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 are as

5

sale of repair and

follows:
Rentaland  Provision of
construction  maintenance
machinery
and spare  transportation
parts
BERAR  REKER
TS
2021 z8=-F BEREE
HKS'million ~ HK$'million
BEER
External revenue IR
Segment resuts before MR TREFZ
the following iterns: ARRE:
— Depreciation and amortisation ~ — & R &
— Impaiment losses: —iBER:
— property, plant and equipment  —¥1% + HERRE
— intangjble assets —BVEE
—financial assets (expected —SHAE(BYEE
credit losses) ER)
— Finance costs —BERE
Segment results AEE
Unallocated: AAH:
— Other income —EHA
— Otherlosses —Et B
— Administrative expenses — 1A

— Share-based payment expenses — IR S AE X
— Share of results of associates  — H{EEFE R AEE
— Share of results of oint ventures — AR

— Finance costs —BERS

Profit before taxation BRiEN& T
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and
service
REUR
BBk

BB

WK 7 EEHR (F)

Ptk

BHE-_Z-_—FR-_ZF-_FF=HA
“t+t—HLEFE RBEHETFEELER
KANBEAERD Bz o BiERE KB
FADE MR T

Provision

of asset
management,
securities
brokerage,
commodities,
futures and

Money  other financial Property
lending services  development Total

EfHaEEE-
25EL
Bm - BER

BE  RbERBE UES T &t

HKS'milion ~ HK§'million  HK$'million ~ HKS'million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT




5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

b.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

5 WBWARSBERGE)

Segment profit or loss (continued) b. Z&EZEGE)
Provision
of asset
management,
Rental and Provision of securities
sale of repair and brokerage,
construction maintenance commodities,
machinery and futures and
andspare  transportation Money  otherfinancial
parts service lending services Total
REEEER.
BEHAR feft R
BREH BERRE Am HERk
2020 “E-%E HEREE  UREERE HE  Efteakik &
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEAT BEAT BRET REAT
External revenue SR 129 9 35 19 192
Segment results before the MERUTEER 2
following items: N 36 - 4 (12) 65
— Depreciation and amortisation ~ — T& & 44 (40) (1) - (4) (45)
— Impairment losses: — REBE
— financial assets (expected —SREE(RY
credit losses) EEBR) ) - (1) ) (48)
— Finance costs —RENE () - @2 - )
Segment results HHEE (15) () 2 (17) (33)
Unallocated: APE:
— Otherincome — B A 2
— Other gains — Efolss 74
— Administrative expenses —1HAEX @)
— Share-based payment expenses  — MR(AT AR 1)
— Share of results of joint ventures  — AR ELEFE 57
— Finance costs —BENK U
Profit before taxation RHARR 68

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as
the chief operating decision maker does not regularly
review segment assets and liabilities.

AR EBEERRALETEHEHD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

5

Geographical information

The geographical information about the Group's
revenue from external customers by location of
operations and the non-current assets other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets in which

the assets are physically located is detailed below:

Revenue

WA

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t+-HLEE

2021
—E-—%
HK$'million
BHEAER
Hong Kong BB
The People’s Republic % A R HFIE
of China
Macau R
Cambodia ESEES
Note:

Non-current assets excluded financial assets at FVTOCI, loan
receivables, financial lease receivables, deferred tax assets,
pledged bank deposits and other receivables and deposits.
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WARDIER(E)
c. HWEZER

BERASEBIMNBEPAFRA (R
BB D) ARERBDEE(ERT
AN RIRERIREE (BEERAT
) 2R BT

Non-current assets (note)
FREEE (M)

As at 31 March

R=B=+—-H
2020 2021 2020
—TTF —E--F —T-TF
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BEET BEAT
576
10
586

FRBEETBREALNFEFELEZEHAR
thEEREZERAE  BRENX BEHEER
WR  EERIAEE  CERRTERARAE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

d. Information about major customers

Revenue from external customers over 10% of the

total revenue of the Group are as follows:

WK EEHR (F)

BAREIERFZEHR

EAREFRKABIBI0% ZINEEEF
WAL -

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ZT-FTF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BHE®BTT BEET

Customer A ZEA

— Rental and sale of construction — EEEW M ERE
machinery and spare parts HENIHEDED

30

segment
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TO THE CONSOLI
e R RME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARZBER(E)

(continued)

e. Revenue summary

e. WABIE

2021
—E-—F
HKS$'million
BEERT

Revenue from contracts with
customers (note i):
— Sale of construction machinery
and spare parts
— Repair and maintenance and
transportation service income
— Commission income generated

from asset management,

BEFAHZWA (LD

— BERBIERTIHEE

— HE RRE A NGER RIS WA

—BEEE  EHFERL -
A HEREA

securities brokerage, ERBRBEEZ
commodities, futures and BB
other financial services

Revenue from other sources: H A R Z A

— Rental income generated from — BEMWMEE 2HSWA
construction machinery

— Interest income generated from — MEEEZFEWA
money lending

— Interest income generated from —RECHEELEZ
margin financing FEHA
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2020

—ECEF

HK$'million
BEBT




5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

e.

1_\I=|

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

Revenue summary (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Sale of construction machinery and
spare parts

Repair and maintenance and
transportation service income

Commission income generated from
asset management, securities

REBHLERTHHE

RERRBUREBRBLA

RERE #5800
A HERAL

brokerage, commodities, futures and tREEEEZESMA
other financial services

Timing of revenue recognition WARREH

At a point in time RE-KHE

Over time A

Total e

5

Note i. Disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of construction
machinery and
spare parts

BEBHR
EREHEHE
HKS'million
HE#ER

WK EEHR (F)

WABE(E)

Mz 2HFEFENKRA

BE-E--S=ZA=t+—-HLEE

Provision of
repair and
maintenance and
transportation
service
RELER
REUR
ERRYE
HK$'million
BEER

Annual Report % 2020/21

Provision of
asset management,
securities
brokerage,
commodities,
futures and other
financial services
RUGEER
BHLL BR-
HEREtSBBRE
HK$'million
AE#ER

Total

F2H
HK$'million
AEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

5

(continued)

e.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARZBER(E)
Revenue summary (continued) e. WABE(GE)
Note i. Disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers fEi. 2IREFEHWA ()
(continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z_ZHF=-A=1+—HILFE
Provision of asset
management,
Provision of  securities brokerage,
Sale of repair and commodities,
construction maintenance and futures and
machinery and transportation other financial
spare parts service services Total
RBER RYBEER
BERWR RENR  EHER ER-
BRTHHE ERRE  BEREMSHRS it
HK$'million HK$'million HKS'million HKS'million
AERT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Sale of construction machinery and BEEARLERTHHE
spare parts 29 - - 29
Repair and maintenance and EERREARERRBRA
transportation service income - 9 - 9
Commission income generated from BERE EHLL-
asset management, securities m - HERER
brokerage, commodities, futures and SRRBELZBLWA
other financial services - - 15 15
29 9 15 53
Timing of revenue recognition WARRRE
Atapointin time RE-BES 9 - 11 40
Over time Bebsfa - 9 4 13
Total @t V] 9 15 53
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(continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARZBER(E)

f. Summary of revenue and gross proceeds f. WARRBHEAAFEFERH
from the sale of financial assets at FVTPL BT ABEZEREEZRER
HEEIHE
2021 2020

=B T -TF
HK$'million HK$'million
BEBT BEBTT

Revenue (note 5(e)) WA (M35 5(e)) 192
Gross proceeds from the sale of REHEUATEFEER
financial assets at FVTPL Bt ANBRzeREEZ
FiSFIRMEER 21
213
OTHER INCOME 6 Hulg A
2021 2020

—EB-—F —ET-TF
HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEBT

Interest earned on bank deposits BLERTTIF SRR 2 F &, 1
Rental income s ON 3
Government grant IEgSREHEY) -
Others Hith 1

5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLID

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

7 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7 Hib (8 R FE
2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEER BEET
Fair value (losses)/gains on: UTEEz ATFEER) M
— financial assets at FVTPL — UAFEFEAHE L
TABRZEREE 28
— financial liabilities at FVTPL — AT ERFEEESEA
BazemasE -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENEAREKER 32
Gain on bargain purchase BRI E 18
Extinguishment loss on early principal e R D AR =&
redemption of convertible note A BEBE
payables =
Foreign exchange gain PE 5 W e -
78
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 8 EEBAMEX
(a) Employee benefits expenses (including (a) EERARX(BRESHD)
directors’ emoluments)
2021 2020
S —E-TF
HK$'million ~ HK$'million
BEER BEAET
Salaries, wages, bonuses and other e IE ek
allowances Hfth 285 72
Contributions to retirement RREE GBI R
contribution plan 2
74
Employees’ share-based BB ARM S fTF X
payment expenses 1
75
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued) 8 {EEEAMBEX (&)
(b) Five highest paid employees (b) EEESHES
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments ErEEFMES DA @NETE
in the Group, three (2020: four) were directors of the 2R (CE-FFNF) ARR
Company, whose emoluments are included in the REE A R A TS AT
disclosure set out in Note 8(c) below. The emolument HEER -BRESBIN FEs 2@
of the highest paid individual except directors is as AETESIT :
follows:
2021 2020
B —-F —ZT-FF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BE#ET BEBTT
Salaries, wages, bonuses and e LEEAK
other allowances H b2 Ak 2 1
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e F T8 E 2 ASK:
Number of individuals
AE
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —ZT-FTF
Emolument band: B & E -
HK$ Nil-HK$1,000,000 T 702 1,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T = 1,500,000 7% 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T = 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 -

During the year ended 31 March 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2020: Nil).

HE_Z-_—F=-A=+—HILFE "
AEEWERAERNESIH RS 2
RAEERE IS ERMARE
3 A\ B s B R (2
TEE)o
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o 2 B R 2 AT

For the year ended 31 March 2021 ===

8

—F=A=+—BLFE

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued)

(c)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each director

were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Fee
e
HK$'million
BERR
Executive directors HTEE
Fok Chi Tak (note i) EEE (M)
Tang Yiu Chi James Higg
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. BEnET  tFet
Zheng Li (note i) 258 (Mistii)
Non-executive directors FHTES

Xu Lin (note i)

SR (B

Wei Bin (note iii) R (Bt

Independent non-executive ~ BIXHITEE
directors

Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua £

Mak Yiu Tong BRE

Li Chi Keung Elliot EX

Shek Lai Him Abraham (note iv) A28 ([i{zEiv)

Total L2H)
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8 EETAMEXZ(E)

() EBRITHERZME
BENRENSES M0 T
BE-_ZT-_—F=A=1+—HLEFE

Contributions

Salaries  to retirement Share-

and other  contribution based
allowances plan payment Total

2 BRI AR 42
Hir2 HE [ FAAR @t
HK$'million HKS$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEER BERR BEER R




8

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued) 8 EEEAEX(E)
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () ESRTHARZME (B)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE-Z2-_ZSF=-A=t+—-HLFE
Contributions
Salaries  toretirement
and other contribution Share-based
Fee allowances plan payment Total
ek NS PGl
ik Hiv2g HELS FAMT @it
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEATL BEAT BEAT BEATL BEAT
Executive directors HTES
Fok Chi Tak (note i) Exe (i) - 25 - = 25
Tang Yiu Chi James HRs - 20 - - 20
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. BEREL tTas - - - - -
Zheng Li (note i) o (Fizin) - 27 - - 27
Zhang Sheng (note v) RA5 (M) - 33 - - 33
_________________________________________________________ e S TS
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHITEES
directors
Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua THE 0.1 - - - 0.1
Mak Yiu Tong L% 0.1 - - - 0.1
Li Chi Keung Elliot 8B 0.1 - - - 0.1
03 . - . 03
Chief executive THER
Zheng Li (note i) 258 (Mistii) - - - - -
Gao Zhangpeng [note vi) SEHE (fsEvi) - 06 - 08 14
- 06 - 08 14
Total st 03 1.1 - 08 122
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #iZ=%=

—F=A=+—AILER

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued)

() Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

Notes:

U]

(i)

(vi)

Fok Chi Tak was appointed as the co-chief executive officer
of the Company on 1 May 2020. Upon the resignation of
Zheng Li as co-chief executive officer of the Company on 30
June 2020, Mr. Fok became the chief executive officer of the
Company.

Zheng Li was appointed as an executive director of the
Company and chief executive officer of the Company on 1
September 2019. Mr. Zheng became as co-chief executive
officer of the Company alongside with Fok Chi Tak on 1 May
2020. Mr. Zheng resigned as co-chief executive officer of the
Company on 30 June 2020.

Xu Lin and Wei Bin were appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on é October 2020.

Shek Lai Him Abraham was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 15 October 2020.

Zhang Sheng resigned as an executive director of the
Company on 28 August 2020.

Gao Zhangpeng resigned as a chief executive officer of the
Company on 31 August 2019.

(d) Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by

any directors in respect of their other services in

connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company or its subsidiaries undertaking (2020: Nil).

(e) Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as compensation

for the early termination of the appointment during
the year (2020: Nil).

1 84 Annual Report % 2020/21

BEERAMAX(E)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ESRTRARZHE (B)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

EFER-_T_ZFRIA-HEZERK
REBEITHAE - BER_T_TFX
A=+ BRBERDABETREREK B
FERBARRBTRAE -

BERN_Z-NFNA-BEZERETA
FMTESERTRAR - BRENR T
ZHERA—ARBLERRK /A D A
FBITRERE BEER T _TFRA
=T HEHEAR BB FITHAEE -

AMERER T _TF+ANBEEE

RERBIERITES -

AEFAN_Z_FTFTATHREZRER
RABEULIFRITES -

EHER_ZT_TFNA=+NBHEEIER
RIBITESE °

BEMBR =
DNEATHAEE,

Z-NFNA=Z+—HEHEAR

EERAKERN

BEEEREMRHRERNRFREM
BRAREHEEMAB I LMRBES

S AE (TR
&)

RIKEH(ZE 24 -

EERBERN

AEETEAEENEMNHSER
RERIZEZHE( T _FF:

/\\)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hao Tian Internatio

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of
directors for making available the services of them as
a director of the Company (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors during the
year (2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company or an entity connected to a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2020: Nil).

8

BERBRAMAX(E)

(f)

(9)

(h)

BT HES S AREER IR 2
R

I 4% [A) BT AF 2 =208 = AT AR Al s IE A
BREERERARRESRERY
(ZE=ZTF |-

EBEARESE  BHZREESES
ZEANBRREZEESEREE
ReER BUBRRHEMXRZE
#

RAFE  WEEFREE  BEZS
EERHZEANBRBRAZEEEREE
HEEBCEN  BUBRRAEMK
G(ZE_ZTF: &)

EERRS  RPFESHHZEKR
R

ARB W ERT LR AR FEAEREEHA
FEAEMREFEEARBEEN
EARNREEEWEERAERIER
BEEREaBARREKBHZE
ARG BHFHEHN( T _FTF:
&) -
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE

TO THE CONSOLI

—F=A=+—AILER

0

BB D ZMAX

HK$'million

Amortisation of intangible assets

Auditor’s remuneration
Cost of inventories sold

Depreciation of:

— property, plant and equipment

— right-of-use assets
Employee’s benefit expenses
Others

B EHH
BEEFEKAN
—WE - BB MEE

—ERREE
BERAFX

Representing:
— Cost of revenue

— Administrative expenses

— AR
— 1TBRAX
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2020
—E—FF

HK$'million
AEET

27

37

74
49

197

129
68

197



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

10 FINANCE COSTS 10 BERAE
2021 2020
—B-—-F —Z-FTF
HKS$'million  HK$'million
BEAT BEBET
Interest expenses arising from: UTEEZHNERX
— bank and other borrowings — RITRHEMEE 9
— corporate note payables — BN TERE -
— convertible note payables — ERPIR R R R 4
— lease liabilities —HEAaRE 1
14
11 INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT 11 FIBH (BAX) HE&
The income tax (expense)/credit in the consolidated RAEBERPIERH (AX), ek :
statement of profit or loss represented:
2021 2020

—E-—-F —ZT-FF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BE®ET AEET

Current income tax — BVERFRS A —
Hong Kong Profits Tax EAENEHR
Provision for the year FRRE
Under-provision in prior years BEFERE IR
Deferred income tax RIEFTSTE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 8.25% on
the estimated assessable profit up to HK$2 million and
16.5% on any part of estimated assessable profit over
HK$2 million for both years. Taxation arising in other
jurisdiction are calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.

AT ERTEMNRZ2BEEETMNE - &
AREH R MIEFEHEHE825%+E -
EEHERTUE N BH 2B & B T2 8o M
5 A6 5% E - HtBAERMES
2B AR AR 2 RITREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

1|

12

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT (continued)

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
Hong Kong Profits Tax rate as follows:

Profit before income tax

Less: Share of results of associates

BR BT 1S Bt ALt 7
B DI AR EE

Share of results of joint ventures DhEEREFEE
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% R165% MEFE
(2020: 16.5%) (ZF=FF 1 165%)
Expenses not deductible for R 2
tax purposes
Income not subject to tax BERBIA

Tax loss for which no deferred

income tax amount was recognised

AERRILEFEHEELZ
iR R

Utilisation of previously unrecognised B SLRIRERZ
tax losses MBER
Under-provision in prior year BEFEREGETR
Income tax expense/(credit) TSRS (E%)
DIVIDEND 12 BRE

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).
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BE

2021
—E-—F
HK$'million
BEET

1M1 FEH (%) R (&)

REERPIETRDE AN &2 BIAAE AR EK
REBNGHMEESL 2 EREHE - Bl
T

2020
—E-TF

HK$'million
BEBT

—F=ZA=t—RHIFE AR
AYERNAEREE (ZE_FF &) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 BRER
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings per share was calculated by dividing BREXRBMEARNRERTE AR
the profit for the year attributable to the equity EFRNEFNRAFRBRETEBRZ
holders of the Company by the weighted average NEFHEEHE -

(b)

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2021 2020
—s-—& —ZT-TF

Profit for the year attributable to the equity A2 BIER A AFEIEE R A

holders of the Company (HK$'million) (B8BT) 72
Weighted average number of ordinary BEITE BB IETFHE
shares in issue (million shares) (BBR) 4,313
Basic earnings per share (HK$ cents) FRERRM GEI) 1.6/
Diluted (b) #58
Diluted earnings per share was calculated as follows: BRESRNFTENT -
2021 2020

—g-—& —E-TE

Profit for the year attributable to the equity N2 Bl#EZEHH A B F PUHF

holders of the Company (HK$' million) (B&BT) 72
Weighted average number of ordinary BEETERR 2 INETHH

shares in issue (million shares) (BB 4313
Adjustment for assumed exercise: RBRZITEATIHE #ETHAE
— share awards — Ik fn & -
Weighted average number of ordinary HEESREERN 2 TRk

shares for the purpose of diluted DRI 8K

earnings per share 4,313
Diluted earnings per share (HK$ cents) S EERR OB 1.67
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O THE CONSO

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 Y% BERRZRE
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Machinery Total
HE HE &R £EBR
T REF WS #E RE B @t
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BEATL BEATL BEAT BEAT BEAT
At 1 April 2019 RZB-hEMA-A
Cost A 2 3 3 10 451 469
Accumulated depreciation ZEE 0] ) (1) (10) (224) (238)
Net book amount EEFE 1 1 2 - 227 231
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-E-8%
ZR=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 1 1 2 - 227 231
Additions NE - 4 1 - 29 34
Depreciation e - - (1) - (36) (37)
Reclassification to inventories ~ EFPBEHFE - - - - 2 @
Closing net book amount EREEFE 1 5 2 - 218 226
At 31 March 2020 W-E-ZE&5=f=+-H
Cost A 2 7 4 8 474 495
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (1 @ ¥) ®) (256) (269)
Net book amount EHFE
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-E--F&
ZR=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE
Additions AE
Disposals HE
Depreciation e
Impairment ifE
Closing net book amount ERREEE

At 31 March 2021
Cost

R-B--5=A=1+-H
A

Accumulated depreciation ZEMERAME
and impairment
Net book amount RERE
Note: HeE :
(i) Non-current assets pledged as security (note 40) (i) BB IETREN & EE AR (3E40)

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$108 million was pledged to secure
borrowings (31 March 2020: HK$151 million).

RZZ-_—4=ZA=+—08" D% BEEXE
ZHEAEENAI8EES T BHEMUEREER
(ZZ=ZF=A=+—H: 151885 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

15 LEASES

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

15 #HE

() REMBRARTERZEHE

2021 2020
—EC-F C—T-TF
HK$'million  HK$'million

BEETL BEAET

Right-of-use assets EREEE

Offices WAE 25

Warehouses BB 6

Machinery T, 11

Motor vehicles RE 1
43

Lease liabilities HEas

Non-current IERE (28)

Current R (12)
(40)

No additions to the right-of-use assets during the
year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$38 million).

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended
31 March 2021 was approximately HK$15 million
(2020: HK$10 million).

HE-_ZEZ-_-F=A=+—HILFEE
WHEAEFAEEE(ZZE_FF : 38
BEBIT) °

BE_Z-—F=-A=1t—HILFE"

EMBEZ RS R AENAISEE
BIL(CBBE  0EEET) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLID
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

15 LEASES (continued) 15 HE(E)
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) FREBRBRPEIZEH
statement of profit or loss
The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows mealEmnRBERUTHRAEEHR S
the following amounts relating to leases: L

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ZT-ZF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BHE®BTT BEET

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEEINE

— Offices —WRE
— Warehouses — B
— Motor vehicles —RE
— Machinery —

Expenses related to short-term leases E2EEHATREHE/E 2 X

Interest expenses (note 10) FEF S (FIzE10)

Lease commitments of short-term WHRE 2 B E AR

leases
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

15 LEASES (continued)

(iii) Lease liabilities

15 #HE(E)

(i) HEEE

Present value of

Lease payments lease payments
HEMNR HENRAE

2021 2020 2021 2020

“B--§ -T-TF ZB--§ —T-TF

HK$'million HK$'million  HK$'million HK$'million

BEBT BEAT BEBRT BEAT

Within one year —&ER 12
In the second to fifth years, inclusive & - FEHF

(BEEREME) 28

40

Less: Future finance charges A RRBEER N/A T E

Total st 40

As 31 March 2021, the average effective borrowing
rate was ranging from 1.5% to 4.84% (2020: 1.41% to
4.40%). Interest rates are fixed at contract dates and

thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash

flows, of the Group's lease liabilities is as follows:

RZEZ—F=A=+—H " ¥H=E
BIEEFNENT15%E484% (=T =
TE L% ELL0%) o FIRRE L
HEET  AEASEEEHQFER
KR o

AEEHERBEERAMAREARE
ZEEBERAITT

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —ZT-ZTF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEBT

— Less than 1 year — —FN
— Between 1 and 2 years — —EMF
— Between 2 and 5 years —MERF

13
11
19

43
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

15 LEASES (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The Group's leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses,
machinery and motor vehicles. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed period but may have

extension options as described in (v) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.
Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in
certain leases across the Group. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing
the assets used in the Group's operations. The
majority of extension and termination options held
are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

Lease liabilities were effectively secured as the rights
to the leased assets recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position revert to the lessor in

the event of default.
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15 HE(E)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

FEEHEEHUARZEER 2
BFEER X

AEEHRASERLE  BE  #R
KR - MEAKN—RIZEERBRFT
Mo HERBERR XX ()BT RE
-

HEGFREEBNELER 2825
BARZER LG - REBEARE
ZHEBEES R 2B FERI HE
W N EEIEA R - HEEET
BSREIE SRR -

ERRAZIDRERE

EREKIDERBTAASERES
THE AERAKBEXBMAEE
TH FREEERUNESERSER
EEE - I Ko ER LK ILEE
RENHAKETE BT SHARH
HBATTHE -

HEABCEMEMR  EREERNZ
BRTHEHBAMBLRAMBERREK
RIERZHEEERERN -



16

A

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 EBEREEE
Securities
Customer brokerage
Goodwill list licenses
(note a) (note a) (note b) Total
BE  RELLER
HE () GEE) (MEED) @t
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BEATL BEATL BEETL
At 1 April 2019 W=B-7EMA-A
Cost AR 46 12 5 63
Accumulated amortisation and ZEHBELAE
impairment - (1) - (1)
Net book amount FEFE 46 1 5 62
Year ended 31 March 2020 BZ-B-Z&E=-fA=1+-H
EEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 46 i 5 62
Amortisation B - 2) - )
Impairment HE 0 - - @
Closing net book amount FREMFE 42 9 5 56
At 31 March 2020 R=B-Z2F=f=+-H
Cost XA 46 12 5 63
Accumulated amortisation and ZEHEELAE
impairment @ 3 - (7)
Net book amount FHFE

Year ended 31 March 2021

BEZ-®2--%¥zA=1-H

ILFE
Opening net book amount FOREFE
Amortisation 3
Impairment A
Closing net book amount FREEFE
At 31 March 2021 R=B=-%=ZA=t-H
Cost KA
Accumulated amortisation and S EENRE
impairment
Net book amount REFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #

=T

——FSASt+—AILEE

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(a) Goodwill and customer list

The amount arose on the acquisitions of Hao Tian
International Financial Holdings Limited ("HTIFH") in
December 2018. The recoverable amount of HTIFH
has been determined based on a value in use
calculation.

The Group carried out review of the recoverable
amount of its intangible assets in 2021 as a result of
the deterioration of the markets of the Group's
products and services. These assets are used in
HTIFH. The review led to the recognition of an
impairment loss of HK$46 million and 12 million for
goodwill and customer list respectively that have
been recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The recoverable amounts of the
relevant assets of HK$nil (2020: HK$51 million) were
determined on the basis of their value-in-use using
discounted cash flow method (level 3 fair value
measurements). The calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period with a
discount rate of 17% (2020: 13%). Cash flow after the
five-year period are extrapolated at 3% (2020:3%)
growth rate. Another key assumption for the value in
use calculation is the budgeted revenue and gross
margin, which is determined based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the
market development.
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16 BREEE(E)

(a)

BAEREFEE

ZeBE T N\F+-_AKEEX
BHEReBERBERAB(EXERE
MERDEL - RRERSRIZERZ
A EEEYREEREENREE

HRAEBEZEMEREHMTENISE
REBT MAEER-_ZE-_—F2%
REFEEZANEEE Z5EE
HARZXEERSRIZER - EHEH
CHEHARGABRRANDER

HMEREFPREDRIERMAEREEI
BEATRRZESET HHEEEZ
AREEEATHET(ZTEZF : 51
BEET)  BEBEHEAEEFERMR
ReREE(BE=HATENE2)ERE -
AT EFERNEREMEZ AT B
BEEAEM AL RETEA - BHR
AT (ZFEZFF 1 13%) - AF
HBZ2ESREUNIN( T T F:
3R) ZEERREE - FHEMEMEZ
S—EERBEAEEERARERE
RBENZBEREREEEST
BERBZHEER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEME
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

16

17

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
(b) Securities brokerage licenses

The amount arose on the acquisitions of HTIFH in
December 2018. The recoverable amount of HTIFH
has been determined based on fair value less cost of
disposal using market approach (level 3 fair value
measurements).

SUBSIDIARIES

The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2021 are
set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share
capital consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held
directly by the group, and the proportion of ownership
interests held equals the voting rights held by the group.
The country of incorporation or registration is also their
principal place of business.

16

17

BYEE(B)
(b) BHEELIER

ZeBE T N\F+-_AKEEX
BRSRIZERES - ERERS T
ez AR B & BR AR A T 5 AR B A F
BEREEXNRN(BE=RAFEFE)E

7 o
M AR

AEBR-_Z-_—F=A=+—HZIXEW
BRREIMT - BREAHBIN - ZEWE
REIZBAEREEERR A2 EEBRE
X PR R 2 LRI EREERE
ZERRE  EMR L AEMERTAEER
S
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

17 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries (a)

Place of incorporation/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLID

17 MIBRAT (&)

Issued and fully paid up share Ownership interest

FEWMBARFE

Principal activities

IRER

Name of entity establishment capital/registered capital held by the Group
BRIRAR LS 3|
RiEzR MR/ R R/ ERER BHFERER
2021 2020
—E--% —T-TE
Alcott Global Limited (“Alcott") BV US$100 -
Alcott Global Limited ([Alcott]) ~ EBREXEHS 100%7T
Big Wish Developments Limited BVI US$100 -
("Big Wish”) RERIHS 1007
Big Wish Developments Limited
(IBig Wish )
Chim Kee Business Limited BVI US$100 100%
EREKES 10057
Chim Kee Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 99.9%
HiARRA Bl 1,000,0007% 7
Chim Kee Equipment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100%
AEREERAT] &R 18T
Chim Kee Machinery Co., Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS$1 99.9%
HBHARLE R BT
Chim Kee Transportation Hong Kong HK$1,200,000 99.9%
Cornpany Limited Bl 1,200,000 570
hiBHARAH
Dasar Prisma Sdn. Bhd. ("Dasar”) Malaysia Malaysian Ringgit 2 -
Dasar Prisma Sdn. Bhd. ([Dasar]) ~ HRAE ERBELE
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Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding

Construction machinery
rental and trading and
sales of construction
materials business

BEEREERHEENR
RENHHEEH

Construction machinery
rental business

RERWEERH

Construction machinery
rental and trading and
sales of construction
materials business

RERHBERHEENR
REMHHEERE

Provision of machinery
transportation services

REERERRE

Property development
NEER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLID

17 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries

(continued)

Place of incorporation/

Issued and fully paid up share

Name of entity establishment capital/registered capital
BRTRAR

BRER HRRL/ R B/ ERER

Glory Century Limited Hong Kong HK§100

FARRAA e 10087

Hao Tian Asset Management Hong Kong HK$5,000,000
Limited BE 5,000,000 57

EREEERARAT

Hao Tian Credit Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$200,000,000

EREEARAT BB 200,000,000757C

Hao Tian International Financial Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
Holdings Limited Bl 10,000,000 87T

SRERSRIERERAR

Hao Tian International Finance Hong Kong HK$2,000,000
Company Limited B 2,000,000/ 7

ERERSBERAR

Hao Tian International Futures Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
Limited & 10,000,000 7

SRERREERAR

Hao Tian International Securities Hong Kong HK$100,000,000
Limited BE 100,000,000/ 7T

SREREFBRAR

Hightion, Sociedade Unipessoal Macau MOP25,000
Limitada AP JRPFT 25,0007

EE NN

17 MIBAT (&)

R B BEHRRME

E-Z-—F=A=+—HLFE

() FEMBLARFEE)

Ownership interest

held by the Group Principal activities
548
BRZAREL IRXR
2021 2020
—B--F e 3:3
100%  Investment holding and

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Annual Report % 2020/21

provision of group
management and
administration services

REBRARRHEEER
RiTHR%

Provision of asset
management services

RHREERRRE

Money lending
HE

Investment holding

Money lending
&

Futures brokerage business

HEELEH

Securities brokerage
business

EFRREH

Construction machinery
rental business

RERHAEXHE
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

17 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLID

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries

(continued)

Place of incorporation/

Issued and fully paid up share

Name of entity establishment capital/registered capital
BRTRAE
Ly S AL/ R Ra/ERER
KB Crane Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000
BLERERAF A 1,000 7
KB Leasing Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
BLBBERRA i 10,000/87T
KB Machinery Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$1
RUERERAR A 187
Solution Pro Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$100
EREARES 10057
ER(FINBERREBRAA PRC RMB3,600,000
i ARH3,6000007C
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17 MIBRAT (&)

(@) FEMBLARFEE)

Ownership interest
held by the Group
LS ]
BRZAREL

2021
It b

2020

—2-FF

Principal activities

IRXR

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Construction machinery
trading business

RERHHERS

Leasing

HE

Construction machinery
trading and sales of
construction materials
business

BEEWIRE A REEE
HEXB

Investment holding

Investment holding



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

17 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries

(continued)

Notes:

M

The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best
effort by the Group’s management to translate their Chinese
names, as these subsidiaries do not have official English
names.

The cash at bank and other financial institution of
approximately HK$32 million (2020: HK$17 million) held by
the PRC subsidiaries were subject to local exchange control
regulations. These local exchange control regulations
provided for restrictions on exporting capital from the
country other than through normal dividends.

All the above PRC-incorporated subsidiaries are limited
liability companies.

17 HMBAR(E)

(a)

Rt

M

TEMEQRFEE)

mANETHBRRLMEXRERE - &
ZEWNBARZAX BB AEEEIRE
BHBRESXERE -

EIP B R AR A Z RIT R B S mE AR
ZRENRNBEBZEL(ZE_FF 178
BBIL) AXEIMNEE FIRBIFTIRR o
ZEEWINEEHROIRE  BRBEBESR
BBsh - REEENBHER -

Fi R B A S P 22 3 B R
GG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 REEZE QAT 2R
2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BE®ETT AEET
Beginning of the year F9) -
Acquisition of an associates (notes) g VNS D)
— Investment costs — JRERAK 6
Share of results DIEHLE
— Post-acquisition results — WiEREE -
— Excess of net fair value of identifiable — AJE#BIEE AL HERH
assets over costs of investments B 2 5B -
End of the year FR 6

During the year, the Group acquired 3 associates, namely
CESIZ (Cambodia) Co., Ltd., (“CESIZ"), Lion Run Holdings
Limited (“Lion Run”) and Triple Blessing International
Limited ("Triple Blessing”).

(i) CESIZ

Details of the acquisition please refer to note 39.
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FR-AKEWRE=HE 2 QFCESIZ
(Cambodia) Co., Ltd. ([CESIZ]) ~ J#li8 5 J&
BRAT([REER]) R=12BFEBR QT
([=BEER]) -

(i) CESIZ

WEEE RIS HE2MME39 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Lion Run

In December 2020, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to acquire 49% equity interests in Lion Run at a
consideration of approximately HK$42 million. The
consideration was settled by transferring 16,290,000
shares in CA Cultural Technology Group Limited
("CA Cultural”) (stock code: 01566.HK) held by the
Group.

Triple Blessing

In September 2020, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to acquire 49% equity interests in Triple
Blessing at a consideration of HK$49 million. The
consideration was settled by transferring 19,600,000
shares in CA Cultural (stock code: 01566.HK) held by
the Group.

18 REE QT 2R ()

(ii)

(iii)

WEZER

R-E-—FTE+—-F AEEH—F
BYE=FINEERE  UKER
MBI 2 49% Kk - RENR2E
BET RENEAEEAZERE
2.16,290,000/% 2 E XL B L &£ E B
BAR(TZEE X L] BRfHRWR:
01566.HK) B {7 &5 ©

=RERE

RZZZZFIAA  AEREHE—-FZF
VE=FIIVEEmE  NKE=@
BIBR 2 49% Mt - REERIOBEABT
RENEAEBEEASEEREZ
19,600,000 A% #E B 30 1b (% 2 1% 5% -
01566.HK) & {0 475 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18 REEQAT2EE(E)
Set out below are the associates which, in the opinion of TREHESR —E—F=R=1+—
the directors, are material to the Group as at 31 March B AEEmE Eiﬁz G l/NC] I
2021.
Place of % of ownership
Name of entity establishment interest Principal activities
EREE AR 37 it B FrEEEER DL FEEK
2021 2020

—B--F C—ZT-TF

CESIZ Cambodia —  Property development
CESIZ RS MEER
Lion Run BVI - Licensing and
g EEBRELES development of IPs
T L 7R B AN EE
Triple Blessing BVI - Licensing and
=R EBELHS development of IPs
F T L R B RN EE
All associates are private companies and there are no B & AR RFLART - EROIWES
quoted market prices available for their shares. All S(E - T E R RIS AT E -

associates are measured using the equity method.

There were no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's RZZEZ—F=A=+—H ' "EEREE
investments in associates as at 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil). REIZHETEEAKABE(ZE_TF :

&) -
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A

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18 REEQATIZER (B)
Set out below are the summarised financial information for TXHINEREE QG BRERIBETKEL
the material associates since completion of acquisition. HEERME -
Triple
Lion Run Blessing
CESIZ WEER =RER
2021 2021 2021

—E-—F —E-—fF B
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEERT BEBT BEET

Assets and liabilities R=A=+—-82
as at 31 March BEEREE
Current assets MBEE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Current liabilities MEEE

Profit or loss for the year BEZ=A=+-H
ended 31 March LEEzBE
Revenue A

Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ FREE Kk & EE B2
for the year

Net assets BEFE

Group's share in % REEDEBEA

Group's share KEFDL

Set out below are the summarised financial information for TXEHHNEAREBT S ERITEANZ 68 T
the remaining associates which were individually BNE T IR E .

immaterial to the Group.

2021 2020
—EB--F —ZT-ZF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT BEET

The Group's share on: REEDRATEIE :
Profit and total comprehensive income £ R Al ) 2 E U 25 42 58
for the year

Carrying amount of investments HERMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

19 REELEES

2021 2020
B -F —ZT-FF
HK$'million  HK$'million

BEBAT BEBTT

Beginning of the year F1)) 165
Acquisition of joint ventures (notes) WHE A &% (MFE)
— Investment costs — REKK 33
Cessation to have joint control over THEESELEHEE LREGZ

a joint ventures -
Post-acquisition results WHE R4 S/
End of the year FR 255
Set out below are the joint ventures which, in the opinion TXEHINEERER T —F=A=1+—
of the directors, are material to the Group as at 31 March BR-ZZ-_ZHE=A=+—HHAKEMmMS
2021 and 31 March 2020. BERZEERE -

Place of
Name of entity establishment

ERA% P 3t B

—E--F

HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund Cayman Islands

HEEHS

In November 2020, the Group transferred out its
management shares over HT Riverwood Multi-Growth
Fund. Since then, HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund
ceased to be a joint venture to the Group and was
classified as a financial asset at FVTPL (note 28).
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% of ownership interest

FeEEEREI L FREK

Principal activities

2020
—E-F&

—_—= ==

53.51%  Investment holdings
REEK

RIZE_ZEF+—H  AEBBEETERERH
# H HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund » B
Il * HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund 1~ &
RAEEzEERE  WHBRRBUARTER



Hao Tian Internatio

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
material joint ventures as at March 2020.

REELE R (E)

TXEINERGELCER _T_TF=A2
MBERBE -

HT Riverwood

Multi-Growth
Fund
2020
—T_THF
HK$'million
BEETT
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=A=+—HZEERAR
Current assets mENEE 691
Current liabilities mENaE (17)
Profit or loss for the year BE=A=+—HLEE
ended 31 March ZiEm
Revenue A 156
Profits and total comprehensive income — HAPRUEFI & 2 E US4 58
for the period 133
Net assets BEFE 674
Group's share in % AEESEBESL 37.19
Group's share KEEDE 251

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
the remaining joint ventures which were individually
immaterial to the Group.

TXHINHAEETN S B AERKZHT
BELRIMBERME

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-THF

HK$'million  HK$'million

BEATRT BEET

The Group's share on: REBSELATEIE -
Profit and total comprehensive FRENEEE W =ERE

income for the year = -

Carrying amount of investments KEREE 4 4
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e BHRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E
20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 20 UAFEFEBEES{FAREMSE
HRmz2EMEE

2021 2020

—EB-—-F —ZT-FTF

HK$'million  HK$'million

BEER BEET

Listed equity securities (Note a) R AES (Hista) -

Notes:

(a)

In April 2020, the Company completed a share swap with Oshidori,
where the Company issued and allotted 625 million shares in
exchange for approximately 188 million shares in Oshidori.
According to the swap agreement, there is a lock-up period of two
years from the date of issue for not to sell, offer to sell, transfer or
dispose. The Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to
recognise the fair value of this equity instrument, which is not held
for trading but a strategic investment, through other
comprehensive income. In January 2021, in view of the strong
performance in the stock market reaching its 6 months high, both
the Company and Oshidori mutually agreed to release the
aforesaid lock-up restriction. No dividend income was received
during the year.

The methods and assumptions used in determining the

fair value of the financial assets at FVTPL is summarised in
note 3.3.
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21

S TO THE CONSOLI

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

LOAN RECEIVABLES 21 EWER
Non-current JEME

— Secured fixed-rate loan receivables — BEREENEEKER

— Less: Allowance for expected credit loss — g : TEE = B 18 #E
Current Mk

— Secured fixed-rate loan receivables — BEFETEMEREWE

— Unsecured fixed-rate loan receivables — — &3 [E T F R e E 30

— Less: Allowance for expected credit loss — i : TEEi(Z B E5 1B R4S

2021 2020
—B-—-F —Z-FTF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT AEET
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=—F=-—F=A=1+—HI-FE

21 LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 21 EWER(E)
Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss for ERERFEREEBEREED)

loan receivables:

HK$'million
BEETT
As at 1 April 2019 RZZ—-hEFWHA—H 7
Recognised in the consolidated RiFEBRRANER
statement of profit or loss 41
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZE-ZEF=—A=+—A8K
—ZE_TFNA—H 48
Assets derecognised or repaid ERIBRNEREE (4)
Recognised in the consolidated RiFEBRRANER
statement of profit or loss 7
As at 31 March 2021 RZE-_—F=A=+—H 51
For loan receivables that are not credit-impaired without HRIEEERELBVHBERUAREERR
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition WEBZEEN([E—FEER]) 2ERER - 78
("Stage 1), ECLs is measured at an amount equal to the HEEBERAERARI2MEA RN AT gL
portion of lifetime ECLs that result from default events EENOEMSIB 2 HEREEEET S 2
possible within the next 12 months. If a significant increase SRR o WEVIIRERUREBREERE
in credit risk since initial recognition is identified (“Stage BEEEN((E_ER)BREEELRE
2") but not yet deemed to be credit impaired, ECL is ERE ARREEBERRE2SRAGEES
measured based on lifetime ECLs. In general, when loan BEE - —RME - MEKERKEIEBES
receivables or its related instalments are overdue by 30 N5 EA30 8 - BfEERBEEEM - —
days, there are significant increase in credit risk. In general, RME - MEKEARPBEBE0 B - AR
loan receivables are considered as default (“Stage 3") BEA(TE=REEL -

when they are overdue by over 90 days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

22 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

22 MEHERWE

2021 2020
—B-—-F —ZT-FTF
HK$'million  HK$'million
ER- BEET

Non-current JETRE

Finance lease receivables A& & IR
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss  Ji : TEERZ EE1E#E

Current mE

Finance lease receivables B & & IR
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss & : TEHAE B E1E R E

Certain of the Group's machineries are leased out under
finance leases. The term of finance leases entered into
ranges from 2 years to 3 years (2020: 3 years to 4 years).
There was no unguaranteed residual value in connection
with finance lease arrangements or contingent lease
arrangements of the Group that needed to be recorded as
at the end of the reporting period.

Finance lease receivables are secured by the leased
assets.

AEE2ETHRIIREBEREREHLE - F7
AVZBMEREFMN T 2FE3F (22
THEIFELF) - RBEEHRR - AKEY
EARRENE LR EE L 2 B
REHEEFTEAR -

MEHERYFAANEEEE(FEM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

22 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Maturity of lease payment receivables as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second year e
In the third year BZE

22 BMERERWKEGE)

e E IR 2 BIERIT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTHF
Minimum Present value Minimum Present value

lease of lease lease of lease
payments payments payments payments
RIE HERE 543 MEFIE
BANRE RE BRFIE HE
HKS$'million HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEAER HEAR BEBT BEBT

4

2

1

8 7

B REREREE WA

Less: unearned finance income

Total et

Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss for

finance receivables:

(1 N/ATER

BMERKFREREEERRBE2ES

HK$'million
BEET
As at 1 April 2019, RZZE—-AFMA—H
31 March 2020 —E-EF=A=+—H
and 1 April 2020 ;T _FFHH—H 1
Recognised in the consolidated iR & IER R AR

statement of profit or loss

As at 31 March 2021

R-ZZE-_—F=HA=+—H -
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Lim

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

23 DEFERRED TAX 23 EEHIER
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted off when the BEERIERER B EERIEY KR — B % #
taxes relate to the same tax authority and where offsetting BB Al gORE SRS TIAESH - TA e BEE
is legally enforceable. The following amounts, determined BINHEERETE BRI EBT
after appropriate offsetting, are shown separately on the e
consolidated statement of financial position:
2021 2020
—E=— —E-FF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEER BEET
Deferred tax assets BT IRE E 5 10
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIERE (22) (26)
Deferred tax liabilities, net BRI IR B BF 5 (17) (16)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction, were as follows:

Accelerated tax

B A B R B R B (T B8 —
BISEHERZBE) 0T

Fair value adjustment

Tax losses depreciation acquisition of subsidiaries Total
BIEEE ER EITE WEHBARZATFERE st
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
—B--f —“F°2F ZB--§ _“T-TF ZB--§ _—T-TF "—¥--§ _"T-TF
HKS$'million  HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HKS$'million HK$'million HKS$'million HK$'million
BEET BEET BEET BEET HEER BEBT BHEET BEET
Beginning of the year 4] 16 10 (31) (32) (1) () (16) (24)
Recognised in the GHEABHR
consolidated FHER
statement of
profit or loss (5) b 3 1 1 1 (1) 8
End of the year FR 11 16 (28) 31 - O] (17) (16)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carry-forwards to the extent that the realization of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is
probable. As at 31 March 2021, the Group has
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$39 million
(2020: HK$32 million) and these tax losses have no expiry
dates.

RIEFEHEEDRMBEEAEER - K
AR 8 750 765 18 28 1] B 3 3R SR 2R JIE SR A5 s 1)
RER - —E-_—F=—A=+—0  £x5£H
BHVEEBL( T _ZTF : R2HSB L)
ZARERBIEEE - MABARIBEELED
HiH -
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PREPAYMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLID
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 2= =—4%=

A=+—HIFE

24 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 24

HitbFEWFRTE - BERBAMNRE

2021
—E-—F
HK$'million
BBET

Non-current
Other non-current assets

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

FRB
HipERBEE
W RHEEEERE

Current
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Consideration receivables for
disposal of financial assets
Other receivables
Deposits and prepayments
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

TE
LEES ) =PNCIE /O]
HESREERKKE

Hofth & W 5K
e RFaf A
B FEHEEEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

24 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

25

Movement on the allowance for expected credit

loss for other receivables

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

(#8)

24 HittERRE  BERBANRE

HttEWRBRHEMEESRRE 22

Total
st

As at 1 April 2019
Recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss

As at 31 March 2020 and

1 April 2020
Assets derecognised or repaid
Recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss

R-BE-_ZFE=A[=+—HN
—E-TFMHA—H

BRIHERNEEEE

REREEmRER

As at 31 March 2021

R-ZE-_—F=H=+—H

INVENTORIES

25 FE

Consumables and others
Spare parts
Art works

2021 2020

B —-F —ZT-FF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEBT

84

86
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

26 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

26 BEPYE
2021 2020
—B-—-F —Z-FTF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BE®ETT AEET

Land use rights

T E R

m

The properties under development were related to a
project company in Malaysia. Details of the acquisition are

summarised in note 39(b).

27 TRADE RECEIVABLES

BRTMEEFRATSREAREGH - WE
EIHFIBENMEE390) B4t -

27 EZEWFEE

2021 2020
=B - —T-FTF
HKS$'million HK$'million
BEER BEBET
Trade receivables arising from: UTEEEEZE SRS -
— rental income from construction — RERME 2 WA
machinery business 54
— trading and provision of other service — E2EEHEM 85 & K 12 (1 EAth AR 75
from construction machinery 1
— provision of other financial services — R EAM S R IRTS 9
— securities brokerage — EBHEL 17
81
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss & : Y8 Hi{Z & EriE B4 21
60
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27 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 0-30 days to
its trade customers arising from construction machinery
and sales of construction materials business. The credit
period provided to customers can be longer based on a
number of factors including the customer’s credit profile
and relationship with the customers. Before accepting any
new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly. The Group has a policy for allowance for
expected credit losses which is based on the evaluation of
the collectability and aging analysis of accounts on every
individual trade debtor basis and on the management'’s
judgement including creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer.

For those commodities, futures and securities trading
clients, it normally takes two to three days to settle after
trade date of those transactions. These outstanding
unsettled trades due from clients are reported as trade
receivables from clients.

The margin clients of the commodities, futures and
securities brokerage business are required to pledge their
investments to the Group for credit facilities for
commodities, futures and securities trading. The
settlement terms of trade receivables from clearing houses
are usually one to two days after the trade date.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

27 BFZRWRIEE)

REEERZ MW M EMF HEXEBNE
SEPEETHOZEIBANEESR - mEF
REZ EERREREFPMERERRER
FPOREEZEEAZRMER - A& EAH
B AREFEEEEFEEERRR
EFREFERE - FPNREKSENE
Bl - ARBEREBRMEEBBREFEBR £
DEREERBILESHEBARBE ORI EK
HRREDITER 27T - RBERENE
HEFPHEELBEBRRERS L 2 HE

akas -

Frm - BEREFEEREFPME - —
BRZERGZRXZBHEME=A RN
B REFRAGNZREEFPE SRR
R E PRRIK -

Bm - PERIFFRLEBZRESTPA
AAEEERFEEZREUNRSEEREE
B HERFEHFEE - RIEEMERRZ
HEMBERXZAMKRZ —EMAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 2= =—

27 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

ESAS+—HILFR

27 BZEWREE)

The ageing analysis by invoice date of trade receivables AT REHRTRHE B EE R G E 5 R YGK
before allowance for expected credit losses is as follows: ERBEZAHAZI| 2 REO
2021 2020

—EB-—-F —ZT-FF
HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEET

0-30 days 0-30H 30
31-60 days 31-60H 16
61-90 days 61-90 H 1
91-180 days 91-180 H 10
181-365 days 181-365 H 11
Over 365 days iR 365 A 13
81
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date RIRERREE &S EERR A DS IAE
was the carrying value of each of the receivable mentioned W IR Z BREE - AN B I 5 A (A R
above. The Group did not hold any collateral as security. mIEAREIR o
Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss for BoRWHIBEEREEBEREZS
trade receivables:
HK$'million
BEBETT
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE—-AFMA—H 19
Recognised in the consolidated EREBERPER
statement of profit or loss 6

Amount written-off as uncollectible

WEH & A Bl §Y IR

As at 31 March 2020 and
1 April 2020
Amount written-off as uncollectible
Recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

RZZEZTF=A=+—HK
—ET-TFMA—H

WE R AR E & FE

e BaRTER

As at 31 March 2021

RNRZE-—F=A=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

28 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 28 N4

FEFEEHSLFAREZ

THEE

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —ZT-FTF
HK$'million  HK$'million

BHEBT BEBT

Listed equity securities FTIRANE 118
Unlisted fund investment (note a) FEETESKRE (HisTa) -
Unlisted debt instruments EEMEKTA 12
130
Notes: Mz -

(a)  Amount represented the investments in fund: (a) FASEERTIESHIRE :
2021 2020
—E-—F TE-TF
HKS$'million HK$'million
BEET BEBIT

HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund (note 19) HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund (F{7£19) - -

(b) The methods and assumptions used in determining the fair value of (b)
the financial assets at FVTPL is summarised in note 3.3.

AREEAAFEAEEEZEHAREZER
BEZAFENTTERBRRITE3 3P H5T -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

29 CASH DEPOSITS 29 REFER
2021 2020
—E-— —ECTF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEAT BEBET
Non-current FERE
Pledged deposits (Note a) EEMF R (FsEa) )
Current RE
Trusted and segregated bank accounts {575 B RTTEEF (M5Eb)
(Note b) 20
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEED 220
240
Total et 245
Notes: P
(@) As at 31 March 2021, certain bank deposits were pledged secure (@) MIZEZ—FZA=+—H8 BFROIEARSE
borrowings (note 40). IR - UEEEE (M5E40) »
(b)  Trusted and segregated bank accounts represented clients’ b) GEREERBYRTERFDEEEEER  EFHKE

accounts in the provision of asset management, securities
brokerage, commodities, futures and other financial service
business segment.

(o) As at 31 March 2021, the Group's bank balances of approximately
HK$32 million (2020: HK$17 million) were deposited with banks or
other financial institutions in the PRC. The remittance of these
funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLID

R B BEHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020

Issue of subscription shares (note a)
Issue of placement shares (note b)
Issue of award shares (note c)

Issue of consideration shares (note d)
Issue of shares upon conversions of

convertible note payables (note e)

RZEZTF=RA=1+—HRK
—ETFMHA—H
BITRE R (FisEa)
TR ER D (Fiskb)
BATHRENRD (P st c)
BITRERD (M)

SN AR AR R AR BT A D

(FizEe)

At 31 March 2021

KRB —F=A=+—H

30 SHARE CAPITAL 30 A
Number of Share
shares capital
BHEE [ &N
('million) HK$'million
(A&ER) BEBET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BA0.01B TR TR
Authorised EE
At 1 April 2019 and 2020, R-E—NER-B-ZF
31 March 2020 and 2021 WMA—H  —Z-ZFFK
—E-—F=A=+—H 20,000 200
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFWA—H 4,150 41
Issue of consideration shares BITRER D 276 8
Issue of emolument shares BT R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

e BHRRME

For the yea

rended 31 March 2021 =2 —Z—-—4=A=+—HI-FE

30 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Issue of subscription shares

In April 2020, the Company completed a share swap with Oshidori,
where the Company issued and allotted 625 million subscription
shares in exchange for approximately 188 million shares in
Oshidori.

Issue of placement shares

In September 2020, the Company issued and allotted
approximately 234 million new shares to independent third parties
at HK$0.285 per share. The net proceeds from the share placement
was approximately HK$67 million.

Issue of award shares

In September 2020, the Company issued approximately 775,000
award shares to its employees.

Issue of consideration shares

In January 2021, the Company completed the acquisition of Alcott
and issued 500 million shares to the vendor. Details of the
acquisition is summarised in note 39.

Issue of shares upon conversion of convertible note payables

In February 2021, certain holders of the convertible note payables
in aggregate of principal amounts of HK$280 million exercised their
rights to early convert their convertible notes into an aggregate of
approximately 871 million ordinary shares of the Company. Details
of the conversion of the convertible note payables is summarised in
note 32.
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30 BAR(E)

Mi&E -

(@) BOTIBRG
R-ZB-FEMA - ARARRBEETRIER -
ERARBRITRERSHERRERG -
I EEE ) 188 BB RIS -

(b) BITEMERH
RZZEZTEAA  ARFHRE0.2858 T A
N B Z BT ML 234 E BTG o B
BLEFTS B FRBN BT BEBIT

(c) BITRERG

RZZZZFEAR  ARFRIEE 749775000
P SRR

(d) BTRERSD

RZZZ—F—F KARFTAKEAlcott + I
ME 317500 8 B o WiE B R A RE39
B o

(e) HEEGTRRREERTRS

RoZE-—5-F ALEFEWB0EEEB T
MR REE THEATELRERN - SRR
ERRFAARAATAKNN BER LB -
JE A AT SR AR SR U 5 4 S B OB R 32888t -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLID ‘
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

31 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 31 |ITRHEMEE
2021 2020
—E--F ZZ-TF
Current Non-current Current  Non-current
portion portion Total portion portion Total
REBE  FRDBD mxt  RPHS  EREEH wst

HKS$'million  HK$'million HKS$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million  HK$'million
BEER HEER HEER  AEET  AEBRT  BERT

Bank borrowings FIIEE 68 4 109
Loans from other EfeE s &3
financial institutions 80 2 82
Loan from a fellow subsidiary ~ FZMBARZ &3 - - -
Loans from a director B2/ 30 30 60
178 73 251
The Group's bank and other borrowings were repayable REBMROTLEMESERBERNAT :
as follows:
2021 2020
—E--f ZE-TF
Bank Other Bank Other
borrowings  borrowings Total  borrowings  borrowings Total
RiTEE  EftRE @it BeEE AMEER @5t
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million
HBERRT HEEn HEERT OEET  GEERT ABAR
Within 1 year 1R 68 110 178
Between 1and 2 years 1226 25 32 57
Between 2 and 5 years 2555 16 - 16
109 142 251
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

31 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 31 $R{TREAMEE (&)

Notes: B -

(a) As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of financial and non- (a) R-ZE-_—F=A=+—8 " BB THRIHEE
financial assets pledged as security for certain bank borrowings and REMMBRELER2ERZEMAIFEEME
loans from other financial institutions are disclosed in note 40. B 2 BREE A M 3 40 52 5% -

(b)  The effective interest rate per annum of bank and other borrowings (b) R-ZE-—F=ZA=+—0 ROLEMEEN
as at 31 March 2021 were as follows: BERFR=EQAT :

2021 2020

—E--F —EEF

Bank borrowings RITIEE 3.86%
Loans from other financial institutions Hib B SR B 4.98%
Loan from a fellow subsidiaries RRMEBARZER N/A N5
Loans from a director EZCEX 3%

() The principal of bank borrowings and loans from leasing companies (@ REBFEFEZHEAFTRTEERERAELS

which bear floating interest rates are as follows: S
2021 2020
ZE=-F —ETF
HKS$’million HK$'million
EX-3: 7 BEAT
Bank borrowings RITEE 107
Loans from other financial institutions EAh B S HIE 2 B 1
118
(d)  The Group complied with the financial covenant of its borrowing d RZZEZ-FRZZT_ZTF AEHEERETEE

facilities during the 2021 and 2020.
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32 CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES

In January 2020, the Company issued a 5% convertible
note with aggregate principal amount of HK$213 million
(“CB 1") as the consideration for the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in Hao Tian Credit. The convertible note
has a maturity date of 3 years from the date of issue and
contains a right to convert at a maximum of approximately
609 million shares of the Company at the conversion price
at HK$0.35 per share. During the year ended 31 March
2021, aggregate principal amounts of HK$130 million were
early converted into approximately 371 million ordinary
shares of the Company and aggregate principal amounts
of HK$70 million were early redeemed. As at 31 March
2021, there was no outstanding principal amount for this

convertible note payable.

In January 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of
Alcott (note 39) and issued convertible note with principal
amount of HK$150 million (“CB 2") as part of the
consideration. Such convertible note bears 5% interests
per annum and has a maturity date of 3 years from the
date of issue and contains a right to convert at a maximum
of 500 million shares of the Company at the conversion
price at HK$0.3 per share. In February 2021, the
convertible note holder exercised its rights to early convert
all the convertible note into the ordinary shares of the
Company.

32

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

BN TRREE

ZTZTF R ARRBTACBRER
213EEATLZS% A IRRER ([ BRE
B11) - fERIKEE R K= 5 100% iR # & K
B - 2T RREERNE A A31T B HIET
=F - WEARBRRETSROISBTHRE
ZH609 B ERANRNTRMDEEF - HEZ
T F-A=Z+—BLFE K&
1B0EEBTERAINEBBRARATLNINIG
BREER  ALBE/OEBETCIEAIE
Bl e R—T-_—F=ZA=Z+—8  ZEMNT
BBREBRWENREERDEE -

ZEZ—F—F - AEBEEAUEE Alcott (KT
FE39)  WEITASEAIS0EEB T2
BREE ([ ER2]) - EABHNRE -
ZABRE R FEBS%ET R EEHA A
BITEHRA =F  WEERBRESTRO03
IR RE %5008 8l AR AR D A
Mo —ZZBZ—F_F  A/BREBFEAT
FEBERIRASME A RREE LB AR
Al @A o
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #

E CONS

2T F=A=+—HILFE

32 CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES (continued)

Summarised below is the movement of each portion under

liabilities component during the year:

32 ENURRREE(E)

FRAGERB S ESHHAMT

CB 1 CB 2 Total

MERBREE1 TERREE?2 st

HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million

BEBTT BEBTT BEET

As at 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFHA—H - - -

Issue of convertible note payable 2577 A[ A= 15 145 - 145

Interest accretion F 2320 4 - 4

Early principal redemption REBERAS (13) - (13)
Reclassification of accrued BRI B EFDIER

interests to other payables H fth FE - 708

As at 31 March 2020 and
1 April 2020
Liability portion of new issue
Interest accretion
Interests paid
Extinguishment loss on early
principal redemption
Reclassification of accrued

interests from other payables
Re-designation of fair value of
repurchase consideration as a

result of early principal
redemption
Early principal redemption
Early conversion

R-ZEZZETF=A=+—H
NZZE-TFMPH—H

MBRTIBERS

A2 AN

ERFLE

REBOAG 2 EEEIE

#5238 B A A 3R Z
R M B EF DR
HieF R E A% M EH

EEBEREATE

REELOAS
R

As at 31 March 2021

R-ZE-—F=ZA=+—H
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Hao Tian Internatio

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

33 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVPTL

33 UAVEFEAHE(TABEREZ
THEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEETT

Corporate note payable (note a) R ERE (M5t a) 628 -
(a) In January 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of Alcott (note (a) T —F— - AEE TR W Alcott (T EE

39) and issued note with principal amount of HK$850 million as part
of the consideration. The note has a maturity date of 3 years from
the date of issue, subject to the extension at the option by the
Group. The note bears 5% interests per annum, subject to the
satisfaction of (i) having received audited financial statement of
CESIZ prepared under HKFRS; and (i) the return on net assets of
CESIZ, calculated by dividing net profit after tax over net assets, for
the previous financial year achieved 20% or more. The corporate
note is carried at fair value.

The methods and assumptions used in determining the

fair value of the financial liabilities at FVTPL is summarised

39 RBEITASHEROBBBILZERIERD
RE - ZEZBENIHA/ETAHEA=F 7
HASEERIER - ZFRBIRFE %R - AR
AT HES : () BERIIBBREEFBRELL
fRELE CESIZIS BRI IRER + K (i) L — BB F
JZ CESIZH)FE E R 3R (LB R F MBI AFE
ERTE)EF20%HA L - RERERATERE -

BEURAFHEFEAEB LA ABREZER
BEMRANIDERRRERM 338 -

in note 3.3.
34 CORPORATE NOTE PAYABLES 34 ENEEERE
The notes bear interest 9% per annum. ZEEBRFNEIBFTE -
35 TRADE PAYABLES 35 EZRENRIE
2021 2020
—B-—F —ZT-THF
HKS$'million  HK$'million
BE#ER BEET
Trade payables to brokers and clearing B~ HIE N ESKLEL 2
houses arising from commodities, M4 RAEE T2 8 5NN
futures and securities brokerage P QL] - 11
Trade payables arising from construction M EREL 2 B 5 ER
machinery business A 4 /
4 18
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35 TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

The settlement terms of payables to brokers, clearing
houses and securities trading clients from the ordinary
course of business of brokerage in securities range from
two to three days after the trade date of those
transactions. The settlement terms of trade payables
arising from construction machinery from the ordinary

course of business range from 0-45 days.

An aging analysis of the Group's trade payables arising
from construction machinery business at the end of the
reporting period presented based on the invoice dates is

35 BEZEMNREGE)

RERTEFCLEEBBRETELE ZENL
i BEMREBRESFZEPERRNEES
NFZERFGZRZHARPEME=H - XA
FEGEIETRERBRELZ B 5 ENFR
MEERNFO0ELSH -

REBENREPREERERMEBEEZE
SRENFIARBEERBHZY 2R ST
T

as follows:
2021 2020
S —E-TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEATT
0-30 days 0-30H 1
31-60 days 31-60 H 2
61-180 days 61-180 H 3
181-365 days 181-365 H -
Over 365 days B3 365 B 1
7
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36 OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED 36 HtENRE - ERRESRETE

AND ACCRUALS

H

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —ZT-FTF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BHEBT BEBT

Other payables
— Margin deposits payable to
clients arising from commodities,

futures and securities brokerage

H o & 5008
—ELBEm  HERESFERL
mEMNEPRER (Hita)

(note a) 19
— Others — Hfth 1
Contract liabilities araE 2
Accruals fEZTE R S
Convertible note interest payable AR AR IR F B 4
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries e R RME A RIFIE 5
36

(@)  Margin deposits received from clients for their trading of @ HEEARRABEANEEREFPREFSHEERX

commodities and futures contracts were payable on demand. fF o
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37 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

As at 31 March 2021, the Group held the following

financial instruments:

37 BERESZEMTA

RZZBE-_—F=A=+—H AEEFET

TlemIT A -

2021

—E_—F

Note HK$'million
P aE BEER

Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at FVTOCI WAFEGFEBEZEA
Hivzmlims SoEE 20
Financial assets at FVTPL WAFEFEEEZETA
BasemEE 28
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ IZ# SHRAFIBR 2 ©REE &=
Loan receivables JEWE K 21
Finance lease receivables B E M E R GRIE 22
Cash deposits ReF® 29
Trade receivables B 5 W IE 27
Other receivables and deposits Hab W IE RiEE 24
Financial liabilities N =R
Financial liabilities at REER AR e BE
amortised cost
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 31
Corporate note payables B PERE 34
Convertible note payables JEfT AT AR R AR 32
Trade payables B 5 ENIE 35
Other payables, deposits H A FEAFRIE
received and accruals Bz RIERTE A 36
Lease liabilities HEAE 15
Financial liabilities at FVTPL WAFEFEABEZEA
BamserBE 33

The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in Note 3.1. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount of each class of

financial assets mentioned above.
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2020
—E-FF
HK$'million

BEBT

130
363
245

60

813

251

132
18

36
40

477

AEEREE T AMRNSERERD NI
3w R|MERR ZREERRAL

MEEEREE < IREE -
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38 BEEH

(a) Cash generated from/(used in) in operations (a) REEKFE/(FFABES
2021 2020
—EB-—F _—T_TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BERRT BEET
Profit before income tax ¥ P15 %50 Al A 68
Adjustments for: AT FIAELTE
Interest earned on bank deposits SRITE RRERFIE M
Fair value (gains)/losses on: DNE (W), EE
— financial assets at FVTPL — UAFEFEBES
ATABRRZEREE (28)
— financial liabilities at FVTPL — URAFEFEREEE L
AERzemAR -
Bargain purchase on business ¥BastEERE
combination (18)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BT B A AU a 32
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 2
Depreciation of property, M - BERRETE
plant and equipment 37
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 7
Impairment losses on: ITIER ZREEE
— property, plant and equipment — W - BEREE -
— intangible assets —EmEE 4
— financial assets —SHEE
(expected credit loss) (FEEiEEEE) 48
Extinguishment loss on early R EOEMNATRERER
redemption of convertible note ZBEEE
payables -
Share-based payment expenses VAR 2 F =2 1
Share of results of associates DEEE R RIEE -
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEEREREE (57)
Finance costs BE KA 14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLID

—F=A=+—AILER

(a) Cash generated from/(used in) operations

(continued)

(a)

Operating profit before working
capital changes
Changes in working capital
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
Loans receivables
Finance lease receivables
Trusted and segregated
bank accounts
Trade payables
Other payables, deposits received
and accruals
FVTPL

eat]
Oy e

Hib WA ~ 11E M

FBRFR

BEMERYSA

SREMIBILIRTTIRP

B SRR

HipEAF0R - 2R S

K fest & A

UATEEHE AR A

ik

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

REREBRE/ (MA)RE
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38 BELBER(E)

2021
—E-—F
HK$’'million
BEART

REXBHAE// (A RE(E)

2020
—TTF
HK$'million

AEET



1_\I=|
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38 CASH INFORMATION (continued) 38 REER(E)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) EXRFEHIER
Amount
duetoan
intermediate
holding
Amount  company  Bankand  Convertible  Corporate
dueto  and fellow other note rate Lease
adirector ~ subsidiaries  borrowings payable payable liabilities Total
EfHE
BRAAR
EfEE  BZKR RTR JEft JEff .
RE O NERE HMRE  TRRRE  0ERE HESE &3t
HkSmillon ~ HKSmilon ~ HKSmilon  HKSmilion  HKSmilion  HKSmilion — HKS'million
AEfT  RET  BEAT  BEAT  AEET  REET  BEER
At1 April 2019 HW-E-7EMA-A l 9 2 - - - s
Cash flows Réne
— Proceeds raised —BEEREHE 3 - ) - - - 9
— Principal repayment —Bgfs (30) o) (85) - = = (121)
— Redemption of convertble ~ —EBEEMTRRZE
note payable - - - (13 . S (13
— Lease paid —BfRE - - - - - @) @
— Iterests paid —ERFIS - - 0) - - 1) (10
Non-cash changes $5259
— Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 — B RIFAEEKHE
EBIZ16% - - - - - 10 10
— Finance costs —BERA - - 4 - 1 14
—Acquistion of asubsidiary ~ — WEEHEAT] - A 145 - - 188
—Redlassffication of accrued ~ — FEHTISEH S A
interests to other payables L ERFE
—New leases — g
As at 31 March 2020 and W-B-BE=A=1-§
1 Apr 2020 R-E-85MF-7
Cash flows Reng
—Proceeds raised —BEEMENE
— Principal repayment —ER1e
— Lease paid —BRRE
— Interests paid —EffIE
—Earlyprincipal redemption ~ — R EEA%
Non-cash changes $5259
— Finance costs —BENR
— Ligbilty of new issue —HETAR
—Extinguishmentlossonearly  — 2 FEEAS 7
principal redemption EEEE
—Re-designation of fairvalue  — AR FEEAST
of repurchase consideration  EH#EE
asaresutofearlyprincipal  BEREBATE
redemption
—Reclassflication of acorued ~— — BEMERTIAL
interests from other EiHE &%
payables
— Early conversion —R2RA
—Acquision of properties  — WEZERNE
under development
As at 31 March 2021 RZB=-£=f=1-f
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39 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

It is the Group's strategy to identify suitable investment
opportunity to optimise the capital resources of the

Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group, through
its indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries, has acquired two
subsidiaries 100%, namely (a) Alcott and (b) Big Wish.

Summary of acquisitions
(a) Alcott

In September 2020, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with the vendor, an
independent third party. Pursuant to the agreement,
the Group conditionally agreed to acquire 100%
equity interest of Alcott from the vendor with total
consideration of HK$1,125 million. The consideration
will be settled by (i) HK$125 million by the allotment
and issue of consideration shares of the Company; (i)
HK$850 million consideration note; and (iii) HK$150
million by the issue of consideration convertible note
issued by the Company. The acquisition was
completed in January 2021.
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39 WEHEAF

AEENRBEESRAENRERS - UE
ERENELRER -

HE—_Z-—F=—A=+—HIEFE K
EEBEMEE2ENB AT ERENE
A (a) Alcott & (b) Big Wish &7 100% ##= ©

i

>

WEEEME

(a) Alcott

ZEZTFNA  AEEEES (—F
BAUE=H)EINBE B H® o BIEZH
#AEEGREREARRE125
HEE TR E A UEE Alcott #) 100% %
iz o REBUAONEERETAR
AlZRERNDZM12588 & T
(iB50 B & TR ERE ¢ K (i) 1T
RAATZHREARBRERZN1508
BET  WEKBER =S =Z—F—
A5FERK °
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39 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Summary of acquisitions (continued)

(a) Alcott (continued)

Alcott is an investment holding company which
directly holds 22% equity interests in CESIZ. CESIZ is
principally engaged in investment in urban complex
development project. Under the sub-decree
122/2019 (the “Sub-decree”) on the establishment of
CESIZ Special Economic Zone granted by the
Council of Ministers to CESIZ, the Council of
Ministers approved CESIZ to establish a special
economic zone (the “Special Economic Zone") with a
size of 17,252,519 square meters at Koh Kong
Province, Cambodia (the “Project”). Under the Sub-
Decree, CESIZ shall have the sole and exclusive right
to develop the Special Economic Zone with all the
necessary land use rights, including those for
residential, industrial and commercial development
purpose. The principal assets of CESIZ is a land for
development (“Project Land 1").

39 WEBKMIBAE (&)

WEEEEEE ()

(a)

Alcott (#&)

Alcott 2—RILELRAFT - EERFH
CESIZR)22% % #E  CESIZ E E 1t E 5
MRAHBFBEENERE - BIECESIZ
HEBEESHR FCESIZERVEERER
B EL 12272019 ([ —ES D) -
HERBESHECESZERBRERAR
R ETEB17,252,519 F 5 KA L
BREE(EBEFE] (R - B
RS CESIZEBAERBEERER
ZE—RBREN  UHEBMAENKE
TR (RIEEETE TEREE
ERAR) CESZHNETZEEEAERE
R ([TEE £Hb1]) ©
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39 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Summary of acquisitions (continued)

(a) Alcott (continued)

CESIZ plans to engage in investment in urban
complex development project on the Project Land 1,
including the construction of clean energy industrial
parks along with designated areas for residential
properties. The location of the Project enjoys
geography advantage. The Special Economic Zone is
located in the middle of the 144-kilometre major
national highway No. 4 in Cambodia and port
terminals, connecting the highway to the port, with
the deep-water harbor under planning. The Special
Economic Zone is also in close proximity to the
Phnom Penh-Sihanoukville Expressway, which is
currently under construction. The Project has the
benefit of the convenient domestic road transport
hub in Phnom Penh, Cambodia that will reduce the
transportation costs of corporate products and
labour costs. The development in the Special
Economic Zone will be freehold properties which
allow enterprises, commercial and residential
investors to invest in the area to have a long-term

secure investment plan.
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39 WEBKMIBATE (&)

W EEME ()

(a)

Alcott (#&)

CESIZFH 82 BT ETHE L1 AT
RARBAR  BREERBZLRT
XE(ERFEEEMENEBEE)
ZHEBFAHEVEEY - REFR
NRRIHRETBFBLAR AR I4RE
EROWBBLE ERATFENR
B BERETHRKEBE - LER
BAAEBERFPNSEEARERE
BERKE  ZEBURREREEN
BT EREENEARKESR
B - AP K1 A mm #0E B AN A
BITRA - BEFROERF KA
X ERRARENEEMEE
EREEETMUARABOLERERE
LREE -
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39 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Summary of acquisitions (continued)

(a)

Alcott (continued)

The acquisition will allow the Group to invest and
gain exposure in urban complex development
project in a premium location in Cambodia and
strengthen the Group’s comprehensive investment
portfolio. Cambodia is a member of the Association
of Southeast Asian Nations (“ASEAN") and is one of
the most promising developing countries in the
ASEAN region. Cambodia is a member of the World
Trade Organization ("WTQO") as a developing
country, and investments in the country can enjoy the
WTO preferential tariff for imports and exports from
and to its membership countries, while other
countries like the United States and Japan, also offer
Cambodia preferential tariff and quota-free
incentives. According to the World Bank, Cambodia’s
gross domestic product (“GDP") has continued to
grow at an average rate of over 7% over the past
decade, ranking first in ASEAN countries in terms of
economic growth. Cambodia’s GDP reached US$27
billion and GDP per capita reached US$1,643 in 2019,
making it one of the fastest growing economies in
the world and one of the emerging countries of
investment hotspot in Southeast Asia. The stable
political environment, dynamic labour force in
Cambodia, together with the preferential tax policies
and freedom of capital flows, have successfully
attracted foreign investors. In addition, Cambodia
has established a long-term friendly relationship with
China, providing strong support to China in ASEAN.
The Chinese government’s “One Belt, One Road”
development strategy has brought significant
investment from Chinese enterprises, creating huge
potential for Cambodia’s business development, and
the upcoming “China-Cambodia Free Trade
Agreement” will bring more tangible benefits and
development opportunities to both countries. As an
emerging developing economy in which basic
infrastructure within the country needs to be fully
developed, all industries in Cambodia have
enormous room for development.

39 WEBKMIBAE (&)

W EEME ()

(a)

Alcott (#&)

FRANEEEEAEEEREREER
BRI TARE FEIER WESTSH
B MR AREE 2 ima R EEE »
W28 /5 3R 2 B K Bt BR (Association of
Southeast Asian Nations * [ B8 |) Z %
BE - WARAMEER —EREA
SZERTPER - RFEAERSP
RN RtEREZEE(THEERLE])
KEBE  EZE#TIREN=ZEHEE
ERGSTHEK BB 2 O EEET -
fEMER (K R A ZA) J5 R R iE
SHIRHESHEN R RREESEE -
BEERBIT2HE  BETF X
HR2BEANEERE(GDP)) # &%
FHmI% BB E - REBEER
o ZBEEREBRAEEEEN - R
HEEGDPE T — NLFE 270185
AYIGDPE1,643% T FHEK A Z
FHP (RN RZEBRERR
R EAp —EF S ERBER -
RIBRBURRIERTE - BHEBKEN
Fm MEHKEBE MEESLBMH
B ERIIREIEINEEE o IEHN
RpEAPHEEVRBRATERE
RPBEERBREMHRKEE - R B
Bz =] BERFED RS HE
TERERE  BRREEIHEERRE
BIEEEREN  MANEEX 2 [ E
— RBEEHRESWHE] K RMER
REZEAEMNGZRERES - ERM
HzERhaERBR BRNERELH
BRE REEMBTEHBERZE
Rz=f o
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39 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Summary of acquisitions (continued)

(a) Alcott (continued)

Given the promising long-term economic
development of Cambodia and prospects of the
urban complex development project, there is
potential for attractive capital appreciation for this
investment over the long term.

Having considered the above reasons, the Group
consider that the acquisition represents a good
opportunity to diversify its business and to
demonstrate the investment in the Project Land with
a view to realising the land value and enhancing
shareholder value in the long run.

Alcott will be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group while the financial results of
CESIZ will be accounted for using equity method.
The acquisition is in substance an acquisition of an

associate.
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39 WEBKMIBATE (&)

WEEEEEE ()

(a)

Alcott (#&)

ERNRIBERNHRPEBERRATR R
EBTHEEMERENAS  ZKRE
REMEAEBARIINNEREEE
jj o

BREBLAESH  AEERR WE
EEREBBERZ TERB/ERER
ERREREB LI REZRE
AR+ (B E M RR R IRREE -

Alcott i Hf AR BV &K -
CESIZ R 5 R EHS AR A AR © W
BEEBUBHBERT -




39 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Summary of acquisitions (continued)

(b) Big Wish

In February 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with the vendor, an
independent third party. Pursuant to the agreement,
the Group conditionally agreed to acquire 100%
equity interests of Big Wish from the vendor with
total consideration of HK$370 million. The
consideration will be settled by the issue of
promissory notes by the Company. The promissory
notes bear interests of 4% per annum above the
prime rate announced by the Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited for Hong
Kong dollars at its best lending rate in effect from
time to time (ie 9%). The maturity date of the
promissory notes is 12-month after the issue of the
promissory note. The acquisition was completed in

the same month.

Big Wish is an investment holding company which
indirectly holds 100% equity interests in Dasar. Dasar
is principally engaged in property holding, which is a
residential and commercial mixed property
development project located at Port Dickson, Negeri
Sembilan, Malaysia comprising 267,500 square
meters (or 2,879,343 square feet). The property is
held from the government for a lease term of 99
years expiring on 8 February 2097 for residential and
commercial building uses. The principal assets of

Dasar is a land for development (“Project Land 2").

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME
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39 WEBKMIBAE (&)

W EEME ()

(b)

Big Wish

—E-Ff AREEES(—F
BIUE=77)FI L BB B - RIBZ W
& AEBEAGRERE R E T W Big
Wish#)100% B A s - KERA XK
370BE&EBTT - REFHARFHEITE
AREBXMN - AARBONEREE
4% BRBBLSESRITARIA
RSB TTREENE(BI9%) © &
SENIHASALZBRETRI2E
A BWEFEHERFRATK

Big Wish &% EE A& » #5748 Dasar
100% %4 ° DasarE B VIR -
HARBRADREFRER LEE
REXEGEMEZRIEBEE HER
267,500 F 75K (2,879,343 F HR) °
WMERBNEE  HEBHANFE K=
ENEFZANBER  FEERE
¥EFHR -Dasar WEEEEAERE
R ([TEE +#2]) °
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39 ACAQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39 WEBHWEAR (&)

W EEME ()

Summary of acquisitions (continued)

(b) Big Wish (continued) (b) Big Wish (#&)

Port Dickson is a popular resort destination at Negeri
Sembilan, Malaysia, about 80 kilometers from Kuala
Lumpur. Based on the available statistics published
by the Valuation and Property Services Department
of Malaysia, the overall house price index of Negeri
Sembilan has increased from approximately 150 in
2015 to approximately 192 in 2019 with a compound
annual growth rate of approximately 5.05%. The
Group considers that there would be an upward

potential for the property market in Negeri Sembilan.

The potential of investing in Malaysia can be further
supported by the rising gross domestic product in
Malaysia. According to the statistics published by the
Department of Statistics Malaysia, the nominal gross
domestic product of Malaysia has increased by over
28% from approximately RM1,176,941 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,283,266 million) in
2015 to RM1,510,693 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,930,744 million) in 2019 with a
compound annual growth rate of approximately
5.12%. The Group considers that there would be a
vibrant economic growth and future prospects in
Malaysia. The addition of Project Land 2 will enhance
the Group's investment portfolio of property
development projects along the One Belt, One Road

regions.

Big Wish and its subsidiaries will be consolidated
into the financial statements of the Group. The

acquisition is considered as an asset acquisition.
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KR RSB R AREMOAEER
st - BEEEEMEIRABONE - RIES
R 78 22 14 B K ) % BR % /B (Valuation
and Property Services Department of
Malaysia) 22 6 B AT 1S L 5T 8% - /"=
HHNERFEEREHEH _T—0
FHI0LEAZZT—NFLH192 &
BFEBRELNR5.05% ° NEBR AR
ERZMETISER LTED

BRATENEELETEG LA &
FRATHERATAREEN - BRES
R P8 55T B (Department of Statistics
Malaysia) 22 5 ) gt 5t 8045 - 5§ 2R EG a8
MAZBENEERBER_ZT—HFYH
117694 B&<H (HHE 42,283,266
AEBIL)ENE28% 2= —NFH
1,510,693 B &< & (HHE 42,930,744
BEAT) BEEFEBEREAR
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39 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Hao Tian Internatio

Summary of purchase considerations

The following table summarises the allocation of

39
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WREH B AR (8)

BB R ERE

TERBAB KB B EEREAEREAR

identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed and REH B RNRE -
the consideration:
Alcott Big Wish Total
et
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
HEETT HEETT HEETT
Allocation of identifiable assets PEEWBAERINEER
acquired and liabilities assumed 2REAE
Interests in associates A RN 1,116 - 1,116
Properties under development BEREAPYE - 370 370
Total identifiable net assets Al R E EFEEE 1,116 370 1,486
Excess of net fair value of DIEEE N R EETE T
identifiable assets over costs of FrexfS n] Bl & E
investments recorded under NEFEBE
share of results of associates "B Z D (157) - (157)
959 370 1,329
Consideration RE
Shares & 17 173 - 173
Corporate note payables e ERIE
— at amortised cost — IR ROR - 370 370
— at FVTPL — URAFEEREE L
AR 616 - 616
Convertible note payables FEf AT AR R 4&
— liability portion —BEHBD 89 - 89
— equity portion — REmIH 81 - 81
959 370 1,329
Net cash inflow WEEERESRAEHE
from acquisitions
Cash consideration per above N ERIBERESRE - - =
Cash and cash BUERS MRS EEY
equivalents acquired - = =
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40 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

41

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of assets

pledged as security for current and non-current

borrowings are as follows:

40

CEREEFERER

REZ-—F=A=+—8 ®RBHEIER
BEERMARRNEEREENT

2021 2020
—BEB-—F —E-FF
Note HK$'million HK$'million
Mt BEET BEBT
Non-current FERE
Fixed charge & & A
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE K& 151
Loan receivables FEWE R 27
Pledged bank deposits EIIRIRITER >
Total non-current assets EAIRHE BB
_Pledgedassecurity . FRBAERE ey
Current B
Fixed charge & & A
Loan receivables U E K 21
Total current assets pledged EREB 2 EEH
Lasseaurity MBEERE 2
Total assets pledged as security EREBEHRZEER A
RREEHE 204
COMMITMENTS 41 EiE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had capital commitments
in respect of property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately HK$7 million (2020: HK$11 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hao Tian Internatio

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z=F=—

42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

43

e BHRRME

FZA=+—HLFE

42 BBMLEXR5

Key management compensation FTEEE AR ZEM
2021 2020
—EBE-—F —T-FTHF
HK$'million ~ HK$'million
BERRT BEET
Short-term employee benefits EEEE R 4 5
Share-based payment VARR 7 3% A~ R IE 4 -
8 5
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRiRE MR EMIESABEEIN  #E
statements, the Group had no material transactions with B FR-IECEFZRA=+—HLF
related parties during the year ended 31 March 2021 and B REEBWESEREH TS -
2020.
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 43 LIRGXFRIE
(a) Share award (a) BB HEE

The Company’s share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) was adopted on 24 April 2020. The
purposes of the Share Award Scheme are (a) to
recognise the contributions by selected participants
and to provide them with incentives in order to retain
them; and (b) to attract the right talents for
promoting the future development and expansion of
the Group, with a view to achieving the objective of
increasing the value of the Group by motivating the
participants to strive for the continual operation and
future development and expansion of the Group and
aligning the interests of the Participants and the

shareholders of the Company.

RAwE 2D ZEET 2 (T ) 2B T
ZER=ZZE_EFMNA=-+NOHE
A o Bin AT EI B MR @) B ER
FELEEEDL 2B ]U%{Eighf
HEARBIHE  Rb)R3lE&HE2ZA
d o DREREBERRERMAETE
ﬁ“ BB REEAEERAEER
BISEARAKRIRE REBETERMSE
ﬂ%ﬁhﬂ'$§%@{§ﬁlﬂ:§’f¥ =]
fEfE 283 AN RIIRER 2 MR -

243

Annual Report % 2020/21



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

43 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 43 DIBRHBZARE(E)
(a) Share award (continued) (a) MRMDEEE(E)
Movement of the award shares (the “Award Shares”) REFEZEBARD ([EZERD ) Eshan
during the year are as follows: N

Number of Award Shares

RRROEA
24 April 2020 29 June 2020 Total
—BCEF it g %22
mA=+mMAE AA=thE At
million million million
BER BER BER
Outstanding as at 1 April 2020 RZZE-ZTFNA—H
M . - -
Granted during the year AEER 197 65 262
Vested during the year AEERE (1) - (1)
Lapsed/cancelled during the year REBERM/ G (170) m (a7
Outstanding as at 31 March 2021 RZE-_—F=ZA=+—H
AR 26 64 90
Share price at date of grant (HK$) REHBEZREGET) 0.246 0.148
Fair value as at date of grant RELABZATE
(HK$' million) (BEBAT) 48 10 58
Share-based payment expense R —FHERZARR
recognised in 2021 (HK$' million) YRR (BEAT) 4 4 8
Future service costs to be RHER 2 AR IR BR B AR
recognised (HK$' million) (BEATT) 3 S) 8
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43 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a) Share award (continued)

Pursuant to the scheme rules, the Board may
determine other specific vesting criteria, conditions
and the time when the awards shall vest. The Award
Shares are vested in three equal tranches of which: (a)
1/3 of the Award Shares under the award shall be
vested in the first calendar year after the offer date
during a period of continuous service with the Group;
(b) 1/3 of the Award Shares under the award shall be
vested in the second calendar year of continuous
service with the Group after the offer date; (c) 1/3 of
the Award Shares under the award shall be vested in
the third calendar year of continuous service with the
Group after the offer date. A total of 774,929 Award
Shares granted to one of the selected employees are
unconditional awards as his contract provided for
such Award Shares are in addition to his normal

monthly salary.

Among the share awards granted, Fok Chi Tak, the
executive director of the Company, was awarded

approximately 61 million shares.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

43 BURGXAAREGE)

(a)

R4 2R @ (48)

RETEEA ESeETHMF
TRBIZE RUHELKBRBRERAE -
REBOD ZHEEERE  EF : (3
RENE T 2 1/3RE RN ERIFERN
SEREHHEZNAHEEEARE
FEBE O)EREIE T 21/3RERMN
EEZHRPEFERASERG 2
E_REFHB  (REIET21/348
BRNEEEHNEHESERNEE
REzE-REFRE - JRTHF—
HETIRE A 774929 82BN 5 Ty
EARTIRE - RETDE B B REK
NERREZAENBE—BAFHUINIZ
HEInE 4

ERHzBROREE S AREHRT
EFETRERVOBERED -
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 2= =—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

ESAS+—HILFR

43 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a) Share award (continued)

Details of the specific categories of award shares are

as follows:

Date of grant

Vesting period

43 BURGXAAREGE)

(a) KRUDER(GE)

AR 2 BEIBRMFBOT

Numbers of
share awards

mEBH BEH R4 SRR B
(million)
(A&R)
24 April 2020 24 April 2020 — 24 April 2021 9
—E_TFMNAZ+MA CE-EFNA-+NEE T4 A - +mA
24 April 2020 24 April 2020 — 24 April 2022 9
—EZFFMNAZ+MA CE-EFENA - +NBEE T - 4B - +MAE
24 April 2020 24 April 2020 — 24 April 2023 9
—EFFMNAZ+MA —E-EFENA-+NBEE T =4/ - +MAE
29 June 2020 29 June 2020 — 29 June 2021 21
—EZEFRNAZ+NH TECEFARATNBEE-_—F A=+ NAH
29 June 2020 29 June 2020 — 29 June 2022 21
—EEFANAZ+NH TECEFARAZTNBEE__F A=+ NAH
29 June 2020 29 June 2020 — 29 June 2023 21
—ETFRAZTAH ZECEFARNAZTNBEE_=F A=+ NAH
90
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

43 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

43 BURGXAAREGE)

(b) Emolument shares (b) EHEM
Movement of the emolument shares granted by the FRN - ARAREzBMEeROEEH N
Company during the year are as follows: AN
Emolument
Shares
< k17
6 October
2020
—EIEF
+AKAH
million
AER
Outstanding as at 1 April 2020 MRZZ_FTFHA—BEAREH -
Granted during the year REFRHE 9
Outstanding as at 31 March 2021 RZB_—F=A=+—HrEAREKL 9
Share price at date of grant (HK$) REE BB ZRE (BT 0.395
Fair value as at date of grant (HK$' million) REEBABzATFE(BEESET) 3
Share-based payment expense recognised MR- —FHERZ AR AR
in 2021 (HK$' million) (B&AT) 2

Future service costs to be recognised
(HK$' million)

R Z R RARIGKA (BEETT)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

43 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b)

43 BURGXAAREGE)

Emolument shares (continued)

Details of the specific categories of emolument
shares are as follows:

(b) BERH (&)

ARER 2HERMOFBDT

Numbers of

emolument

Date of grant Vesting period shares

RHEBH BES MeRHEE

(million)

(A&R)

6 October 2020 6 October 2020 — 6 October 2021 (note) 3
ZE-EF+ARH —E-FFE+ARNHBE-Z-—F+AH (HF)

6 October 2020 6 October 2020 — 6 October 2022 (note) 3
—ZE_FF+HRH —T-TFE+AXNAEZT-_F+ A8 (M)

6 October 2020 6 October 2020 — 6 October 2023 (note) 3
—ZE-TF+HARH ZECEFFARNAEZZE=F+A/NH ()

9

Note: These emolument shares were granted to Mr. Xu Lin and Mr.

M - ZEMEROETARRERITERFH

Wei Bin as part of their emolument as non-executive
directors of the Company. If Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin
ceases to be a director of the Company for any reason
before any vesting date, Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin shall be
entitled to receive a pro rata portion of the emolument
shares calculated on the basis of the number of days worked
by Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

44 EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(i)

Acquisition

In April 2021, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement with an independent third party to
acquire 49% equity interests in a target company with
a consideration of approximately HK$286 million.
The target company, through its interests in a
segregated portfolio of Tisé Opportunities SPC,
acquires shares of New Gains Group Limited
("NGG"), a subsidiary of China Evergrande Group,
which owns Fangchebao Group Co. Ltd. * (FEE &
& % 15 B BR /A &)). The consideration was settled by
the allotment and issuance of approximately 867
million shares of the Company. The transaction was
completed in May 2021. This investment will be
treated as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss on the consolidated statement of financial

position.

44

MBRARBHREER

(i)

Wi =R

RIZE-_—FMA AEERBYE
=HEIRERE - BRELN286BE
BT ER BIER A2 49% - B
1Z A Bl & B H £ Tisé_Opportunities
SPCEUREME 2w - W New
Gains Group Limited ([NGG] +
BEREECHMBRAR HEFEES
B BER AR 2K - REFBE
BA TR BERAREKGL X
MeZRHGN_F-_—FAATK -
FREBEGEMBIRRNKREER
NAFEFEEEZ L AERZZS
BEE o

249

Annual Report % 2020/21



NOTES TO THE CONSOLID

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of Financial Position of the

(a) AARAMBMRE

Company
2021
—E-—F
HK$'million
BEET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIE
Amounts due from subsidiaries =N
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries U B A B F A
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEED
Total Assets BEHAE
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EakaE

Equity attributable to equity holders Zx 7 Bl i5HE A (L2

of the Company
Share capital AR AR
Reserves ]
Total equity R BE
LIABILITIES a8
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Convertible note payable FERT AT AR R R
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45 EXTRMBRARRFHERE

2020
—TEF
HK$'million

BEBT

88
402

490

405
13

418

908

44
689

733

132

132



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45 FAARBBRARREEES (E)

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

(a) Statement of Financial Position of the (a)
Company (continued)

FARPBMRRE (B)

2021 2020
S —E-=F
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEAR BEAT

Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hib N AN EGHE R 4
Amounts due to subsidiaries RPN E S 28
Loan from a fellow subsidiary RENBARTZER =
Amount due to a director B EEHIA 11
43
Total liabilities BEERE 175
Total equity and liabilities EaRkaEEHE 908

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June
2021 and was signed on its behalf

Fok Chi Tak
Director

EE

RRARFBHRRERR -FE - —FXA
“tThBEEEEedE YHNATE
EREEE

Tang Yiu Chi James
HIEE

Director

EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2=Z=-—4=A=+—HIt5E

45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the company

45 ARTRAMBRRREFEESE (E)

(b) ADBRHERE

Share-based Convertible
Share Capital payment FVTOCI note  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve loss Total
WATE
482
Bl
Hth2E
wphrs  MBZ TR
BaE  EABE  XARE e EEEE  ZifEE t
HkS'million ~ HKS'million ~ HKS'million ~ HKS'milion ~ HK'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million
BE#T BREAT  BEAT  BEET  BEET  BEAT  BEER
At1 April 2019 R=2-75BA-H 53 5 - - - 39 551
Loss and total comprehensive EEEERZERELE
loss for the year - - - - - ) ()
Transaction with equity holders HEEREARD
Issue of emolument shares BTRERG 1 - (1) - - - -
Issue of consideration shares BIRERR () - - - - - 8
Issue of convertible notes payable RIEMTAREE - - - - 64 - o
Share-based payments expenses MR ENEY - - 1 - - - 1
618 5 - - oh (48) 689
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| X AL
For the year ended 31 March 2021 #2 == =—4=A=+—HItFE

45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45 AAQRBMEMRRERRFESS (E)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the company

(continued)

(b) AT RERE(E)

Share-based Convertible
Share Capital ~ payment Fv1oC! note  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve loss Total
AT
fEER
21itA
Hfp2E

aRprE  WEZ 78R
KORE  EABE  XRE fE  ZEBE  2iER @it
HK$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HKS'million ~ HKS'million ~ HKS'million ~ HKS'million  HK$'million
BE%n EBE%n BEAn BB PEEBx BEEn BEEn

As at 31 March 2020 and
1 April 2020

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

R-B-E£=F=+-8R
ZECEEMA-A

ZEBR
A2 ENE

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Transaction with equity holders

Issue of subscription shares
(note 30(a))

Issue of placement shares
(note 30(b))

Issue of consideration shares
(note 30(d))

Issue of convertible note
payables upon acquisition
of a subsidlary (note 39(a))

Issue of shares on conversion of
convertible note payables
(note 32)

Share-based payment expenses

Early principal redemption of
convertible note payables
(note 32)

— re-designation of fair value of

repurchase consideration
— transfer to accumulated losses

FR2EBRLR

EREHEARS
HTRBMG (M 30a)

FkERD
(RiE300)
BARERG (HE30d)

WBHBRARES
ERTARZSE
(HF3£39(2)

REEMTAREER
ARG
(H332)

R AER

REBEENTARES
e (M)

—EfRERORELTE
—E\EitER

As at 31 March 2021

RZEZ-£=F=1-H
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EHE

Year ended 31 March #HZE=A=+—HIL&E

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS E4
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E—+tF —E-NF ZT-NF ZTTF ZT--F
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBATL BEBAT BEBAT BEBT BEATL
Revenue 'ON 194 166 177 192
Profit/(loss) for the year THIALEEFER
attributable to: SBH(E8) -
— owners of the — RNREEBA
Company - (12) (6) 72
— non-controlling — SRR
interests - - - -
Profit/(loss) for the year FERHER,(EE) - (12) (6) 72
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 March
R=B=+-—H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—T—+F ZT-N\F ZT-hF ZT-TF ZB=--F
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEET BEAT BEET BHEBTT
Total assets BERAE 462 634 1,080 1,497
Total liabilities BEEE (218) (287) (313) (509)
244 353 767 988
Equity attributable to ALNEHERAEL
owners of the R
Company 244 353 767 988
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Articles of Association
SZIE4RA]

Board
E5Y

Company

ZAYNC]

COVID-19
COVID-19

Director(s)

S

Group
REE

Hao Tian Credit

EXREE

Listing Rules
EmRR

PRC
B

Previous Year

=¥

SFO
w27 KRR R

Share(s)
f&1n

the articles of association of the Company

RRRABERAR

board of Directors

o

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited (Stock code:
1341)
EREREZRIREEBERAE (BRHHRE : 1341)

Coronavirus Disease 2019

“ZE-NFEARER

director(s) of the Company

ZAUNCTE =5

the Company and its subsidiaries

ZAN/NCTP L) EEPNC]

Hao Tian Credit Company Limited, one of the subsidiaries of the Company
holding a money lenders license

EREEERARF - ARREP—FHNMBAR - EFAREARR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B FTRE 7 L AR R

People’s Republic of China
hEE AR HAE

the last financial year of the Group ended 31 March 2020
AEEBZE_Z_TF=A=+—HIt F—EMERFRE

Securities and Futures Commission

EFLHEEHERRES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EBEDIFE 571 B 5 R E G

share(s) in the capital of the Company
AR RAF RS
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&

ﬂl

Shareholder(s)

A& R &
Stock Exchange

Bk 22 B i1
Year

KEE Ei1
EUR

BT i1
HK$

BIT i1
JPY

SRE] i1
RMB

AR i1
Us$

e i1
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holder(s) of the Shares
f& 1D B E A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBBMARIMBERAT

the financial year of the Group ended 31 March 2021
AEEHE-_T - —F=A=+—HILHBFE

Euro
BT

Hong Kong Dollars
BT
Japanese Yen

H &

Renminbi

ARE

United States Dollars
ETT



*RBIBEREEEE LA R A

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited
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